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* Whowe are

A FTSE 250 company, headquartered
in Cambridge, UK, AVEVA is an
acknowledged industry leader in
engineering design and information
management software.

¢ Whatwedo

AVEVA creates and supplies the most powerful technology available for the
engineering design, construction and lifecycle support of all types of plant

and marine assets in the oil and gas, power generation, process plant, minerals
processing and shipbuilding industries. At every stage of the project hifecycle
AVEVA solutions delver igh productivity and information integrity, saving time
and money, improving project quality and reducing business risk.

+ Howwedoit

AVEVA maintainsits clear industry leadership through a combination of pioneering
n-house software development, carefully selected technology acquisition and strategic
partnerships. It continually extends the capabibities of its solution to increase
the competitive advantage of its customers, while simultaneously protecting
their investment in engineering information.

our
strategy

AVEVA's philosophy of Continual Progression meets the challenges of increasingly complex, integrated
engineering projects by delivering powerful, innovative technologies which anticipate and lead
the way 1n developing new capablities and more productive working methods.

Develo?‘ing global Leadership through
networks progression

In a global marketplace, projects and assets are managed on an international AVEVA's leaderstip comes from vision and a sustained commitment to technological
scale AVEVA supports this by delivering the most advanced enabling technologies progress Forover 40 years, AVEVA has led the way by proneenng developments

and close customer support through a steadily expanding global network which anboipate and enable the most far-reaching transformations in project
of offices and strategic partnerships executton and asset ownership
for mare information for more information

turn to page 02 turn to page 04




Highlights

Solid performance in challenging market conditions
focusing on our core strengths of supplying world class
solutons and services to our customers in the Gl and Gas,
Power and Manne markets

Revenue of £148.3 million (2009 - £164.0 mtlion)

Recurring revenue up 9% to £102 7 milhon {2009 - £94.2 milhon)
representing 69% (2009 - 57%) of total revenue

Investment in Research and Development of £20 9 milhion
(2009 - £27 3 milhion)

Restructuring programme complete at a cost of £1.9 mlhon
and annuahsed savings of approximately £5.0 milhon per annum

Adjusted profit before tax of £50.7 million
(2009 - £66 4 million)*

Profit before tax of £49.6 million (2009 - £59.2 mlhion)

Adjusted basic earnings per share of 50.92 pence
(2009 - 69.99 pence)*

Basic earnings per share of 49.36 pence (2009 - 62.27 pence)

Final dividend increased to 13.9 pence (2009 - 6.5 pence)
resulting 1n total dividend of 16 9 pence for the year
{2009 - 9.36 pence), an increase of 81%

Continued strong cash generation with net cash and deposits
atthe year end of £149.7 million (2009 - £126 2 milhon)

*  Adjusted profit before tax and adjusted earmngs per share are caloulated before amortisation of
intanqible assets share-based payments gawn/loss on fawr value of forward forengn exchange
contracts and restructunng costs in the relevant year In addhen adjusted earmings per share also
welude the tax effects of these adjustments

Collaboration through
relationships

As engineering projects become ever more complex, their creabon and long-term
operation demands the efficient management of information and workflows
across distnbuted, collaborative working relationships AVEVA's technologies
faclitate ths collaboration, while its business structure integrates a growing
network of technology, services and interoperabibty partners to pronide the
most comprehensive solutions

for more information

turn to page 06
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Developing

global networks

In a global marketplace, projects and assets are managed on an international scale.
AVEVA supports this by delivering the most advanced enabling technologies and
close customer support through a steadily expanding global network of offices and

strategic partnerships.

Kharkov
Mr Badzym, Chief of Board Directors, Kharkov Saentfic
Research & Design Institute

“As we continually increase our library of proven
designs and innovations, AVEVA PDMS allows
us to reuse them on subsequent projects, so we
progressively become more efficient with every
project. Qur engineers are happier, because
their work is easier and of high quality, and
our customers are delighted with our projects.”

Americas revenue

£26.9m

« AVEVAInc celebratedits 25th anmversary
® New Business Performance Centre opened 1n Houston

* First AVEVA NET installatons delivered in North America

AVEVA NET 15 a powerfulinformation management solubon, capable

of handhing all types of digital information - not yust engineenng data
- to create a complete digital model of a plant or stip It enables the full
exploitation of reliable, up-to-date and fully cross-referenced project

and operationalinformation

for AVEVA NET in action
see page 05

AVEVA Plant s the most powerful and comprehensive suite of integrated
software sotutions available for creating and supporting all types of
engineering plant Whether on complex new-build assets, or the smallest
n-service upgrade, AVEVA Plant enables maximum productivity, error-free
design, mimmum project cost and the most rapid return on investment

for AVEVA PLANT in action
see page 06
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Europe, Middle East and Africa revenue

£70.9m

® Hungary's largest electnoty provider (Paks) selected
AVEVA Plant and AVEVA NET for nuclear plant design
and information management

® voestalpine AG, Europe's number one mgh-qualty steel
fahricator, deployed over 50 AVEVA NET chients for
daly operations

* Qver 50 1nstallations of the new AVEVA Diagrams appbication
acheved in its first year

Woodside Energy Ltd (Australia)
Bill van Butzelaar, Business Improvement Manager

“We simply couldn’t have delivered this level
of saving, productivity boest and shareholder
value without the use of AVEVA NET as a core
part of our technology solution. Woodside had
to make payback happen, and AVEVA NET has
delivered financially as well as operationally,
and well ahead of expectations.”

AVEVA Manine s the culmination of AVEVA's largest single development
programme, fusing best-in-class shmpbuitding and plant engineering
software into an unnvalled solution for the design and construction

of every type of ship and floating structure

for AVEVA MARINE in action
see pages 04 and 07

GL Noble Denton
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Nandakumar Kunnanchath, General Manager,

Competency Centre MEA Reqion

“AVEVA is like a friend around the corner, always
delivering beyond expectations.”

Asia Pacific revenue

£50.5m

® AVEVA's Shangha office celebrated 1ts 20th anmversary

® AVEVA's Yokohama office celebrated 1ts 10th anmiversary

* Major contract wins with leading companies including
Daelim Industnal, Mitswn Engineening and Stipbuiiding,
Namura Shipbuilding, Thess Degremont Joint Venture |

and WorleyParsons

[hrectors’ repart
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Leadership through
progression

AVEVA maintains its leadership by continually delivering new technologies that provnide
ever-increasing business value across the entire project bfecycle. Many of these developments
are carried out in collaboration with AVEVA's customers, focusing on real needs, practical
working methods and measurable benefits.

Collaborative development shortens the ship structural
design cycle

TKMS BVN
Rafael Doig, Research & Development Department

“Using this new tool for the analysis of a frigate, we halved
the time needed for the whole Finite Element Analysis of the
vessel. We expect to save from now on about 960 hours in
the structural assessment of a vessel.”

Analysing the structural
strength and vibration
characteristics of a complex
ship structure is a highly
skilled and lengthy
process that {s often

a critical-path activity

To solve this problem AVEVA
worked with TKMS Blohm +
Voss Nordseewerke (BVYN)
and three other leading
German sinpbulders and
consultants to speafy and
develop an efficient bink
between AVEVA Marine and
third-party Fimite Element
Analysis (FEA) programs
The result was AVEVA Hull
Fimte Element Modeller
released 1n January 2010
and already proven to delver
substantial reductions 1n time
and cost while enabling
mare efficent design of
more sophisticated vessels

AVEVA Group plc Dhrectars report
O 4 Annual report 2010




Sustained innovation

AVEVA maintains consistently hgh investment in R&D throughout the economic
cycles. This strategy ensures the continual release of new, value-adding technology,
whether as enhancements to estabhshed products, addihons to portfolos, or closer
technology integrabion This long-term commitment instils confidence 1n AVEVA
as both a secure vendor and a sound investment.

Leading the way

AVEVA successfully proneered most of the technologies that form the foundation
of today's engineering design methods The Company continues to lead the way
with new technologies that harness information itself to create new opportumties
for compebitive advantage across the engineening industnes.

AVEVA's information management technologies
enable true global collaboration

Mustang Enqineering
John Dalton, Executive Vice President

Overview
Business review
Corporate Governance

financial statements

Information management
processes and tools are
essential at every stage
of an asset's Lifecycle,
whether project execution,
handgver, or operations
That's why they are
sometimes described

as Project Lifecycle
Management (PLM) tools.
AVEVA's PLM solution is
AVEVA NET, an innovative
and powerful technelogy
platfarm for integrating
and exploiting every type
of project information

Mustang, a leading
Engineering, Procurement

& Construchion Management
(EPCM) contractor in the ol
and gas industry, uses AVEVA
NET as the hub for project
nformation management,
from commencement to
completon and for data
handover to the chient
AVEVA NET supports Mustang’s
business processes across
five business umtsn 13
offices around the world

“Efficient data management and access to information have always
been challenges to global project execution. With AVEVA NET, we are
able to provide our global projects with an easily accessible, single
source of project data, ensuring more efficient data management,
consistency across deliverables and true global collaboration.”

fhrectars report.
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Collaboration )
through relationships

In today’s competitive engineering industries, success frequently comes from an ability to work
in efficient collaborative relabionships. It is now common to find businesses collaborating on one
project while competing for another. AVEVA technology enables collaborative use of all types of
project information, so that businesses can compete on innovation and their core competenaes.

JRI
Mano Gonzalez, Chief of Integral Design Area

“This is a real innovation for JRI. No other applications have
given us this level of business value. We expect our continuing
close relationship with AVEVA will enable us to deliver even
more impressive projects in the future.”

JRI Ingenieria raises the benchmark in minerals processing

Large-scale minerals
prajects create considerable
engineering challenges,
not least because they
often span great distances
and complex topography
Chilean mining engineering
company JRI Ingenieria has
putitselfin a leadership
position by its innovative use
of AVEVA Plant solutions

JRI regards AVEVA as an
important business partner
forits dose techmeal support,
which has enabled JRI to
trawn engineers ‘on-demand
to meet 1ts specific imdustry
needs JRIalso developed
an innovative means of
mapping and integrating
complex site topography by
means of aenalsurvey data
converted into PDMS data

AVEVA Group plc Dhrectors report
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Information integration

For many years, AVEVA has taken the lead in removing barners to information
nterchange by progressively integrating its technologies and promoting the use
of robust, open standards Effective integration and sharing of all project
wnformation 1s the essential enabler for seamless collaboration.

Acquisition and partnership

Recogmsing the wealth of creatiity 1n the engineering IT wndustry, AVEVA actively
seeks to expand the scope ofits solutions through carefully selected technology
or business acquisitions and by developing close partnerships with companmies
offering complementary technologres.

Ovennew
Business review
Corporate Governance

Financial statements

Located in Nantong,
Rongsheng Heavy Industries
{RSHI} Is today China's
fastest growing private
shipbuilder, with
development plans
through to 2020 Since
its establishment in 2005,
RSHI has been using
AVEVA's Tribon system
to design and build bulk
carriers, of! tankers

and containerships

It 1s row expanding s
business in high-value
offshare products such

as FPS0s, FSOs, deep-water
ppelaying vessels, dnllstnps
and drilling ngs

Using AVEVA technology, Rongsheng Heavy Industries plans to become

one of the world’s top three shipbuilders

Rongsheng Heavy Industries
Chen Qrang, Chawrman President of RSHI

“AVEVA's Tribon marine solution was the natural choice for us because
of its proven success in the Chinese shipbuilding industry. Our plan

is now to migrate to AVEVA Marine. We find the 3D technology further
enhanced in AVEVA Marine, with a better balance between the different
structural and outfitting disciplines, as the integration between them

is further improved in AVEVA Marine.”

Directors report
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Chairman’s statement

Nick Prest
Chairman

* Highlights

Revenue for the year amounted to £148.3 mibon
(2009 - £164.0 milhon)

The Group’s balance sheet continued to strengthen

The Board 1s recommending a final dwidend of 13 9 pence

Our staff remained mghty focused and professional and
have contnibuted to our solid performance during the year

to view the Chairman’s statement online
ar.aveva.com/2010

Iam pleased to report on another set of solid results for
AVEVA for the year ended 31 March 2010 Good levels of

revenue and profits have been achieved 1n difficult world
economic conditions

Key financiais

Revenue for the year amounted to £148 3 milbon
{2009 - £164 0 mihon) The performance across all our
regicns was impacted by recent economic uncertainty
and, as antiopated, this resulted in a reduchon 1n new
licence sales which was particularly pronounced in the
Manne marketin As1a However, recurnng revenue
ncreased by 9% to £102 7 mlbon {2009 - £94 2 milhon)
and this, coupled with a fallin imhal fees to £35 1 milbon
(2009 - £57 7 million), has meant that recurning
revenue as a proportion of total revenue increased

to 69% (2009 ~ 57%)

Following the restructunng programme undertaken

n the early part of the year, the Group has remained
well posihoned to respond to market condihons whilst
maintaiming the appropnate level of investment for the
longer term As part of the restructuning, the Group
achieved annuahsed cost savings of approximatety

£5 0 milbhon which helped to mawntain sobid operating
margins that the Group has histoncally achieved.
Operating marqins were 33% for the year {2009 - 35%)

Adjusted profit before tax, amortisation, share-based
payments, restructurning costs and fair value of forward
foreign exchange contracts amounted to £50 7 million
{2009 - £66 4 mlhon} Adjusted basic earmings per share
amounted to 50 92 pence (2009 - €9 99 pence), a decrease
of 27% Profit before tax amounted to £49 6 mllion
(2009 - £59 2 million} and basic earmings per share

were 49 36 pence (2009 - 62 27 pence)

AVEVA Group pic Dhrectors report
08 Annual report 2010




The Group’s balance sheet continued to strengthen
duning the penod as the Group's cash, including treasury
deposits which compnise bank deposits with a matunty
date of up to six months, increased by 19% to £149 7 mlhon
(2009 - £126 2 milhon), once agan reflecting the strong
conversion of profits into cash flow

Dividend

Following a number of years of mgh levels of profitamlity
and cash generation the Board has reviewed the existing
level of dimdend payout and has deaded to wncrease it
from what 1t now considers to be a relatively low base
The Board 15 therefore recommending a final dwvdend

0f 13 9 pence (2009 - 6 5 pence) Combined with the
intennm dwadend of 3 © pence (2009 - 2 86 pence) this
gwves a full year dwadend of 16 9 pence (2009 - 9 36 pence),
anincrease of 81% The rebased dwidend better reflects
the established nature of our business and the strength
and stamity of our cash flows without impinging matenally
on our abibity to continue to nvest and grow the business

Subject to approval at the Annual General Meeting,
the final dvidend will be paid on 30 July 2010 to
shareholders on the register on 25 June 2010

People

Qur people remain the prinapal foundation of our
success and this continues to be one of our market
differentators Qur staff are mghly skilled and dedicated
to keeping the AVEVA brand synonymous with quality
and delivery The past twelve months have presented a
number of challenges for the Group and its employees
The glabal economic slowdown and the subsequent
restructuring programme created both business and
personal challenges for many of our staff Throughout
this penod our staff remained highly focused and
professional and have contributed to our solhd
performance during the year, whilst building a strong
base from which we can continue to both grow the business
and maintan our first class reputation On behalf of the
Board I wish to thank all of our pecple for their hard
work, commitmentand contribution over this year to
the success of the Group

As announced earber 1n May 2010, after eleven years

of contnbution to the Group, Dawvid Mann wll retire from
his role as Non-Executve Director of the Company at the
Annual General Meeting 1n July of this year Iwould like

Overview
Business review
Corporate Governance

Finanoal statements

to take this opportumty to thank Dawd for both s
personal contnbution and s help in developing the
Group and the Board over his tenure

I'would also ke to welcome Hervé Couturier whe joined
the Boardwn Apnl 2010 Hervé’s expenence, 1n particular
at SAP AG, will ne doubt prove invaluable as AVEVA conbinues
to develop its products and solubions for the markets in
which 1t operates

Outlook

Despite the challenges of 2009, we have continued
with the development of the business through product
wnnovation and securing growth in new markets such as
the (IS and Brazil We see growth opportumihes in each
of our vertical end markets

The key dnvers for growth remain in the Power and Ol
and Gas markets where projects in new regions and mare
complex designs are bkely to see new customer wins and
the expansion of existing relationships Although the
traditional Marine market looks set to be slow for some
time, emerging countnes that are investing to develop
local capacity afford some opportunities, as does
offering new product funchonality to existing customers
AVEVA NET remains a strong focus for the business as a
growing customer base accepts the technology solution
for managing the large volumes of data n both new
build and brownfield assets

Ongoing investments in products and debvery capabibibes
across AVEVA's entire portfolio wiil continue but added
emphasis on AVEVA NET delivery capacity will help to
accelerate our posihon within the market and capitabise
on the growing opportunity

The Group’s market leading technologies and a global
sales infrastructure capable of benefiting from both
improving global and local trends, mean that AVEVA
remains well placed to continue to build onits success
over recent years

Nick Prest
Chairman
26 May 2010

“Good levels of revenue and profits have been achieved in difficult world

economic conditions.”

Dhrectors repart AVEVA Group pic 0 9
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Chief Executive’s review

Richard Longdon
Chief Executive

* Highlights

Overall performance of most industry segments served
by AVEVA has been 1n hine with our expectations.

AVEVA managed to sectre ymportant new contracts wath
Kyokuyo Shpyard wn Japan and Samsung in Korea.

The quality of the AVEVA products and their surtabiity
for the @il and Gas prajects 1n Branl has posihoned AVEVA
for strong growth 1n thms market,

Research and Development continued to be a key prionty
duning the year

to view the Chief Executive’s review online

ar.aveva.com/2010

Overview

AVEVA continued its development despite the challenges
of the world economy, delwenng a good performance
reflecting the fundamental strengths of the business
Qur strong base of recurnng revenue and good growth
n developing markets helped to mitigate the ympact of
global economic uncertainty, particutarly on imhal fees
n Manine As aresult, overall revenue fell only 10% to
£148 3 mlbon (2009 - £164 0 million)

Detisive restructuring actions taken 1n the first half
delivered the antioipated efficency savings, better
equipping the Group to address the trading environment.
This helped to ensure that margins rematned strong at
33% (2009 - 35%), whilst also enabling us to 1nvest
selectively 1n growth opportumties, particularly in
South Amenica, the CIS, where we expanded local
resources and AVEVA NET where we wncreased capaoity
n solutions delivery The whole orgamsation showed
great professionalism and commitment throughout
ths process and the Group was guickly able to move
forward this year with the nght cost base

Overall performance of most industry segments served
by AVEVA has been in bne with our expectations Funding
censtraints in the (il and Gas sector led te some major
new projects proceeding slowly, although the situation
steadily ymproved dunng the year In particular, there
have been some areas of intense acbwity, notably Brazl,
where we have expanded our presence in Rio de Janeiro

“AVEVA continued its development despite the challenges of the world
economy, delivering a good performance reflecting the fundamental

strengths of the business.”

AVEVA Group plc Drrectors report
10 Annual report 2010



The Power industry tends to have much longer investment
cycles and has not been as susceptible to the global
downturn wath our business i both fossil-fuelled and
nuclear builds continuing to grow steadily Marine chd
suffer from a dramatic decline 1n new build orders and
concerns over funding for the existing sknp order backlog

By making some hard decisions at the start of the year

to adjust the cost base we have been able to expand the
business duning the year to explowt new opportumties

We have recruited high calibre people into both our office
network and the AVEVA NET orgamsabon, which has already
benefited our sales There have been a number of sgmficant
sales of AVEVA NET during the year and a strengtheming
husiness pipeline as we have built up our specialbist
business development team focused on sales into the
owner operator market We have already started on
building up our service delivery capabibity in order

to serve this £500 tnlbion market

Global performance

Providing a consistent high quabty tevel of product
performance and customer service has become 1ncreasingly
wmportant during the last year, as customers who already
operate internationally seek to introduce further efficencies
nto thewr own operations by increasing the use of 24/7
working and mgh value enqineenng centres

Key to the success 1n winming customers away from our
competitors has been the mgh quality of support and

service we can offer from our 35 locations, 1 addition
to the partners who work with us n some regions

Asia Paafic - Revenue £50.5 milion

(2009 - £67.1 million)

Whilst we have had to adjust for a rapid dechinein
Manne sales, growth was delered in other parts of the
business, 1n parhicular the Chinese Power market We also
made good progress 1n sales of AVEVA NET to both Plant
and Manne customers Aswa has borne the brunt of the
declinen imitial fee hcence sales, as the majonity of
Asian business tends to be based on the imtbal fee sales
as opposed to the rental model, which 1s more prevalent
n other regions

Due to the very high number of sales 1n Marine durning
the latter part of 2008/09 and the ongoing opportumties
of providing start up assistance to new customers, suppert
levels were maintained in China Marine However, we were
also able to focus these resources on selling AVEVA NET
into the rapidly growing market for Product Lifecycle
Management (PLM) solutions withmin the Manne
customer base

Despite the downturn, AVEVA managed to secure
wmportant new contracts with Kyokuyo Stmpyard in
Japan and Samsung n Korea for both Marine and
Plant divisions

In non-Marine markets we made good progress

n secuning important new strateqic contracts This
nctuded collaboration with one of the world’s largest
companies, China National Petroleum Co Petrochemmical
Project Company (CNPC PPCY

Citec Engineering Oy

Overview
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Mr Thomas Back, Application Speciahst

“Most importantly, the system gives us the
ability to generate completely clash-free designs.
Everything will fit when the plant is being bunlt.”

Directors report
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Chief Executive’s review continued

Global performance continued

Americas - Revenue £26.9 milhon

(2009 - £24.4 miltion)

Latin Amenica, particularly wn Brazil, provides an
important development apportumty for the Group
Since the opemng of cur office in Ra de Janawro lastyear,
we have built a tngh quality team and have already
doubled the n1ize of our ongnal office, with plans to
continue mnnginto our sales and customer support
teams The quality of the AVEVA products and thewr
suttabibity for the il and Gas projects in Brazil, along

with the local support, has posihoned AVEVA for strong
growthn thms market for the foreseeable future We have
secured a two year corporate agreement with Petrobras

for the supply of design products

AVEVA products are already being used on many of the
offshore projects starting to be commissioned 1n the
reqion, with new customers Joimng from the Braziban
Engineering, Procurement and Contracting (EPC)
commumty In addihon, AVEVA has the opportumty
to seli the AVEVA Manne products into new shmpyards

which are expected to be commssioned to huild Floating

Production and Storage Offshore (FPSQ) vessels and a
fleet of Very Large Crude Carniers (VLCC)

Performance 1n North America has remawned subdued

As nt previous years our strong and endunng relationships
with many 01l and Gas customers have prowvided stablity

and some growth opportumties We have used the

downturn te build our business development expertise,
with particular focus on deeper penetration of the Owner

Alliance Engineering
Mr Ron Bohannen, Vice President of Engineering

“AVEVA's technology helps us streambine our
engineering process and contnbutes to Alliance
Engineering’s ability to deliver projects at

a lower weight (therefore, lower cost) and
ahead of schedule.”

Operator market in the Umted States, with the aim of
repbcating our recent successes We were pleased with
the mghly successful implementation of AVEVA NET at
Mustang, one of the largest EPC firms in the US

The market 1n Canada was one of the first casuatbes of
the rapid o1l price decline and shows little sign of recovery
n the short term With the oil price at airca US$80 there
15 still uncertainty surrounding the expleitation of o1l
sands reserves i Canada and the high costs of
subsequent environmental impact

EMEA - Revenue £70.9 million (2009 - £72.6 million,

combined former WEMEA and CES regions)

The combined EMEA reqion, which was created last year

from two business regions, has performed very well

throughout the year This reqion has a very diverse |
spread of business and a wide geographc mix with

dwerse dnvers, from the Middle East, up through the (IS,

across to Spain and down as far as South Africa

The Ol and Gas business has performed well Some
notable mghlbghts include a targe rental expansion from
Techmp and our first sigmficant sale n Iraq with AVEVA
products instatled at SIDDCO and ADMA 1n Abu Dhabn,
who have mandated the use of AVEVA products on all
future projects The Power market 1s veryimportant
across the EMEA region, with long-term customers Like
Alstem and AREVA as key players We have extended our
relatienship with AREVA by secuning business from the
AREVA Nuclear Fuels dvision The Manne business, which
15 spread across the region, has been generally flat
throughout the year

AYEVA Group ple [wrectors repart
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“AVEVA has achieved a very strong position as a preferred supplier for many
of the world’s power station providers, both fossil-fuelled and nuclear.”

EMEA has been the region where we have been the most
consistently successful in winming customers away from
our competitors This year we have added 79 new name
customers across the region, with many of these converting
to AVEVA after years of using competitors’ systems

We are also investing 1n the (IS and have seen very
strong sales in this sub reqion AVEVA has won important
new business with customersin the il and Gas and
Power markets Some of these customers will be strategic
n winming further business as we expand1n the region
Of particular note 1s the contract with 0JSC TANECO, the
operator of the new mulhiilhon dollar refinery complex
1n Russia, who will now use AVEVA NET as the consolidahion
tool for all engineering data for this mega project In the
Nuclear power field we have secured KIEP as our second
(IS nuclear designinsttute

End user market trends
We have seen diffening trends 1n each of the man end
user markets duning the year

AVEVA has acheved a very strong posihon as a preferred
supplier for many of the world's power station prowiders,
both fossil-fuelled and nuclear The global span of customers
using AVEVA products on new build power plants can be
seen by our teading posibon with many of the European
suppliers but1s particularly pronounced 1n Asya, wath
some great successes dunng the past yearin Chna
The market for power statons has a very long-lead cycle
and may span a recession but there have been concerns
over the funding of future projects, in particular large
nuclear power projects Although we have notyet seen

a huge upturnin demand for products from this sector,

we antiapate a steady increase in demand for many years
to come, as the current global power generation capaoity
falls well short of predicted consumption even before
taling nto account all of the capacty which 1s due to be
retired 1n the near future

Marine presented us with the most challenges but has
performed prechctably throughout the year We still have
a very busy customer base wn Marine as most customers
are working on orders received over recent years and for
the majonty of customers these orders still stretch out
over the next two or three years Until the market for new
ships returns we expect the market for design tools to
remain subdued However, efficent produchonis paramount
wn a modern shipyard and we plan to extend the use of
the Manne vanant of AVEVA NET to more yards, particularly
n China and Korea

In Ol and Gas, whilst the tar sands projectin Canada
remains slow to recover from the stoppages caused by
uncertainty over commodity prices, most other areas
have remained buoyant In Brazil the market s very
strong, as Petrobras and others rush to capitabse on the
huge oil reserves off the Braziban east coast. We expect
this market to conbnue to grow strongly and further
wnvestment in Brazil1s a key element of our future
planming We see addwbonal opportumties in Russia
and expect to continue to grow our team there following
the strong performance from this reqion duning the
past year With greater stability1in the o1l pnice we are
planning further investment in those regions bikely to
benefit from consistently increased commedity prices
These include Malaysia and the global market for FPSQ
assets, where AVEVA 15 already a leader
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Chief Executive’s review continued

“AVEVA has done very well over the last year and the core strengths in both
our people and products have served to provide confidence to customers in
a difficult year.”

Technology and products

Research and Development continued to be a key
pricnty during the year in order to enhance our
software apphcations and funchonabity The lugh levels
of investment 1n recent years ensure that we have the
most advanced product offening in the industry There
has been a large 1nvestment in consolidating the
developments of recent years and further i/mproving
qualhty This work has been carned out across the entire
product portfolio, with specal focus on those developments
deemed essential for deeper penetration of developing
markets 1n Labin Amenca and Eastern Europe

Integration between applications from multiple vendors
has been gh on the agenda of many Chief Information
Officers and AVEVA has always been a leader in providing
open solutions and investing 1n global standards imbatives
During the last year we have provided more interfaces to
third-party software products than ever before to enable
customers to acheve greater value from their project
and enterpnse information

Last year we acquired a specialist business in Austraha
to manageinstrumentation data The new version of this
nstrumentation product has been delvered and, with
many new customers taking up this product durning the
year, we have receved very positive feedback on the
level of funchionality and the competibveness of our
new sclution

In additron to work on consobidating the core product
range, we have continued to expand the funchonality of
AVEVA NET with many new features added, as we gained
further experience working with o1l majors and large
Chinese smpbuwilders The teams warking on AVEVA NET
have been 1ncreased during the year, with plans in place
to continue the expansion of AVEVA NET and bring to
market a novel web navigation capability within the
coming months

Organisation and people

The AVEVA human resources team played a key role n
successfully transittoming the orgamsation into a shape
and s1ize whnch was needed as we entered the downturn
This was achieved by introeducaing a range of cost saving
measures including a salary freeze, career breaks,
part-time working and some redundancies, both
voluntary and compulsory Once again I would bke to
thank all those affected by this for their understanding
and professionabsm

We have conhinued to expand the sales and support
network and our relatively new office 1n Brazil has
doubled 1 size to cope wath the demands of this exaing
new market for AVEVA products and services We have
also increased staff numbers in Russia and the CIS,
along with some areas within the As1a Pacific regqion
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Since merging two sales regions into one to form

EMEA last year and the rigorous examination of our
cost base, we have made cost savings by rationahsing
some corporate functions and introduced new centrabised
systems to streamline the reporting processes of a very
international business

Outlook

AVEVA has done very well over the last year and the core
strengths n both our people and products have served
to provide confidence to customersn a chfficult year

As the global economc outlook 1mproves, AVEVA1s

well placed to fulfil customers’ requirements through our
world-class products together wath theirincreasingly
high level of sernice demanded We have taken the
opportumty over the past year to evaluate all aspects

of our business and have been continually strengthening
the areas where we see the most opportumty for growth,
n particular increasing the nvestment levelsn AVEVA NET

with our design products we have invested 1n new
geographnes that have grown strongly and we will continue
tonvest and develop offices and people AVEVA has the
nght products and a proven track record which appeal to
customers seeking highly functional products backed by
first class local support and service

Overview
Business review
Corporate Governance

Financial statements

We will continue to seek to maximse organic growth
and to complement 1t wath acquisiions as and when
opportumbes anse which can extend the functionabty
of our products or our market reach

Richard Longdon
Chief Executive
26 May 2010

Surmitemo Heavy Industries - Marine & Enqineering
Dr Masao Takekawa, Director of Construction
Management Dwiston

“The quality and efficiency of our design have
been improved with AVEVA Marine. We believe
these efficient solutions are key ingredients
to success in today's competitive and very
challenging smpbuilding world.”
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Finance Director’s review

Paul Taylor
Finance Director

* Highlights
Sohd operating margins maintained at 339% (2009 - 35%)

Ongoing nvestment 1n Research and Development was
£20 9 mlhon.

Basic earmings pet share were 49 36 pence

(2009 - 62.27 pence)

AVEVA continues to be cash generatwe and net cash and
deposits were £149.7 mlhon {2009 - £126 2 mlbon).

to view the Finance Director’s review ontine
ar.aveva com/2010

Business model

At the core of AVEVA's business 1s the intellectual
property generated 1n 1ts software products The Group
sells1ts proprietary software products by hcensing nghts
to use the software directly to customers through our
network of global sales offices rather than through resellers
or distributors This strategy provides customers with
local sales and support and helps AVEVA to work closely
wath the leading companies pnncipallyin the Ol and Gas,
Power and Manne markets AVEVA's software products
also provide the customer with ‘data for hife’ whereby
current versions of the software are compatible with
previous versions allowing customers to access design
data over a long time span, which 1s essenhial for assets
which can have a life in excess of 20 years Tiis strategy
has helped establish long-term relationships with many
of our customers and several have been users of our
products for over 30 years

At the cornerstone of our business philosophy 1s our
‘right to use’ bcensing model Customers License our
software for a specified number of users by paying an
ntial hicence fee followed by an obhigatory annual fee

or by paying a rental fee over a fixed perod of ime

In both cases, the customer has to continue to pay a fee
n order to use the software The ‘'right to use” model
provides a strong recurring revenue base for AVEVA which
allows us to 1nvest in the future roadmap of our products
This provides visibibity to the customers and allows them
to providenput to the direchon of the products In addition,
customers receive upgrades to software as and when they
become available as well as support and maintenance

AVEVA Group ple Dhrectors report
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Key performance indicators

The Group's key financial and non-finanaal performance
ndhcators are total revenue, adjusted profit before tax,
headcount and adjusted earmngs per share The financial
results for the year ended 31 March 2010 are summarised
below These are discussed as part of the review below

2010 2009
£000 £000 % change

Revenue
Recurring revenue 102,701 94,196 9%
Inmhal bcence fees 35,149 57,741 (39%)
Services 10,484 12,104 {13%)
Total revenue 148,334 164,041 (10%)
Cost of sales
(including Research
and Development costs)  (30,380)  (37.612) {19%)
Gross profit 117,954 126,429
Total operating expenses  (68,745)  (69,780) (2%)
Profit from operations 49,209 56,649 {13%)
Operating margin 33% 35% (2%)
Net bank interest 1,097 2,805 {61%)
Netinterest on
pension scheme {732) (253) 189%
Adjusted profit before tax* 50,685 66,360 (24%)
Profit before tax 49,574 59,201 (16%)
Income tax expense (16,134)  (17.047) (5%)
Profit after tax 33,440 42,154 (21%)
Earmings per share (pence)
- basic 49 36p 62 27p (21%)
- diluted 49.08p 61 98p (21%)
- adjusted basic*

(2009 restated) 50 92p 69 99p (27%)
- adjusted diluted™

(2009 restated) 50 62p 69 67p {27%)

*  Adjusted profit before tax and adjusted earnings per share are caltulated
before amortisation of intangible assets share-based payments,
gain/loss on far vatue of forward foreign exchange contracts and
restructunng costsin the relevant year In addibon, adjusted earmings
per share also include the tax effects of these adjustments

Revenue

Total revenue for the year fell by 10% to £148 3 milhon
compared to £164 0 mmllion last year wath, as previously
disclosed, the Group being impacted by the world recession
Revenue from mbal beence fees in the Manne market
was particularly affected with total fees falbing 39%
from £57 7 mulbon to £35% 1 mlbhon In parbcular, ymbal

Licence fees 1n Asia Paoific fell from £36 8 milbon
to £19 7 milhon reflecting this trend

However the dechine in imbal hicence fees was partly
offset by the robustness of our recurning revenue
consisting of annual fees, rental licence fees and
recurring services Recurring revenue increased by

9% from £94 2 milhon to £102 7 milhion reflecting the
continued renewals of annual fees and rental fees from
our established customer base and new customers
preferning to rent rather than buy the software for
more flexaibility

Services continue to remain a relatively small part of
the business wath associated revenue faling by 13% from
£12 1 milhon to £10 5 malhon althoughin future this s
expected to 1ncrease as sales of AVEVA NET software increase

{7%) The Group's revenue was 1impacted by movements in

foreign exchange rates during the year, particularly 1
US Dollars and Euro Revenue on a constant currency
basis was approximately £141 0 milhon (reported
£148 3 milbon) compared to £164 0 mlbion in 2608/09,
down 14%

Cost of sales and operating expenses

Cost of sales consists of direct cost of selling

(third party royalbes, consultancy costs and agent’s
commission) as well as Research and Development costs
and associated Information Technology costs Total cost
of sales for the year was £30 4 mihon (2008 - £37 6 milhon)
Research and Development costs were £20 9 million
{2009 - £27 3 miliion), a decrease of 23% which reflects
the impact of the restructunng programme that was
carned outn Apnl 2009 Research and Development
costs represented 14% of total revenue (2009 - 17%)
The focus 1n Research and Development has been
targeting our nvestment in key product areas such

as AVEVA NET and to continue to 1mprove the quabty

of AVEVA Manne and AVEVA Plant products

Operating expenses were £68 7 milbon {2009 -
£69 8 milhon) for the year, a decrease of 2% on
the prioryear Ofthe total operating expenses selbng
and distnbution costs were £60 0 mithion (2009 -
£53.2 milbon) and admimstratwe expenses were
£8 7 mllion (2009 - £16 5 mllion)
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“At the core of AVEVA's business is the intellectual property generated in its

software products.”
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Finance Director’s review continued

Cost of sales and operating expenses continued
Selbng and distribution costs increased by 13% during
the year which reflected the addibonalinvestmentsin
our direct sales office network Admimstrative expenses
ncluded a gan on the fair value of forward foreign
exchange contracts of £3 6 milbion (2009 - loss of £3 7
millien) and, excluding these amounts, admimstrative
expenses were broadlyin line

The operating marqin in 2009/10 was maintained at 33%
{2009 - 35%) which was pleasing n tight of the difficult
trading condibons and reflects the benefits of the
restructuring programme implemented 1n the year

Headcount

Total headcount at 31 March 2010 amounted to 820
(2009 - 843), a net decrease of 23 staff The average
headcount duning the year was 815 {2009 - 809) of
which 228 were 1n Research, Development and product
support (2009 - 253), 417 n sales, marketing and customer
support (2009 - 380) and 17010 admmistration (2009 - 176)

As noted below, the restructuring programme
implemented during the year largely affected Research
and Development which resulted in the reduction in the
average headcount Theincrease 1n the average headcount
n sales, marketing and customer support was due to the
continued 1nvestmentn our direct sales offices, particutarly
1n South America and Eastern Europe

Total staff costs for the year were £58 8 milion compared
with £55 5 mllian 1n 2009, an ncrease of 6%

Restructuring

As announced previously, the Group implemented a
restructuring programme at the start of the financal
year to make sure that AVEVA was better equipped to
address the difficult trading environment, whilst also
selectively invesbing to explott growth opportumities
As part of this restructurmg programme, we combined
the Central, Eastern and Seuthern Europe region with
our Western Europe, Middle East and Africa region

to form the European, Middle East and Africa region
(EMEA) As part of this combnation and restructuring

Dwadend per share (Pence) 16 90
16.90p

6 65

418
2.46
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of some of our Research and Development activities,

a number of employees were made redundant gning nse
to a one-off cost of £1 9 milbon The cost of restructuning
was lower than antiopated and annuabised savings were
approximately £5 0 mlhon, which was in bine with our
ymbal expectahons

Finance revenue and finance costs

Finance revenue represents banknterest

recetvable on cash and cash equivalents of £1 1 mlbon
{2009 - £2 8 milhon) and the expected return on the
UK defined benefit pension plan of £1 7 milhion
{2009 - £2 0 milhon) Despite strong growth in cash
and cash equivalents and treasury deposits, bank
wterest receivable fell from £2 8 milbon to £1 1 milhon
due to the sigmficant falls 1n UK and US interest rates
Finance costs prinapally relate to theinterest charge
on the pensicn scheme habibibes of £2 5 million
{2009 - £2 3 mlbhon)

Presentation of adjusted profit before tax

We have amended the calculation of adjusted profit
before tax to include the change in the fair value of
forward foreign exchange contracts as this 1s a non-cash
tem that has become more matenal due to the volatibty
n the underlying exchange rates In the year ended

31 March 2010, there was a gain on the fair value of
forward forexgn exchange rates amounting to £3 6 mlhon
(2009 - loss of £3 7 malbon) Adjusted profit before tax
also takes into account amortisation of intangibles,
share-based payments and restructuning costs totalling
£4 7 milbion (2009 - £3 4 milhon) This resulted in
adjusted profit before tax for the year of £50 7 milhon
(2009 - £66 4 mthon) Profit before tax for the year was
£49 6 mithon compared to £59 2 milhon in 2008/09

Taxation

The Group’s effective tax rate for the year was 32 5%
compared to 28 8% 1n 2008/09 The main reasons for the
ncrease were irrecoverable withholding tax suffered in Asia,
expenses not deductable for tax purposes and adjustments
10 respect of prior years The Group has tax losses of

Net assets (£m) 169 2

£169.2m w

1057

653
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“AVEVA continued to deliver strong cash generation.”

£5 1 milbon {2009 - £3 8 rmlbon) which relate to overseas
subsidiaries for which no deferred tax asset has been
recogmsed (2009 - £0 6 million) The losses can be
carned forward indefimtely

Earnings per share and dividends

Basic earmings per share were 49 36 pence (2009 -
62 27 pence} and diluted earmings per share were
49 08 pence (2009 - 61 98 pence)

Following the change to the presentation of adjusted
profit before tax as noted above, adjusted earmngs per
share has also been amended to reflect the changes 1n
the fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts
Therefore adjusted basic earnings per share, which

1s calculated before amortisation of intangibles, gain
on the fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts,
restructuring costs and share-based payments and the
asso0ated tax effects, were 50 92 pence (2009 - 69 99
pence) Dluted adjusted earmings per share on the same
basis were 50 62 pence (2009 - 69 67 pence) The Directors
believe that adjusted earmngs per share provide a more
representative presentation of the underlying performance
of the business

Comparative higuresn the finanoal statements for
adjusted profit before tax and adjusted basic and diluted
earmngs per share have been restated accordingly to
reflect this changein presentation

The Board of Directors recommend payment of a

final dwvidend of 13 9 pence (2009 - 6 5 pence) which,
together with the intenm dwidend of 3 O pence (2009 -
2 86 pence), gives a total dnwidend for 2009/10 of

16 ¢ pence (2009 - 9 36 pence), an 81% ncrease over
2008/09 Subject to approval at the Annual General
Meeting, the final dvidend will be paid on 30 July 2010

to shareholders on the register on 25 June 2010

Balance sheet and cash flows

AVEVA's balance sheet continued to strengthen

duning the year and at 31 March 2010 net assets were
£169 2 milhon compared to net assets of £143 1 milbon
at 31 March 2009 with increased cash and treasury
deposits being the main driver behind this

Non-current assets at 31 March 2010 were £42 1 mllion
(2009 - £42 2 milhon) which was 1n bine wath the pnor year

Investments m intangible assets dunng the year ncluded
software licences for components used 1n the suite of
AVEVA products at a cost of £1 2 milhon Investments

n tangible assets of £1 5 mibon (2009 - £3 7 mllon)
were for replacement computer equipment and the
refurbishment of offices

Current assets increased to £195 6 million from

£183 7 milbon prinapally due to the increase 1n

cash and cash equivalents and treasury deposits of
£23 5 milbon from £126 2 mlhon to £149 7 milhon
AVEVA continues to be cash generative and the Group has
continued to focus closely on cash management during
the year particularly on the collection of customer
recewables and repatniation of cash to the UK from
overseas subsidhanes Total cash and deposits held in the
UK at 31 March 2010 represented 85% of the total cash
and depesits balance (2009 - 69%) As noted below,
treasury deposits represent deposits with an onginal
matunty of six months following the amendment to the
Group’s treasury pohicy The Group has no debt

Cash generated from operating activities before taxn
the penod amounted to £47 7 mlhcn {2009 - £58 7 milhion)
Cash conversion, measured by cash generated from
operating activities before tax as a percentage of profit
from operahons, was 97% compared to 104% 1n 2008/09
which continues to reflect the quality of earmngs and
results of these cash management imbatves

Trade and other recewables were £44 1 milhion

(2009 - £56 8 mithon) which partly reflects the reduction
1n revenue but also continued focus on collechon of
customer recewvables Accounts recewable s also net
of the prowision for imparment of £6 6 million (2009
- £4 8 rmlhon) which reflects the Group’s continued
prudent view of the collectabibty of accounts recewvable

Current hahbbes totalled £48 9 milben at 31 March 2010
(2009 - £56 6 mlhon) which included deferred revenue
of £26 9 mlhon (2009 - £31 1 mlbon), and trade payables
and accruals of £22 0 milhon (2009 - £25 5 mllion)
Nen-current babibties include retirement benefit
obligations of £13 1 milhon (2009 - £8 & mithon) This
mainly relates to the UK defined benefit pension plan
which had a deficit under IAS 19 of £11 7 milhion

at 31 March 2010 (2009 - defiait of £7 6 million)
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Finance Director’s review continued

“The Group makes substantial investments in Research and Development
in enhancing existing products and introducing new products.”

Balance sheet and cash flows continued

The increase 1n the defiot was caused by increased
babhites from £36 3 million to £52 4 milhon due to
the updated assumption for discount rate This was
partly offset by an increase in the fair value of the
scheme assets from £28 7 milbon to £40 7 mllion
at 31 March 2010

Capital structure

The authorised share capital of the Company s
120,000,000 ordinary shares of 3 33 pence each

(2009 - 90,000,000) The1ssued share capital at

31 March 2010 was 67,928,208 ordinary shares of

3 33 pence each (2009 - 67,818,868) During the year
the AVEVA Group Employee Benefit Trust 2008 purchased
89,016 ordinary shares in the Companyn the open
market at an average pnice of £7 29 per share for total
consideration of £653,000 1n order to satisfy awards
made under the AVEVA Group Management Bonus Deferred
Share Scheme 2008 At 31 March 2010, the Trust owned
122,770 ordinary shares in the Company

Treasury policy

The Group treasury policy aims to ensure that the capital
held 1s not put at nsk and the treasury funchon 1s managed
under poliaies and procedures approved by the Board
These polbicies are designed to reduce the financial nsk
ansing from the Group’s normal trading achvibes, which
primanly relate to credit, interest, hquidity and currency
nsk Further details of these risks are contarned at note
24 The Group 1s, and expects to continue to be, cash
positive and currently holds net deposits The treasury
pobeyincludes counterparty bimits which are adhered to
Dunng the year the treasury pohcy was updated to enable
deposits with an onginal matunty of up to six months to
be placed with banks with a high credit rating

Dunng the year the Group had a bank overdraft

facility of approxamately £0 9 million (SEK 10 milhon)
(2009 - £0.8 milhon, SEK 10 mulhon) n Sweden, aimed at
managing short-term fluctuations in cash of which Eml
had been drawn down at 31 March 2010 (2009 - £mt) The
Group has a net funding requirement tn Sterbing due to the
majority of Research and Development costs being incurred
n the UK The revenue of the Group 1s predormnantly in
foreign currency, with approximately 35% n US Dollar
and 25% n Euro The overseas entthes incur costs n thewr
local functional currency, which acts as a parbal net

hedge Any cash flows which cannot be offset against
each other result 1n a net currency exposure and where
possible these exposures are hedged These hedges aim
to minumse the adverse effect of exchange rate movements,
without eliminating all upside potental

Review of principal risks and uncertainties
AVEVA has continued to be successful during the year,
but as with any orgamisation there are a number of
potential risks and uncertainties which could have a
matenalimpact on the Group's long-term performance
Where possible the Group seeks to mitigate these nsks
through 1ts system of internal controls but this can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
materal losses

The prinaipal nsks and uncertawntes faced by the Group
are as follows

Protection of the Group’s intellectual property rights

The Group’s success has been built upon the development
ofts substantialintellectual property nghts and protection
of this remains critical The Group generally protects its
proprietary software products by hcensing nghts to use
the apphcation, rather than selling or hicensing the
computer source code Infringement of the Group’s
intellectual property nghts by third parties orits farlure
to defend infringement claims from third parbes could
cause damage to the business The Group uses third party
technology to encrypt, protect and restrict access to its
products Access imtations and nghts are also defined
within the terms of the software hicence agreement and
the Group seeks to ensure that sts ntellectual property
rights are appropnately protected by law wherever possible

Dependency on key markets

AVEVA generates a substanbal amount of its income

from customers whose main business s derived from
capital projects dnven predominantly by growth 1n the
Oiland Gas, Power and Marine markets The current world
economtic candibions may adversely affect gur finanaal
performance Funding constraints may cause the delay of
major new projects and customers who operate in the 01l
and Gas, Marine and Power industries may reduce capital
expendrture budgets further Future successis dependent
on growth and conbnued demand from within these markets
These industries are cyclical and subject to fluctuations
i the pnice of o1l and general economic conditions
Such downturns, pricing pressures and restructunngs
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may cause delays and reductions in expendhture by many of
these compames and reduced demand for our products
and services A recurrence of these industry patterns,

as well as general domestic and foreign economic condibons
and other factors that reduce spending by compames i
these industnes, could harm our operating resultsn

the future

Competition

AVEVA operates in highly compettive markets that
serve the il and Gas, Power and Marine markets If we
do not respond effectively we may lose market share
and the business could suffer We believe that there are a
relatwely small number of sigmficant compebtors serving
our markets However, some of these compebtors could,
n the future, pose a greater competitve threat, particularly
1f they consobdate or form strategic or commercial
relationships among themselves or with larger, well
capitabised companies

Foreign exchange risk

Exposure to foreign currency gains and losses can he
matenal to the Group, with approximately 80% of the
Group's revenue denominated 1n a forewgn currency, of
which our two largest are US Dollar and Euro The Group
enters into forward foreign currency contracts to manage
the currency nisk where matenal The overseas subsidianes
trade 1n their own currencies, which also acts as a natural
hedge against currency movements The Groupisalso
exposed to foreign currency translation risk on the
translation of 1ts netinvestmentinto Sterling

Recruitment and retention of employees

AVEVA's success has been built on the quality and reputation
of its products and services, which rely almost entirely
on the quality of the people developing and delivering
them Managing this pool of mghly skilled and motivated
ndmduals across all disciphines and geographies remains
key to our ongoing success The Group endeavours to
ensure that employees are motivated by their work and
there are regular apprasals, with staff encouraged to
develop their sklls

Identification and successful integration

of acquisitions

The Group expects to continue to review acquisition
targets as part of its strategy Theintegration of any
acquisitions also 1nvolves a number of umgue nisks,
ncluding dwersion of management’s attenhon, failure

Recurning revenue (£m)

£102.7m
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to retain key personnel of the acquired business, failure
to reahse the benefits anhcipated to result from the
acquisition, system integrabion and nisks associated
with unanhopated events or lahibties

Research and Development

The Group makes substantial investments 1n Research
and Development 1in enhancing existing products and
introducing new products There are many risks 1n
software development This process s managed by
developing a product roadmap that 1dentifies the
schedule for new products and the enhancements that
will be made to successive versions of existing products
Qur scftware products are complex and may contain
undetected errors, failures, performance problems or
defects Furthermore f new products or enhancements
are introduced which do not meet customer requirements
or competitors introduce a rnval product which better
meets the requirements of the market, this may have a
matenal impact on the long-term revenue and profit

International operations

The Group operates in Continental Europe, the Middle
East, the United States, South America and Asia Pacific
and s required to comply with the local laws, regulations
and tax legislation n each of these Junsdichons Sigmficant
changes n these laws and regulations or failure to comply
with them could lead to addibonal abibbes and penalbies
The Group manages its overseas operations by employing
locally quabfied persennel who are able to provide expertise
n the appropnate language and an understanding of
local culture, custom and prachice Bependence on local
management can increase the nsks of Group policy not
bewng correctly apphed, especially where dverse languages
and cultures exist The Group endeavours to migate
these nsks through oversight by reqional managementin
each of the three major zones of the Group, Asia Paafic,
EMEA and the Amenicas, as well as through the use of
local professional adwisers

V/

Paul Taylor
Finance Director
26 May 2010

Investment in Research
and Development (€m)

£20.9m

273
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139
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Corporate social responsibility report

“As a Group we seek to operate responsibly and ethically in all areas of
our business. We have a strong ethical belief in the way business should
be conducted.”

As a Group we seek to operate responsibly and etcally
in all areas of our business We have a strong ethical
beliefin the way business should be conducted and how
employees should be treated We have integrated social,
emaronmental and ethcal polioes into the way we do
business and how we interact with our stakeholders
wcluding our shareholders, employees, customers,
supplers and local communtties The Chief Executive
has Board responsibilines for matters relating to the
Group's cuiture and ethical poticies, environmental
matters and customer and employee 1ssues These matters
are reviewed by the Board as part of 1ts management of
nsk and maintenance of 1ts core values s vital The Board
considers that it has sufficent information in order
to be able to assess these nsks

Customers and suppliers

We seek to be honest and fair in our relationships wath
both customers and suppliers. AVEVA has relatively few
preferred supplers, and evaluates potential suppliers
based on several factors including vendar policies,
reputation and contractual terms and condhtions

We have a policy not to offer, pay or accept bribes
or to accept substantial favours We encourage our
supphers and customers to adopt the same prinaiptes
to which we ourselves aspire

We offer the ighest level of support and continue to
enhance our product offering to ensure our customers’
effective use of our software thus mmmising waste
and improving efficency The Group 1s committed to
ts customers and has dedicated support staff witton
1ts Group Solutions Centre to handle all support calls
and capture customer feedback

In addition to sponsonng a vanety of industry trade
shows, AVEVA hosted a number of customer focused
events dunng the year, including the AVEVA Marine User
Meeting (AMUM}1n Shanghan, China, and the International
Symposium for Engineenng Information Technology (ISEIT),
held in Berbin, Germany As 1n previous years, these events
provided a valuable industry forum to build relationships
with the customer base and potential new customers,

to obtain feedback on the product offering and to
promote best practice 1n the use of our software

Following on from the success of the ISEIT and AMUM
conferences, AVEVA announced 1n 2010 an exating change
to thenr successful conference senes with the introduction
of the AVEVA World Summts The new Summits will become
AVEVA's premier customer events held 1n multiple locations
around the world Theywill continue to focus on strategic
business, industry and technology 1ssues critical to the
success of existing and future AVEVA customers

Employees

The Group now has over 800 employees of whom

over 500 are based overseas 2009/10 saw a review

of our growth strategy 1n the bight of changes in the
global economy and the refocusing of our Investments
which resulted wn some )ob losses Alternative options,
ncluding part-bme working, retraining and career
breaks, were offered to ensure that key skills were
retained Job losses were kept to a mnmmum so as

not to damage the longer-term business goals

We are dependent on the drive and commitment

of our employees, they are our most important and
valuable asset and key to our continuing success We
have continued to review the skills and experience
needed to fill our cntical roles and continue to recruit
1n certain areas Retentiort and skill development 1s
regularly remewed by the Board as part of the risk
management process

We recogmse that we must excel :n the management
of people and support employees to develop their careers
within the Group, which assists towards maintaining

a high level of marate Staff turnover remains well
below the industry norm and positive retention
programmes are being developed by the Group HR team
Staff retention rate1s a KPI which 1s monitored regqularly
and at 31 March 2010, the retention rate was 93%
(excluding the impact of the redundancy programme
which was completed yn 2008) (2009 - 93%) We aim
to be an employer of choice by

& aiming to recruit, train and develop hgh cabibre
people and helping them to subscnbe to our values
while continuing to grow the business 1n key areas,

+ providing clean, healthy and safe working condinions,
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* bewng an equal opportumity employer and not
tolerating any discnmmnatory actions or harassment
of our employees, we are proud of the diverse nature
of our workforce,

e recogmsing the requirement to prowide facihihes for
disabled employees and taking all reasonable measures
to meet any special needs an employee mght have,

¢ encouraging fuel-efficent commuting through the
pravision of car share networks, cycte sheds, showers
and changing faclities 1n the UK offices, and

* offering flexible benefits in the UK to allow
employees to select benefits to suit their hfestyle,
and an Employee Assistance Programme to provide
independent support for a vanety of both work
and non-work related 1ssues

AVEVA will continue to review 1ts benefits programme
throughout the Group to ensure that valued and
cost-effective benefits are offered to all employees
whilst remaimng competitive The Group’s employment
policies are conbinucusly under review and are aimed at
meeting or exceeding the legislative requirements in the
countnes in whch the Group operates Wherever possible,
these promote a cansiderate and flexible approach to
work/life balance As part of tms, the Group continues
to review and 1mprove communication with employees
and has conducted surveys and held forums with
employees to gain their views on key 1ssues

Training and development

E-Learning

In support of the development and retention of staff,
this year the Group launched E-Learming to all employees

©ICRC/Ch Von Toggenburg
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across the Group to enable them to access techmcal and
generic traimng matenal Thisis particularly swnted to an
employee base so widely spread across different locations

This imtative 1ncludes bespoke traymng for new
emptloyees and information for speafic groups such
as graduates, managers, etc

Central Induction Programme

Our successful Central Inducton Programme has
continued to be enjoyed by new recruits and proved
very beneficialan providing information and a welcome
to the Company This1s now being supplemented with
the E-Learming programme and local induction plans
Dunng the year over 50 new employees attended

the courses hosted wn Cambndge

Management development training programme
Managing employees 1n a changing and demanding
orgamsation with such diverse cultures and numerous
locations brings a number of challenges AVEVA has
developed a traiming programme and a learming
framework to provide support for the management
team The management development course has been
extended to include chfferent levels of management and
15 led by ourinternal Traimng and Development Manager

Graduate training programme

The AVEVA graduate training programme has now been
extended to include graduates in our EMEA Sales Division
andn 2010 will be extended further to include North Amenca
and non-R&D funchions such as business strateqy and sales
Duning the year an addihonal four new graduates were hired
and will underge a two year graduate traimng programme
gaimng expenence from different discipbines n the Group
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Corporate social responsibility report continued

Training and development continued

Group-wide appraisal scheme

Developing skalls1s important to indwiduals and to AVEVA
- developing people helps move the Group forward and
helps mantain the respect and reputation of our staff
with our customers The apprasal process therefore

¢ ensures staff receive regular, constructive feedback
on their performance,

* links)ob descriptions and indiwvidual objectives with
AVEVA's business plans, and

¢ sets and reviews personal skill development goals

Health and safety

We have a legal and moral responsibihity to ensure
the safety and well being of all our employees whlst
carrying out their duties on behalf of the Group and
also to maintain a safe environment for customers and
other visitors whilst on our premises Health and Safety,
Fire Safety and Electnical Safety audits are carmed out
on a regular basis Inthe last twelve months we have
had one RIDDOR reportable acaident which resulted in
no further action As a global business, our employees
undertake travel to many areas of the world to visit
customers’ sites or to assist customers in the
deployment and testing of our products The Group
regularly takes advice from the UK Foreign Office,
the World Health Orgamsation and stmlar orgamisatiens
concermng health and safety wn the various regions
where we gperate (for example we regularly updated
employees on advice this year relating to the HIN1wvirus
and prowvided addihonal precautions 1n the workplace
to prevent the spread of infection)

Environment

As a developer of software the Company has no
manufactunng facibibes and therefore the Group

1s classed as “low impact” in environmental terms.
The majonity of sales are for software which1s delvered
electromcally to customers Our software products
are created by very knowledgeable, talented indwiduals
using computers and a vanety of software development
tools There are no harmful chemicals or anything that
could qive nse to noxious waste employed 1n the process
We purchase energy saving screens which are MPRII
and TCO 03 compbant We have this year also had a survey
carned out by the Carbon Trust to give us guidance on
further adjustments we can make to cut down on our
carbon footpnint We use third party recychng vendors
to assist us with the disposal of computer hardware 1n
an environmentally fmendly manner The Group achively
undertakes recycling of waste products with printer
toner, paper, cardboard and plastic recycled in many
locations We encourage employees to undertake
recycling as much as possible

Travel

We encourage and support environmentally considerate
travel to work arrangements at all our principal office
locations, according to local aircumstances At our Cambnidge
headquarters this includes encouraging employees to
cycle to work, share carjourneys or use public transport
There are a number of employees who take advantage of
the excellent faolities for cychists with staff encouraged
to use these International travelis important to support
and promote our business worldwide The level of
nternational travel1s monitored on a regular basis

and ways to reduce travel investigated
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Video and web conferencing 1s ubbised whenever practicable  Employees are encouraged to partiopate personally 1n
Recentinvestments to our core ITinfrastructure across chantable and commumty activibes with the Group also
the Group has enabled more effective commumcation/ gift matching the efforts of employees who took part
collaborabion and 1s expected to continue to improve in the Chariots of Fire Charity Marathon, the Oxford
operational efficenaes in the future to Cambndge Bike Ride and Red Nose Day
Educational partnerships During the past year we have donated £36,000 to a wide
Skills shortages continue to be a challenge 1n most range of organisations as summarised helow
engineering compames and 1t will take some time East Anglian Air Ambulance
for the recent increases 1n the number of engineering East Anglian Air Ambulance was founded 1n 2000
students at umversines and techmical colleges to close The chanty provides 365 days a year air ambulance
the slalls gap that currently exasts In recogmtion of tins,  serwice for Cambndgeshire, Norfolk and Suffolk,
and n additton to 1ts own 1n-house graduate recruitment  which 1s 11% of the total area of England
schemes, AVEVA actively supports the work of educational East Anghian Children’s Hospice (EACH)
establishments and government bodies around the world
EACH supports famibies throughout therr expenence of canng
to narrow the skills gap The AVEVA Acadermc Imtiative
for children with bife-threatening or fe-limting illnesses
15 a Group-wide programme wherehy the Comgpany
* works with umversities and techmcalinstitutes to Mid-Anglia General Practitioner Accident Service (MAGPAS)
MAGPAS has provided emergency caren Cambndgeshire
promote the use of AVEVA products within undergraduate
courses and postaraduate research prajects, and Peterborough since 1971 and works in partnership with
the East Anghan Awr Ambulance and the East of England
* works with government agencies to re-skill engineers  Ambulance Service Trust
for employment in other disophines, and Arthur Rank Hospice
s works with engineenng bodies to encourage school Arthur Rank Hospice provides speqialist palliative care
leavers to pursue careers In engineering to people lving throughout much of Cambndgeshire.
The company provides both software and training support The Haspice q;ffers 2 Sa::c’ fendly and SUPTT?E
to enable engineenng students to gain hands-on expenence E::hr onment for those affected by cancer:n other
of the latest technologies and use these to undertake miting1linesses The staff work to prov: et,he best
levels of end-of-bfe care to 1improve patients’ quality
a variety of academic and prachical projects directly of life, while also supporting their relatives and carers
apphcable to the industries in which they will work ’
In the 2009/10 financial year AVEVA provided supportto Headway
Headway promotes understanding of all aspects of bran
Asia Pacfic region: wnjury and to provide information, support and services to
Over 30 umversities, colleges and mgh schoolsinChina,  peoplewath a brain 1mury, theirr fambes and carers
Incha, Korea, Malaysia, Singapore and Taiwan Macmillan Cancer Support
EMEA: Macmsllan Cancer Support s a source of support, helping
More than 15 umversihies and colleges in Algena, with all the things people affected by cancer want and need
gwéz::‘:;gntﬁ' S:rmany, Italy, Russia, Serbna, Span, International Committee of the Red Cross
The International Commttee of the Red Cross, or ICRC,
Amencas: 15 2 humamtanan orgamsation which aims to help those
Seven umversities, colleges and postgraduate institutes  caught up in armed conflicts around the globe
1n North Amenica and Canada The Prince’s Trust
In addition, AVEVA has donated n excess of $800,000-worth  The Prince’s Trust, founded 1n 1976 by The Prince of Wales,
of enqineering software and provided free, speciat traiming  has become the UK's leading youth chanty, offenng a range
courses to US imtiatives aimed at re-skiling designers and ~ of opportumties including travmng, persenal development,
engineers from the declimng auto industry and upgrading ~ business start-up support, mentoring and advice
::;:grl;s::::‘:?c::cgedemgners re-entenng the plant The Outward Bound Trust
The Outward Bound Trust’s mssion 1s to unlock the potential
AVEVA sees 1ts Academc Inthative as a wvital strategic n young people through discovery and adventure in the wild
investment that will bring long-term benefits to the
engineering industres around the world Help for Heroes
Help for Heroes1s a reqistered chanity providing support
Community involvement to service men and women wounded 1n current conflicts
The Group 15 1nvolved 1n a number of chantable and Marie Cune Cancer Care
good causes The Group’s policy has been to continue Mane Curie Cancer Care provides free nursing care to
to support local chanties 1n the areas that we operate cancer patients and those with other terminalillnesses
as well as a number of national and international chanhes n their own homes
Directers report AVEVA Greup plc
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1. Nick Prest CBE, aged 57 (appointed 11 January 2006)

Charman

Nick Prest joined the Board of AVEVA 1n January 2006 Following a spell

at the Mimstry of Defence at the outset of his career Nick jorned Alws,
the defence contractor, 1n 1982, becorming Chief Executive in 1989 and
Chairman and Chief Executive 1n 1996 Nick left Alwis followangits acquisihon
by BAE Systems in 2004, by which ime the company had become a leading
nternabonal business 1n mibitary land systems In addition to ns position
at Alwis, Nick had a prominent role 1n defence industry representation,
serving as Chairman of the Defence Manufacturers” Assooation and Vice
Chairman of the National Defence Industries Council In additien to being
Chairman of AVEVA, Nick 1s atso Chairman of Cohert ple, the AIM quoted
defence techmcal services Group, and Chairman of Shephard Group,

a prvately owned media business

3. Paul Taylor FCCA, aged 43 (appointed 1 March 2001)

France Director and Company Secretary

Paul Taylor 1s a Fellow of the Assomahon of Chartered Cerbfied Accountants
and joined AVEVA 1n 1989 He was heawvily 1nvolved 1n the flotatron process
and has been responsible for UK accounting and for the development of its
overseas subsidianes, including adherence to Group standards Between 1998
and 2001 Paul was also UK Director of Human Resources and was appointed to
the position of Finance Director and Company Secretary of AVEVA Group plcon
1 March 2001 Before joiming AVEVA, Paul trained within the accountancy
profession before moving to Phbips Telecommunications (UK), where he was
responsible for the management accounts of 1ts public sectors dmision
During the year Paul was appointed a Non-Executwe Director of Amte plc

5. Jonathan Brooks, aged 54 (appointed 12 July 2007)
Non-Executive Dhrector

Jonathan Brooks yoined AVEVA 1n July 2007 He currently holds a number

of Directorships with technology based compames Hets a Non-Executive
Director of Xyratex Limited, a Nasdaq-bsted provider of enterpnse class
data storage sub systems and network technology, and e2v technologies plc,
an LSE listed manufacturer of speciabised components and sub systems Hets
also Charman of Picochip Inc , a private equity company developing wireless
processars Between 1995 and 2002, he was Chief Financial Qfficer and a
Director of ARM Holdings plc

7. Hervé Couturier, aged 31 (appointed 1 April 2010)

Non-Executive Director

Hervé Couturter joined the AVEVA Board in Apnl 2010 Since 2008 he has
been Executive Vice President of SAP AG's Technology Group He also serves

as a board member for SimCorp A/S, a public Damish software company,
and has held management positions at a number of IT companies including
Business Objects, the worldwide leader of business intelhgence solutians,
now part of SAP, 51 Corperation, a provider of software for finanqal and payment
services, and XRT, a leading European treasury management software company,
now part of the Sage Group PLC Hervé holds both an engineenng degree and
a Master of Scrence degree from the Ecole Centrale Panistn France He began
s career at IBM n 1982, where he held various engineering and business
positions through untl 1997

Overview
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2, Richard Longdon, aged 54 (2ppointed 16 August 1994)

Chief Executive

Richard Longdon recewved an engineering traiming in the defence industry
then gained expenence in the project management of high value engineenng
projects He moved into sales and held a series of international sales and
marketing positions He jowned AVEVA 1 1984 and shortly afterwards was
made marketing manager faor the process products In January 1992, he
relocated to Frankfurt where he was respensible for setting up and runmng
the Group’s German office He returned to the UK as part of the management
buyout team 1 1994, taking responsibibity for the Group’s worldwide sates
and marketing actvibes, before being appointed Managing Director in

May 1999 He took overas Group Chief Executve 1n December 1999

4. David Mann, aged 65 (appointed 8 June 1999)

Non-Executive Director and Senior Independent Dhrector

David Mann entered the Informatan Technology industry after reading
Mathematics and Theoretical Physics at Cambndge tniversity From 1969
to 1994 he worked for Logica plc where he became Head of Worldwide
Operations, then Group Chief Executive and finally Deputy Chairman He1s
currently Non-Executive Chairman of Vel Group ple and Non-Executve Deputy
Chawrman of Chartens plc (both quoted on AIM) He s a Past President of
the British Computer Society and a Past Master of the Worshipful Company
of Information Technologists 1n the City of London

6. Philip Dayer, aged 59 (appointed 7 January 2008)

Non-Executive Director

Phip Dayer qualified as a chartered accountant and pursued a corporate
finance career in investment banking, specialising n adwising small and
mid-market UK compamies He was first appointed an Advisory Directorin
1983 of Barclays Merchant Bank Limited and since then has held the pesihon
of Corporate Finance Director with a number of banks He retired fram Hoare
Govett Limited 1n 2004 Phabp was a finanoal consultant to 0JSC Rosneft Oil
Company, the Russtan state-owned ot and gas company, on their flotation
n 2006 Philip1s a Non-Executive Director of Dana Petroleum ple, JSC
Kazmunaigas Exploration Production and Navigators Underwriting Agency
Limited, Semor Independent Director of Cadogan ple and Arden Partners plc
and Chairman of IP PLUS ple
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Principal activities
The prinapal activities of the Group are the marketing and development of computer software and services for engineering and related solutions
The Company 1s a holding company

Results and dividends
The Group made a profit for the year after taxation of £33 4 million (2009 - £42 2 million} Revenue was £148 3 milbon (2009 - £164 0 million)
and compnised software licences, software maintenance and services

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dwvidend of 13 3 pence per ordinary share (2009 - 6 5 pence) If approved at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting, the final dvidend wall be pavd on 30 July 2010 to shareholders on the register at close of business on 25 June 2010

Business review and future developments
A review of the Group's operations during the year and 1ts plans for the future 1s given in the Chairman'’s statement, the Chnef Executive’s review
and the Finance Director’s review

The Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) used by AVEVA to measure 1ts own performance at the Group level are total revenue, adjusted proht before tax,
adjusted earmngs per share and headcount The figures for the year ended 31 March 2010 are set out in the Finance Drector’s review on pages 16 to 21,
together with figures for the previous year and a discussion of the prinaipal risks and uncertainties facing the Group

Suppliers’ payment practice
It1s the Group’s policy that payments to supphers are made 1n accordance wath those terms and conditions agreed between the Company and
its suppliers, provided that all trading terms and condhtions have been cemplied with by the other party

The Company has £ml trade crediters (2009 - £mil) At 31 March 2010, the Group had an average of 18 days’ purchases owed to trade creditors
{2009 - 18 days")

Research and Development
The Group continues an acbve programme of Research and Development which covers updating of and extension to the Group’s range of products

Intellectual property
The Group owns intellectual property both in its software tools and the products derived fram them The Directors consider such properties to be
of sigmficant value to the business

Financial instruments
The Group's financal nsk management objectives and pobaes are discussed 1n note 24 to the Consoiidated financial statements

Going concern

The Group has sigmficant finanaat resources, 15 profitable and has a strong positien n the markets it serves At 31 March 2010 the Group had bank
and cash and treasury deposit balances of £149 7 milhon (2009 - £126 2 mliton) and no debt As a result, the Directors beheve that the Group 1s well
placed to manage business risks successfully desmite the uncertain economc outlook

Therefore after malang enquires and considering the cash flow forecasts for the Group, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group
has adequate resources to continue 1ts operational existence for the foreseeable future For this reason they continue to adopt the going concern
basis 1n preparing the financial statements

Directors and their interests

The Directors who served during the year under review are shown below
Nick Prest (Chairman)

Dawid Mann (Non-Executive Director and Semor Independent Director)
Jonathan Brooks {Non-Executive Director)

Phihp Dayer {Non-Executive irector)

Richard Longdon (Chief Executive)

Paul Taylor {(Finance Director and Company Secretary)

On 1 Apnl 2010, Hervé Coutuner was appointed a Non-Executive Director On the same date 1t was also announced that Bavid Mann will retire
as Non-Executive Director and Semor Independent Director from the Board at the next Annual General Meeting
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Other statutory information continued

Directors and their interests continued
The interests (all of which are beneficial) in the shares of the Company of Directors who held office at 31 March 2010 1n respect of transactions
notifiable under Misclosure and Transparency Rule 3 1 2 that have been disclosed to the Company are as follows

2010 2000

3 33 pence 3 33 pence
ordwinary shares crdinary shares

Nick Prest 16,690 16,690
Dawvid Mann 26,700 26,700
Jonathan Brogks - -
Phitip Dayer 7,000 7,000
Richard Longdon 364,970 350,000
Paul Taylor 59,984 50,000

No changes took place 1n the interests of Directors 1n the shares of the Company between 31 March 2010 and 26 May 2010
Hervé Couturier had no interests 1n the Company on the date of his appointment (1 April 2010)
Drectars” share options are disclosed 1n the Directors’ remuneration report on pages 40 to 45

No Director had a matenialinterest 1n any sigmificant contract, other than a service contract or contract for services, with the Company or any of its
subsihanes at any tume during the year

Resolutions will be submitted to the Annual General Meeting for the election of Hervé Couturter and the re-election of all other current Diractors
(other than Dawid Mann) Bnef biograpmcal details of all Directors, including those who are proposed for re-elechion, appear on page 27

Conflict of interest

Throughout the year the Company has had the proceduresin place to deal with conflict situations and these have been operated effectively During
the year no conflicts arose which would require the Board to exercise authority or discretion 1n relation to such conflicts Changes to the Articles are
propesed to be made at the Annual General Meeting and these are described wn the appenchx to the Notice of Annual General Meeting

Takeover Directive Disclosures

The addyhonal information required to be disclosed under the Takeover Directive Disclosures 1s set out below The disclosures below are1n some cases
a summary of the relevant provisions of the Company's Articles of Associabion and the relevant full provisions can be found n the Articles, whch are
available for inspection at the Company’s registerad office

Share capital
The nghts attaching to the Company’s shares are set out 1n1ts Articles of Association At 31 March 2010, the Company's 1ssued share capital consisted
of a single class of ordinary shares with a nomnatvalue of 3 33 pence

Sulbyect to any restrichons referred to 1n the next section, members may attend any general meeting of the Company VYoting rights attachng to the
ordinary shares are described in the next section

Members can declare final dividends by passing an ordinary resolutien but the amount of the dwadends cannot exceed the amount recommended by
the Board The Board can pay intenm dividends provided the distributable profits of the Company justfy such payment. The Board may, 1f authorised
by an ordinary resolution of the members, offer any member the nght to elect to recewe new shares, whmch will be credhted as fully pad, mstead of
theircash dvidend Any dividend which has not been claimed for twelve years after 1t became due for payment will be forfeited and will then revert
to the Company

If the Company 15 wound up, the hquidator can, with the sanction of the members by speaial resolubion and any other sanction required by law, dnade

ameng the members all or any part of the assets of the Company and he/she can value any assets and determine how the diwisions shall be carred out
as hetween the members or different classes of members The hquidator can also transfer the whole or any part of the assets to trustees upon any

trusts for the benefit of the members No members can be compelled to accept any asset which would give them any hability

There are no speaal control nghts 1n relation to the Company's shares

Subyect to any restrichons below, on a show of hands every member who 1s present at a general meeting has one vote on each resolution and,
an a poll, every member who 1s present has one vote on each resolution for every share of which he/she1s the reqistered member

A resolubon put to the vote of a general meeting 1s decided on a show of hands, unless before or on the declaration of the result of the show of hands,
a poll1s demanded by the Chairman of the meeting, or by at least two members present 1n person (or by proxy) and having the right te vote, or by any
member or members present 1n person (or by proxy) having at least one tenth of the total voting nghts of all members, or by any members presentin
person {or by proxy) holding shares on which an aggregate sum has been paid up of at least one tenth of the total sum paid up on all shares conferring
that nght. Under the terms of the AVEVA Group Employee Benefit Trust 2008, the trustees will abstain from vating shares 1n the Company held by the Trust

A member may vote personally or by proxy at a general meeting Any form of proxy sent by the Company to members 1n relation to any general
meeting must be delivered to the Company not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting or adjourned meeting at which
the person named 1n the appointment proposes to vote A corporation which 1s a member of the Company may authorise such persons as 1t thinks fit
to act asits representatives at any general meeting of the Company
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Takeover Directive Disclosures continued

Share capatal continued

In the case of joint holders, the vote of the semor who tenders the vote, whethern person or by proxy, shall be accepted to the exctusion of the votas
of the otherjoint holders For tmis purpose seniority shall be determined by the order 1n which the names stand 1n the reqister of members No member
shall be entitled to attend or vote, erther personally or by proxy, at a general meeting 1n respect of any share1f any call or other sum presently payable
by lim to the Company 1n respect of such share remains unpad

The Board may direct that a member shall not be entitled to attend or vote, erther personally or by proxy, at a general meeting 1n respect of some
or all of the shares held by hm/her (the Default Shares) if he/she or any person with an interest in shares has been sent a notice under Section 763
of the Compantes Act 2006 {(which confers upen public compames the power to require information with respect to interests yn thewr voting shares)
(a “Section 793 Notice”) and he/she or anynterested person fails to supply the Company with the information requested within 14 days after
delivery of that notice These restrictions end seven days after recewpt by the Company of all the information required by the relevant Sechion 793 Notice

The Board may refuse to reqister a transfer unless

* 1510 respect of a share which 1s fully paid up,

* 1t1sin respect of only one class of share,

e tisn favour of a single transferee or not more than four joint transferees,
¢ 1t1s duly stamped (1f so required), and

* s debvered for reqistration to the office or such other place as the Board may from bime to bme determine, accompanied (exceptnthe case
of a transfer by a recogmsed person where a certificate has not been 1ssued or in the case of a renunciation) by the cerbficate for the shares to
winch 1t relates and such other evidence as the Board may reascnably require to prove the title of the transferor or person renouncing and the due
execution of the transfer or renunciation by mim/her ar, if the transfer or renunciation 1s executed by some other person on his/her behalf,
the authonty of that person te do so, provided that the Board shall not refuse to reqister any transfer or renunciabion of partly pad shares which
are isted on the London Stock Exchange on the grounds that they are partly paid shares in circumstances where such refusal would prevent
dealingsn such shares from taking place on an open and proper basis

The Board may deaide to suspend the registration of transfers, for up to 30 days a year, by closing the register of members The Board cannot suspend
the reqistration of transfers of any uncertficated shares without gaining censent from CREST

There are no restrichions on transfer of the ordinary shares in the Company other than certain restrichions which may from time to time be imposed
by laws and regulabens (for example, snsider trading laws), and pursuant to the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authonty whereby certain
employees of the Company require the approval of the Company to deal in the ordinary shares

There are no agreements between holders of secunities that are known to the Company which may result in restrictions on the transfer of secunities
or on voting nghts

Change of control
All of the Company's share-based plans contain provisions relating to change of control Outstanding awards and options normally vest and become
exercisable on a change of control, subject to the satisfachen of any performance condibions at that time

There are no sigmficant agreements to which the Company 1s a party that take effect, alter or terminate upon a change of control of the Company
following a takeover bid

There are no agreements between the Company and its Directors or employees providing for compensation for loss of office or employment that occurs
because of a takeover bnd

Other substantial shareholdings
On 26 May 2010, the Company had been notified, 1n accordance with Disclosure and Transparency Rule 5, of the following interests in the ordinary share
capital of the Company

Percentage

held

Name of holder Number %
Black Rock Investment Management 11,568,521 1703
Caprtal Group 5,020,350 739
HSBC Holdwings plc 4,222,648 622
Legal and General Investment Management 2,520,510 3in
Standard Life Investments 2,282,793 336
Janus Capital Management LLC 2,038,895 300

Articles of Assocation

The Articles of Association of the Company may be amended by speqal resolution There are no condiions contained 1n the Memorandumn relabon
to the alteration of the Articles of Association of the Company

Powers of the Directors

Subject to its Articles of Assoctation and relevant statutery law and to any direction that may be given by the Companyin general meeting by special
resclution, the business of the Company shall be managed by the Directors, who may exeroise alt powers of the Company which are not required to be
exercised by the Companyn general meeting At the Annual General Meeting 1n 2009 the Directors were granted authority to allot (2) relevant securthes
up to an aggregate nomnal amount of £753,542 97 and (b} equity securities up to an aggregate nominal amount (when added to aliotments under
{a) above of £1,507,085 94 where the allotment1s1n connection with a nghtsissue) A renewal of this authonty1s being sought at the 2010 Annual
General Meeting
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Other statutory information continued

Takeover Directive Disclosures continued

Appointment of Directors

The Company's Articles of Asseciation provide that at each Annual General Meeting of the Company one third of the Directors (or1f their number

1s not three or a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not exceeding one third) shall retire from office Those Directors who are required to
retire at each Annual Generat Meeting shall be, first, any Director who wishes to retire {and not offer lnmself for reappointment) and second, those
Drectors who have been longest 1n office since their last appointment or reappointment Any Director who retires at an Annual General Meeting may,
fwilbing to act, be reappointed

Adchtionally, new Directors may be appointed by the Board but are subject to election by members at the first opportumty after their appointment
The Articles of Associabion it the number of Birectors to not less than two and not more than ten save where members deade otherwise Members
may remove any Director (subject to the giving of special notice) and, 1f desired, replace such removed Director by ordinary resolution

In accordance with Corporate Governance best prachice, all Directors who served during the year {with the exception of David Mann) wiil stand
for re-election together with Hervé Coutuner, being the first Annual General Meeting since his appointment

Charitable and political donations
During the year the Group made chantable donations totalling £35,590 (2009 - £49,145) of which £10,000 was paid to MacMillan Cancer Support
and £10,000 to The Pnnce’s Trust The remainder was donated to local and national chanties

During the year the Group did not make any pobtical donations (2009 — £mil)

Annual General Meeting

The Annuai General Meeting will be held on 7 July 2010 at The Trimity Centre, 24 Cambridge Saence Park, Mitton Road, Cambridge CB4 OFN The Nehice
of the Annual General Meeting 1s being sent to shareholders along wath this Annual Report which contains details of the resolutions proposed
Further details of parbicular resolutions are set out below

Authority to repurchase ordinary shares

Resolution 12 set out1n the Notice conveming the Annual General Meeting gives authonty to the Company to purchase 1ts own ordinary shares up

to a maximum of 6,792,820 ordinary shares until the earler of 6 October 2011 and the date of the next Annual General Meeting This represents 10%
of the ordinary shares 1n1ssue at 26 May 2010 and the Company's exercise of ths authonty s subject to the stated upper and lower mits on the
price payable which reflects the requirements of the UK Listing Authonty Your Directors bebeve that 1t1s advantageous for the Company to have this
flexability to make market purchases of 1ts own shares Shares will only be repurchased 1f earmings per share are expected to be enhanced as a result
and the Directors beheve 1t1s 1n the bestinterests of shareholders generally To the extent that any shares so purchased are held 1n treasury, earmngs
per share will be enhanced until such time, 1 any, as such shares are resold or transferred out of treasury

The Company has the choice of cancelling shares which have been repurchased or hotding them as treasury shares (or a combination of both)
Treasury shares are essentially shares which have been repurchased by the Company and which 1t1s allowed to hold pending enther reselling them
for cash, cancelling them or, if authonsed, using them for the purposes of its employee share plans

The Directors believe that its desirable for the Company to have this chowce Holding the repurchased shares as treasury shares would give the
Company the abibty to rerssue them quickly and cost effectvely and would provide the Company wath addbional ftexabibty 1n the management
of its capital base No dwidends wilt be pad on, and no voting nights will be exeraised, 1n respect of treasury shares

As at 26 May 2010 (being the latest practicable date prior to the publication of the notice of the Annual General Meeting), there were 378,220
outstanding options granted under all share ophion plans operated by the Company which, 1f exercsed, would represent 0 22% of the 1ssued erdinary
share capital of the Company at that date If thas authonty and any existing authonty were exeraised n full and the shares repurchased were to be
cancelled, such options, 1f exeraised, would represent O 25% of the 1ssued ordinary share capital of the Company

Authorities to allot shares and disapply pre-emption rights

Resolution 13

The Directors may allot shares and grant nights to subscribe for, or convert any secunity into, shares only if authonsed to do so by shareholders
The authonty granted at the last Annual General Meeting 1s due to expire at this year’s Annual General Meeting Accordingly, resolution 13 walt be
proposed as an ordinary resolution to grant new authonbes to allot shares and grant rights to subscnibe for, or convert that security into, shares
{(a) up to an aggregate nominat amount of £754,757 86 and (b) in connechian with a nghts1ssue, up to an aggregate nominal amount (reduced by
allotments under part (a) of the resolution) of £1,509,515 72

These amounts represent approximately 33 3% and approximately 66 7% respectwely of the total 1ssued orchnary share capital of the Company as at
26 May 2010 (the latest practcable date prior to the pubbcation of this notice) If given, these authonthes wili expire at the Annual General Meeting
1 2011 or on 6 October 2011, whichever s the earber Where usage of these authenties exceeds the thresholds suggested by the Assocation of
British Insurers (“the ABI”), all of the Directors will stand for re-elechion at the following Annual General Meeting to the extent required by the ABI

The Directors have no present intention of 1ssuing shares pursuant to this authonty

As at 26 May 2010 (the latest practicable date prior to the publication of this notice) the Company holds no treasury shares
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Authorities to allot shares and disapply pre-emption rights continued

Resolution 14

The Directors also require a power from shareholders to allot equity secunihes or sell treasury shares for cash otherwise than to existing shareholders
pro rata to thewr holdings The power granted at the last Annual General Meeting 1s due to expire at this year’s Annual General Meeting Accordingly,
resolution 14 will be proposed as a special resclution to grant such a power Apart from offers or invitations 1 proportion to the respective number
of shares held, the power wall be imited to the allotment of equity securities and sales of treasury shares for cash up to an aggregate nominal value
of £113,213 68 (being 5% of the Company’s 1ssued ordinary share capital at 26 May 2010 (the latest practicable date prior to the pubhication of the
Notice)) If gqiven, this power will expire on 6 October 2011 or at the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting 1n 2011, whichever 1s the earbier

The Directars will have due regard to institutional guidelines 1n relation to any exerase of this power, 1n particular the requirement for advance
consultation and explanation before making any non pre-emptive cash 1ssue pursuant to this resolution winch exceeds 7 5% of the Company's
1ssued share capitalin any rolling three year penod

New Articles of Association

It 1s proposed n resolution 15 to adopt new Articles of Association {the “New Articles”) 1n order to update the Company's current Articles of
Assooiation (the “Current Articles”}, primanily to take account of the Compames (Shareholders’ Rights) Regulations 2009 and the implementation
of the Compames Act 2006

The prinaipal changes introduced 1n the New Artictes are summarised 1n the appendix to the Notice of Annual General Meeting Other changes,
which are of a minor, technical or clanfying nature and also some more changes which merely reflect changes made by the Compames Act 2006
and the Compames (Shareholders” Rights) Regulations 2009 have not been noted in the appendix to the Notice of Annual General Meeting

The New Articles and the Current Arbicles are available for inspection, as noted in the Notice of Annual General Meeting

Notice required for sharecholder meetings

The Shareholders Rights Directive was implemented 1n the UK 1n August 2009 The requlation implementing this Directive increases the notice
penad for general meetings of the Company to 21 days unless shareholders agree to a shorter notice period On the basis of a resolution passed at
the 2009 Annual General Meeting, the Company 1s currently able to call general meetings (other than an Annual General Meeting) on 14 clear days’
notice and would bike to preserve thisabbty Resolution 16 seeks such approval The approval will be effective until the Company’s next Annual
General Meeting, when 1t 15 1ntended that a ssmilar resolution will be proposed The Company will also need to meet the requirements for electramc
voting under this Directive before 1t can call a general meeting on 14 days” notice The shorter notice period would not be used as a matter of
routine for general meetings However, the ftexibility offered by this resolution will be used where, taking 1nto account the arcumstances, including
whether the business of the meeting 1s time-sensitive, the Dwrectors consider this appropnate 1n relation to the business to be considered at the
general meetingn gueshion

Employee benefit trust

The AVEVA Group Employee Benefit Trust 2008 was established 1n 2008 to facilitate satisfying the transfer of shares to employees within the Group on
exercise of vested ophons under the vanous share option and deferred bonus share plans of the Company On 28 May 2009, the Trust acquired n the
open market an aggregate of 89,016 ordinary shares in AVEVA Group plc at a price of £7 29 for total consideration of £653,000 The Trust holds a total
of 122,770 ordnary shares in AVEVA Group plc representing 0 18% of the issued share capital at the date of this report Under the terms of the Trust
deed goverming the Trust, the trustees of the Trust are required (unless the Company directs otherwise) to wawe all dwidends 1n respect of ordnary
shares 1n AVEVA Group plc held by the Trust except where benefinal ownershin of any such ordhnary shares was passed to a beneficary of the Trust

In the same way as other employees, the Executive Directors of the Company are potental beneficiaries under the Trust

Disabled employees

The Group gives full consideration to applications far employment from disabled persons where the candidate’s particutar apttudes and abbihes are
consistent with adequately meeting the requirements of the job Opportumties are available to disabled employees for traiming, career development
and promotion

Where exasbing employees become disabled, 1t 1s the Group’s pahcy to provide continuing employment wherever prachcable in the same or an alternative
position and to provide appropriate training to achieve this aim as well as reasonable adjustments to the workplace and other support mechamsms

Employee involvement

The Group places considerable value on the nvolvement of its employees and has continued to keep them informed of matters affecting them as
employees and on the vanous factors affecting the performance of the Group This 1s achieved through formal and infarmal meetings, the Group
ntranet and presentations from semor management There 1s an employee representative commttee which meets on a reqular basis to discuss a
wide range of matters affecting their current and future nterests All employees are entitled to receive an annual discretionary award related to the
overall profitabihity of the Group subject to the performance of the indwmidual and the Group The Group conducts employee wide surveys from time
to time to gauge the success or otherwise of 1its pohicies and uses this informahon to improve matters as appropnate

Directors’ qualifying third party indemnity provisions
The Company has granted an indemmity to its Directors aganst habibity in respect of proceedings brought by third parties, subject to the conditions
set outn the Compames Act Such quabfying third party indemmty provision remains 1n force as at the date of approving the Directors’ report
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Auditors
A resolution to reappoint Ernst & Young LLP as auditers for the ensuing year will be put to the members at the Annual General Meeting

Directors’ statement as to disclosure of information to auditors
The Drectors who were members of the Board at the ime of approving the Directors’ report are bisted on page 29 Having made enginnes of fellow
Directors and of the Company’s auditors, each of these Directors confirms that

® sofaras he1s aware, there 1s no relevant audit information (as defined by Section 418 of the Compames Act 2006) of which the Company's
auditors are unaware, and

® he has taken all the steps he ought to have taken as a Directorin order to make himself aware of any such relevant audit infermation and to
establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of that infarmation

Responsibility statement pursuant to FSA's Disclosure and Transparency Rule 4 (DTR §)
Each Director of the Company {whose names and functions appear on page 29} confirms that (solely for the purpose of DTR 4) to the best of s knowledge

e the finanoial statements 1n this document, prepared 1n accordance with the applicable UK law and applicable accounting standards, give a true
and fair view of the assets, liabihties, financial posiion and profit of the Company and of the Group taken as a whole, and

* the Chairman’s statement, Chief Executive’s review and Finance Drector’s review include a fair review of the development and performance of
the business and the position of the Company and Group taken as a whole, together with a description of the principal nsks and uncertainties
that they face

By order of the Board

Paul Taylor Richard Longdon

Finance Drector Chief Executive High Cross
and Company Secretary Madingley Road
26 May 2010 Cambndge CB3 OHB
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Statement of compliance with the code of best practice

The Company 1s committed to the principles of Corporate Governance contamned in the Combined Code on Carporate Governance which is appended
to the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authonty (the Combined Code) and for which the Board 1s accountable to shareholders The Company
has camplied with the prowvisions of Section 1 of the Combimed Code throughout the year except for the following

* A7 2-0neNon-Executive Director (Dawid Mann) whe served during the year does not have a contract of employment for a speafic term due to
s appointment being prior to the issue of the 2003 Combined Code In April 2010, 1t was announced that Mr Mann will retire as a Drector at the
Annual General Meetingn July 2010

The Company has applied these Principles of Good Governance set out in Section 1 of the Combined Code, 1ncluding both the main principles and
supporting principles, by complying with the Combined Code as noted above

Further explanation of how the principles have been applied 1s set out below and, 1n connechion with Directors’ remuneratign, 1n the Drectors’
remuneration report on page 40

Composition of the Board
Durmg the year the Board compnsed the Chairman, three Non-Executive Directors (including the Semor Independent Director) and two Executive
Directors {being the Chief Executive and Finance Director)

During the year the Board considered the balance of skills, knowledge and experience on the Board and, in the light of this evaluation, prepared a
description of the role and capabibiies required for a new Non-Executive Director with a strong software technelogy background and expenence of
managing and delivering large scale software solution projects

In April 2010, the Company announced the appowntment of Hervé Coutuner as a Non-Executive Director and the Board believes that he wall bring
sigmficant skills and expertence in these areas Further details of the process for the appointment of Mr Couturier are contained in the Neminations
Committee report

In addition, n April 2010, 1t was announced that following eleven years of invaluable service to the Group, Dawvid Mann wall retire as Non- Executive Director
and Semor Independent Birector at the Annual General Meeting 1n July 2010

Brief biograpiical details of all Board members are set out on page 27 The membership of all Board Committees 1s set out below

Treasury

Risk

Board Audit Remuneration Nommation  Management

Nick Prest Chairman Chairman - Member  Chawrman -
Dawvid Mann Semor Independent Non-Executive Director Member Member Chairman - —
Jonathan Brooks Independent Non-Executive Director Member Chairman Member Member Member
Philip Dayer Independent Non-Executive Director Member Member Member Member Chairman
Herve Coutunier! Independent Non-Executive Director Member - - - -
Richard Longdon Chief Executive Member - - - -
Paul Taylor Finance Director Member — — — Member

1 Appointed to the Board on 1 April 2010

Operation of the Board

The AVEVA Group Board meets regularly in combnation with the Board of AVEVA Solutions Limited, the main operating company n the Group which
owns all of the Group's trading subsidianes The AVEVA Solutions Limited Board 1ncludes as members the Head of Product Development and the Head
of Group Operations as well as all the members of the Group Board This ensures that the AVEVA Group Board 1s well informed on techmeal and market
factors driving the Group's performance as well as on finanoal outcomes

The Beard s responsible to shareholders for the proper management of the Group There s a formal schedule of matters specifically reserved for the
Board’s dec1sion that covers key areas of the Group's affairs, which includes

* overall responsibility for the strategy of the Group,

* (Corporate Governance,

* review of trading performance and forecasts,

+ sk management,

* Board membership,

* commumcations with shareholders,

* approval of major transactions, 1ncluding mergers and acqusitions, and

* approvat of the financal statements and annual operating and capitat expenditure budgets

The Board met ten bimes during the year and the Board alse conducted a strategy meeting and visited key locatiens, recewing presentabions from
senicr management The Board delegates the day to day respansibility for managing the Group to the Executve Directors The Chairman ensures that
the Board functions effectively, overseeing the timely and effective prowision of nformation to the Board To enable the Board to discharge its dutes,
all Directors recewe approprate and timely information Briefing papers are distributed by the Company Secretary to all Directors 1n advance of Board
meetings and all members of the Audit Committee, Remuneration, Nomination and Treasury Risk Management Committees respectively prior to
meetings of such Committees
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Corporate Governance statement continued

Operation of the Board continued
The attendance of indwadual Directors at Board meetings and Committee meetings during the year 1s set out1n the table below

Treasury Risk

Audit Remunerahon Nomination  Mapagement

Board Committee Committee Committee Committee

meetings meetings meetings meetings meetings

Number of meetings held 10 2 2 1 2
Number of meetings attended

Nick Prest 10 — 2 1 -

David Mann 8 2 2 - -

Jonathan Brooks 10 2 2 1 2

Phhp Dayer 9 2 i 1 2

fachard Longdon 10 - - - -

Paul Taylor 10 — — - 2

Meetings were held between the Chairman and the Non-Executive Directors during the year, without the Executives being present, to discuss
approprate matters as necessary

The Chawrman ensures that the Directors take ndependent professional advice where they Judge 1t necessary to discharge their responsibibines as
Directors at the Group's expense 1n the appropriate arcumstances All members of the Board have access to the advice of the Company Secretary

Non-Executive Directors and Executwe Directors are encouraged annually to undertake tramming n furtherance of their speafic roles and general
duties as a Director

Performance evaluation
The Combned Code requires that the Board undertakes a formal annual evaluation of its own performance and that of 1ts Commttees and indmidual Darectors

In the course of the year the Chairman, 1n conjunction wath the other members of the Nominations Committee, conducted a review of the structure
and slalls of the Board and the performance of tndmiduals One decision which emanated fram this review was the desirallity of adding to the collective
slalls of the Board a stronger Non-Executive input on technology 1ssues and this led to the appointment of Hervé Coutuner as a Non-Executive Director
Overall the perfarmance of the Board and 1ts Committees was considered te be satisfactory but some 1deas for changes 1n the way the Board handles
1ts businessin relation to the provisian of information and the focus of Board meetings were generated by these consultations and these wll be
wntroduced 1n the current year As partof the Board review process the performance of the Chawrman was assessed by the Semor Independent Director
following consultation with the other Non-Executive Directors

Indemmties to Drectors

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, Directors are granted an indemmty from the Company to the extent permitted by law 1n
respect of habhihes incurred as a result of the performance of their duttes in their capacity as Directors to the Company The indemmty would not
provide any coverage to the extent the Director 1s proven to have acted fraudulently or dishonestly The Company has maintained Directors’ and
officers” hambity insurance cover throughout the year

Pelicy on appointment and re-appointment

In accordance with the Arhicles of Assomiation, all Directors are required to retire and submit themselves for re-election at least every three years by
rotation, and also following their appointment Following his appeintmentn April 2010, Hervé Couturier 1s subject to election at the forthcoming
Annual Generat Meeting Inaddition, 1 accordance with Corporate Governance best practice, alt of the remaiming Board members are offering
themselves for re-election at the Annuzal General Meeting

On appointment, all Directors are asked to confirm that they have sufficient ime to devote to the role which 1s confirmed together with details

of ther duties 1n the letter of appointment All Directors undergo an induction as seon as practical following thewr appointment As part of the
nduction process, Durectors are provided with background information on the Group and attend the Group’s headgquarters in Cambnidge for meetings
and presentatons from semor management In addibon, where appropriate, meetings are also arranged with the Group’s adwvisers

Non-Executive Directors are appointed for a term of three years with the exception of Danid Mann who does not have a speaific term of appointment
because he was appointed priar to the 1ssue of the 2003 Combined Code In April 2010, 1t was announced that Mr Mann will retire from the Board at
the Annual General Meeting wn July 2010 The terms and conditions of appeintment of Non-Executive Directors are available for inspection at the
Company’s registered office during normal business hours and will be available for inspection on the day of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting

Independence of Non-Executive Directors and segregation of duties

The Board has considered the independence of the Charman and the Non-Executive Directors and bebeves that all are currently independent

of management and free from any matenal business or other relationships that could matenally interfere with the exercise of their independent
Judgement Ther bograpes on page 27 demonstrate a range of expenience and sufficent calibre to bring the independent judgement on 1ssues
of strategy, performance, resources and standards of conduct which 1s wital to the Group

Dawvid Mann s the Semor Independent Director and he will have served eleven years as a Non-Executive Director 1n June 2010 In Aprit 2010, 1t was
announced that David Mann would retire as Non-Executive Director and Semor Independent Director at the Annual General Meeting 1n July 2010

Notwithstanding his length of service, the Board believes that Mr Mann has remained and remains independent during the term of s appointment
and continues to be effective 1n s role and demonstrates commitment to the role He has never had any business relatronship with the Group,
has never been an employee and has never participated 1n any share option plan or been a member of the Group’s pension schemes
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Independence of Non-Executive Directors and segregation of duttes continued
Hervé Couturier was appointed to the Board wn Apnl 2010 After a formal review, the Board has concluded that Mr Couturier1s independent
n character and judgement, and that

® he has never been an employee of the Group,

* he has never had any matenal business relationship wath the Group,

* he does not recelve any remuneration other than Director’s fees,

* he does not have any close family bes with other Directors ar semor management of the Group or advisers to the Group,

* he has no sigmficant links with other Directors or semor management or advisers to the Group through involvement with other compames, and
* he does not represent a matenial shareholder of the Group

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive are distinct and the dwision of responsibity between these roles has been clearly established,
set out in wniting and agreed by the Board The Chairman 1s respensible for the effectiveness of the Board and ensunng that it meets 1ts obligations
and responsibibties The Chief Executive 1s responsible for providing overalt leadership, providing management to the Group and for the execution
of the Group’s strategic and operating plans

Committees of the Board

The Board has four Committees Audit, Remuneraton, Nominations and Treasury Risk Management In accordance with the Combned Code,

the dutres of the Committees are set out 1n formal terms of reference They are available on request from the Company's registered office during
normal business hours and are available on the Company’s website at www aveva com

Nemnations Committee
Committee Chairman Nick Prest

Committee Members Jonathan Brooks
Pmbp Dayer

The Nominations Commttee was formed wn Apnl 2009 The Chief Executive is inwited to attend meetings as appropriate to the business being
considered The actmities of the Nominations Committee include nomination, selection and appointment of Non-Executive and Executive Directors,
successien planmng and the compostbon of the Board, particularly 1n relation to the dversity of skills and expenience The Nominabions Committee
meets periodically when required Inaddibion to the meetings there are a number of ad-hoc meetings to address specific matters

On 1 Apnl 2010, Hervé Coutuner was appointed to the Board An external search consultant, Russell Reynolds, was instructed by the Nominations
Committee to assist in the 1dentificabion of approprate candidates having considered the requisite skalls, knowledge and expenence required for the
position All short hsted candidates were \nterviewed and as a result Mr Coutuner was selected and his appointment was then recommended to and
approved by the Board

On 5 October 2009, Paul Taylor (Finance Director) was appointed a Non-Executive thrector of Amte plc Prior to the appointment, the Board
considered the impact on his role as Finance Director and concluded that he could still devate sufficent bme to his Finance Director role and
therefore approved that Mr Taylor could accept the appointment

Remuneration Committee
Commttee Chairman Dawvid Mann

Committee Members Mick Prest
Jonathan Brooks
Phalip Dayer

The Remuneration Committee makes recommendations to the Board on the Group’s policy for Executive and semor management remuneration
and determines the individual remuneration packages on behalf of the Board for the Executve Directors of the Group The Chief Executive attends
meetings by invitation, except when the Chief Executive’s own remuneration package s being discussed

The Committee has access to professional adwvice, both inside and outside the Company, n the furtherance of its dutes The Directors’ remuneration
report sets outn more detanl the Remuneration Committee’s pohicies and practices on Executive remuneration

Audit Committee
Commttee Chairman Jonathan Brooks

Committee Members Phibp Dayer
Dawvid Mann

The Charrman of the Committee 1s deemed by the Board to have recent and relevant financial expenence He s a Chartered Management Accountant
and has held a number of semor financial positions in his career Hervé Couturier will join the Audit Committee from the date of the Annual General
Meeting (7 July 2010) being the date that David Mann wll retire The Committee invites the Finance Director and sentor representatives from the
auditors to attend meetings as appropriate to the business being considered Subsequent to the year end, an Audit Committee meeting was held to
review the results of the audit, which was attended by all members
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Committees of the Board continued

Audit Commttee continued

The Audhit Committee met twice during the year to review the scope of the audit and the audit procedures, the format and content of the audited
financial statements and interim reports, including the notes and the accounting prinaiples apphied The Audit Committee members (as part of the
full Board) review all proposed announcements to be made by the Group to the extent that they contain finanaalinfermation The Audit Committee
considers compbance with legat requirements, accounting standards and the Listing Rules and the Dsclosure and Transparency Rules of the Finanoal
Services Authonty and also reviews any proposed change 1n accounting polies and any recommendations from the Group’s auditors regarding improvements
tointernal controls and the adequacy of resources within the Group's finance function The Audit Comrmittee adwises the Board on the appointment of
external auditors and on their remuneration both for audit and non-audit work, and discusses the nature, scope and results of the audit with external
auditors The Audit Committee keeps under review the cost effectiveness and the independence and objectivity of the external auditors Controlsin
place to ensure this include momtoring of the 1ndependence and effechveness of the audit, implementing a pelicy on the engagement of the external
auditors to supply non-audit services, and a review of the scope of the audit and fee and performance of the external auditors The Audit Commttee
momtors fees pard to the auditors for non-audit work and delegates the authonty for approval of such work to the Finance Director where the level of
fees nvolved are insigmficant During the year there was hmited non-audit wark performed by the auditors which mainly consisted of tax compliance
work for subsidiaries of the Group and other statutory fiing work Any sigmificant non-audit work such as reporting accountant engagements would
require prior approval from the Audit Committee

The Group engages other independent firms of accountants to perform tax consulting work and other consulting engagements to ensure that the
independence of the auditers1s not compromsed Audht partners are rotated every five years and a formal statement of independence 1s received
from the auditors each year The Board and the Audit Committee are satisfied that the independence of the auditors has been maintamned

An analysis of non-audit fees 1s provided n note 7 to the finanoal statements

There 15 a formal whistle-blowing policy winch has been commumicated to employees This policy provides infermaten on the process te follow 1n the
event that any employee feels 1t 15 appropnate to make a disclosure The Audit Committee s satisfied that the pohicy provides an adequate basis for
employees to make representations n canfidence to the Group and for appropriate and proportionate investigations

The Board and the Audit Committee have considered the requirement to have an internal audit function and, given the Group’s relative s1ze, do not
consider one necessary at this paint but will conbinue to momtor this annually

Treasury Risk Management Commttee (TMRC)

Committee Chairman Phlip Dayer

Committee Members Jonathan Brooks
Paul Taylor

The TMRC was formed in Apnil 2009 to oversee the Group's treasury funchon given the increasing 1mportance of managing the Group's treasury
actiities and assonated nsks In addition to the above members, the Head of Finance and Group Treasurer are also wnvited to attend the meetings
The TMRC reviews the Group's overall financial sk management including

e foreign exchange risk and related hedging policy,

® credit nsk whichincludes momtoring the Group’s counter-party exposure to banks, and

e hgudity nsk which includes reviewing the cash management structure in the Group

The policies of the Group 1n relation toe these areas are explained in note 24 to the financal statements

Dunng the year the TMRC met twice to chscuss the above matters and prowvided a report to the Board after each meeting

Dialogue with institutional shareholders

Communication with shareholders 1s given hagh prionty by the Board The Chief Executive and the Finance Dhrector have meetings with representatives
of institutional shareholders and hold analyst briefings at least twice a year, following the announcement of the interim and full year results, but also
at other times duning the year as necessary The Chairman also met with certain shareholders during the year to discuss strategy and performance of
the business Semor managers from Product Development, Business Strategy and Finance also attended analyst and shareholder meetings duning
the year All of these meetings seek to build a mutual understanding of objectives with major shareholders by discussing long-term strategy and
obtaimng feedback The Board also recewves formal feedback from analysts and instituticnal shareholders through the Company’s public relations
adwiser and finanaial adwiser The Board s also appraised of discussions with major shareholders to ensure that Executwe and Non-Executive Directors
consider any matter raised by shareholders and to enable all Directors to understand shareholder views The Semor Independent Non-Executive Directar,
David Mann, 1s available to shareholders if they have concerns which contact through the normal channels of Chairman, Chef Executive or Finance
Director has failed to resolve or 1f such contact would be 1nappropnate The Chairman, Semor Independent and Non-Executve Directors are avalable
for dialogue with shareholders at any ime and attend (together with the other members of the Board) the Annual General Meeting, but are not routinely
nvolved in 1nvestor relations or shareholder commumcations Corporate information 1s also available on the Company’s website, www aveva com
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Constructive use of the Annuat General Meeting

The Board seeks to use the Annual General Meeting to commuricate with investors and all shareholders are encouraged to partaipate The Chairmen
of the Audit, Remuneration, Nomination and the Treasury Risk Management Committees will be available at the Annual General Meeting to answer
any questions

Share capital structure
Further information on the share capital structure of the Company and the Takeover Directive Disclosures s contained on pages 30 to 32

Internal control and risk management

The Board has overall respensibibity for the Group's system of internal control and for momtoring 1ts effectiveness However, such a system1s
designed to manage rather than ehminate the nsk of failure and by its very nature can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance aganst
matenal misstatement or loss

The Beard has estabbshed a centinuous process fordentifiing, evaluating and managing the sigmficant risks the Group faces The Board regularly
reviews the effectiveness of the Group's internal controls, which have been 1n place from the start of the year to the date of approval of ths report
and beleves that 1t1s 1n accordance with the Turnbull Gindance

The key elements of the systems of nternal controls currently include

# an Executive Board comprising the Executive Directors, Head of Group Operations, Head of Product Development and Head of Human Resources
Each member has responsihility for speofic aspects of the Group’s operations They meet on a regular basis and are responsible for the operational
strategy, rewewing operating results, \dentificabion and mihgation of risks and commumcatron and application of the Group’s polictes and
procedures Where appropnate, matters are reported to the Board,

* regular reports to the Board from the Executive Directors, Head of Group Dperations, Head of Product Development, Head of Human Resources
and Sales Dmsien Managers on key developments, finanaal performance and operahonal issues in the business,

* operational and finanaal cantrols and procedures which include authorisation himits for expenditure, sales contracts and capital expenditure,
signing authontes, orgamsation structure, Group poliies, segregation of duties and reviews by management,

* anannual budget process which 1s reviewed, momtored and approved by the Board,

* regular meetings between the Executive Board, Sales Dmsion managers and Product Development managers to discuss actual performance
agawnst forecast, budget and prior years The operating results are reported on a monthly basis to the Board and compared to the budget and
the latest forecast as appropniate, and

® maintenance of insurance cover to nsure all major nisk areas of the Group based on the scate of the rsk and avarlability of the covern the
external market

The Board’s momitoring covers all matenal controls, including finanoal, non-financial, operational and compbance controls and risk management

It 1s based principally on reviawing reports from management to consider whether sigmificant nisks are sdentified, evaluated, managed and controlled
and whether any sigmficant weaknesses are promptly remedied and 1indicate a need for more extensive momtoring The Board periodically carnes out
visits to the Group’s subsidiaries and during the year travelled to Asia to meet with semor management from the Asia Pacific region and recewve
presentations on their operations

The Board has also performed a speaific assessment for the purpose of this Annual report This involved reviewing the reports from a sk assessment
workshop 1nvolving the Executive Board and semor members of management from Product Development, Sales and Finance/Legal The workshop was
conducted 1n January 2010 and was facibitated by a third party This assessment considered alt sigmficant aspects of internal control ansing during
the penod covered by the report The Audit Committee assists the Board n discharging 1ts review responsibilines

Drrectars repart AVEVA Group plt
Annual report 2010 3 9




Directors’ remuneration report

Thas report has been prepared 1n accordance with sechions 420 and 421 of the Compames Act 2006 and the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules
of the Finanoal Services Authonty (together the Regutations) The report also describes how the Board has applied the Prinoiples of Good Governance
relating to Directors’ remunerabon As required by the Regulations, a resotution to approve the report will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting
of the Company at which the financial statements of the Company will be approved

The Regulations require the auditors to report on the ‘auditable part’ of the Directors’ remuneratien report and to state whether, 1n their opimon,
that part of the report has been properly prepared 1n accordance with the Compames Act 2006 The report has therefore been dwided into separate
sections for audited and unaudhted information

UNAUDITED INFORMATION

Role of the Remuneration Committee
The Board sets the remunerabhion pobicy for the Group The Remuneration Committee makes recommendabons to the Board within its agreed terms
of reference, detals of whnch are available at www aveva com

The Remuneration Committee’s principal responsibibity 15 to determine the remuneration package of both the Company’s Executive Directors and

1ts semor management within broad policies agreed with the Board In addition, it reviews the remuneration pobcy for the Company as a whole and
admimsters the Company’s share incentive plans for all parbapants The remunerabion of the Non-Executive Directors is determined by the Executve
Directors and the Chairman, not the Committee

The conclusions and recommendations of the Remuneratien Committee were finabsed n two formal meetings during the year, but these were
preceded by several informal discussions, including some with adwvisers {none of wham had any other connection with the Company) The members
of the Committee were David Mann (Chairman), Mick Prest, Jenathan Brooks and Philip Dayer

The Chief Executive (Richard Longdon) 1s imwited to subnmt recommendations to the Remuneration Committee and both he and the members of the
Commattee take into consideration relevant external market data as well as the reviews of remuneration for employees of the Group generally

Remuneration policy

The Remunerathon Committee aims to ensure that members of the Executive management are provided with appropriate incentives to encourage
enhanced performance and are, 1n a fair and responsible manner, rewarded for their indwdual contnbutions to the success of the Group Italso
awums for a combination of fixed and varable payments, benefits and share-hased awards that will achmeve a balance in incentives to achmeve short
and long term goals The Company's pohicy 1s that a substantial proportion of remuneration of Executive Directors should be performance-related
The payment of bonuses and the vesting of share incentives are subject to meeting performance condions established by the Committee at the
beginming of each performance penod reflecting what, at that time, the Committee considers demanding targets These targets are set taking
account of the marketn which the Group operates and the expectations of investment commumity on the Group’s future potental performance

The Remunerahion Committee has access to detailed external research from independent consultants and during the year engaged Hewitt New Bridge
Street to review the remuneration of the Executive rectors and semor management and to benchmark their remuneration against comparable
compames Hewitt New Bridge Street do not provide other services to the Group

In 2008 the Board 1ntroduced the AVEVA Group Management Bonus Deferred Share Scheme 2008 (the Deferred Share Scheme) for Executive Directors
and selected employees to enable the bonus scheme to have a deferred compenent Subject to the achhevement of performance conditions relating to
a single financial year, these incentive arrangements are intended to reward the reapient partly in cash, payable on announcement of interim and/or
final results, and partly 1n ordwnary shares in the Company to be delivered on a deferred basis under the Deferred Share Scheme

The Board believes that these incentive arrangements ctosely abgn the interests of Executive Directors and empleyees with shareholders’ interests

Outside appointments

Executive Directors are entitled to accept appointments outside of the Company provided that Board approvalis sought prior to accepting the
appontment Whether or not the Director concerned 1s permitted to retain their fees1s considered en a case by case basis As noted above,
Paui Taylor was appownted a Non-Executive Director of Amite plc during the year His annual fee on appointment was £37,000 As Mr Taylor
performs these services independently of his duties to the Company, he 1s thus entitled to receive such compensation
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UNAUDITED INFORMATION continued

Remuneration policy continued
The indmdual components of the remunerahon packages offered are

Basic salanes/fees
It s the policy of the Committee to pay base salares to the Executive Directors takang account of the nature and scale of the business of the Group,
the performance of the indwidualin achiewing finanoial and non-finanaal goals within s areas of responsibibity and comparable market data

In 2009/10, the Remuneration Committee took into account the uncertain market conditions and, 1 seeking to ensure that remuneration pohicies
remained appropnate, Directors” salares were frozen at 2008/09 levels in keeping with the general pay freeze adopted by the Group

In keeping with a general review of salanes for the Group as a whole, the salaries for Executive Directors were reviewed 1n March 2010 with any
adjustment to take effect from 1 April 2010 As a result the Executive Directors recewved salary increases of 3% set slightly below the average increase
across the Group As of the date of tins report, the fees for the Non-Executive Directors had not been reviewed and will be reviewed during the course
of the year Details of the current salanaes and fees are as follows

£
Nick Prest 85,000
David Mann 33,000
Jonathan Brooks 35,000
Phlip Dayer 30,000
Hervé Coutuner* 39,000
Richard Longdon 335,265
Paul Taylor 216,300

*  from date of appointment {1 Apnl 2010)

Fees for the Chawrman and the Non-Executve Directors are determined taking account of the individual’s responsibibibes, time devoted ta the role
and prevalent market rates

Benefits
Executive Directors are provided wath a Company car or a mobity allowance and a fuel allowance Non-Executwe [hrectors do not receive any benefits

Bonus payments

The Executive Directors parbicipate 1n annual performance-related benus arrangements determined by the Committee As noted above, these
arrangementsinclude a component using the Deferred Share Scheme Under these incentive arrangements, depending on the extent to which
performance conditiens are achieved, an overall bonus amount 1s determmned Part of this overall bonus amount s payable in cash, an amount equal
to the balances used to calculate the number of ordinary shares which the bonus reapient1s eligible to receve on a deferred basis This1s calculated
by 1dentifiing the number of ordinary shares which could be purchased with the balance at the md-market closing pnice of an ordinary share on the
deabng day y/mmediately preceding the prelminary announcement of the Company's resuits for the financal year 1n which the bonus was earned

The arrangements are based substantially or entirely on the performance of the Group as a whole geared towards exceeding \nternal and external
expectations of normabsed profit before tax with 10% based on acimevement for the s1x months to 30 September and 90% based on the full year results

For the annual performance banus arrangements for 2009/10, the targets were set after considering the Group’s budgeted narmahised profit before
tax and market expectahons The agreed targets were considered to be appropnate and stretching aganst the budgeted profit for 2009/10 and
market conditions prevailing at that time For 2009/10, the maximum bonus amount which an Executive Director could earn was 100% of basic salary
Performance targets were achieved 1n full resulting 1n a cash benus equal to 60% (2009 - 60%) of basic salary with the remaimng 40% (2009 — 40%)
of the bonus amount being used to calculate the number of deferred shares for which each Executive Director was eligible

Pensions

During the year, the two Executwve Directors (Richard Longdon and Paul Taylor) were members of AVEVA Solutions Limited’s defined benefit pension
scheme It1is a contnbutery, funded, occupational pension scheme registered with HM Revenue and Customs (HMRC) and, since 1 October 2004,
Career Average Revalued Earmings benefits apply Under this scheme they are entitled to a pension on normal retwrement, or on rebirement due toall
health, equivalent to two-thirds of their pensionable salary provided they have completed {or would have completed 1n the case of 1ll health) 25 years’
service A pension earmings cap (1n line with steric HMRC's earmng cap) applies to Paul Taytor when calculating pensionable salary Symilarly, a
scheme-specific earmngs bmit applies to the benefits earned by Richard Longdon A lower pension s payable on earlier retrement after the age of 50
by agreement with the Company and subject to HMRC gundehnes Pensions are payable to dependants on the Director’s death 1n retirement and a tump sum

15 payahle if death occurs in service No other Directors were members of a pension scheme dunng the year (2009 - ml)

On 31 August 2009, Mr Longdon had accrued the maximum benefits that he was entitled to under the rules of the pension scheme and as a result left
the pension scheme Mr Longdon was paid a one-off sum of £25,000 on leaving the pension scheme

Directors repart AYEVA Group plc
Annual report 2010 41




Directors’ remuneration report continued

UNAUDITED INFORMATION continued

Remuneration policy continued

Share awards

The Remuneration Committee considers that periodic grants of share-related incentives should constitute an )mportant element of the remuneration
of the Company’s semor Executives, in bne with common practice 1n comparable compames The Company’s share schemes have therefore heen used
to provide long term wncentives to assist 1n ereating and sustaiming growth in share value

There are four schemes 1n existence, the AVEVA Group plc Executive Share Option Scheme (the abibty to grant shares under this scheme has

now expired), the AVEVA Group Management Bonus Deferred Share Scheme 2008, the AVEVA Group ple Long Term Incentve Plan and the
AVEVA Group plc Executive Share Option Scheme 2007 No awards have been made under the AVEVA Group plc Executive Share Option Scheme 2007
and the performance conditions that would apply to them remain to be determined The Company would consult with major shareholders before
setting any performance conditions

The number of shares which may be allocated on exercise of any options granted under any of the Company’s share option schemes {including
employee schemes) shall not, when aggregated with the number of shares which have been allocated in the previous ten years under these schemes,
exceed 10% of the ordinary share capital of the Company in1ssue 1mmediately prior to that date The share schemes are used to provide 1ncentives to
Semor Managers as well as Executive Directars As reapients of these awards, Executive Directors and Executive Board members are required to hold
or use the schemes to bunld share ownership with a value of at least 100% of their then current salary Details of the awards made under these
schemes are as follows

Long Term Incentive Ptan (LTIP)

The Company establhished the AVEVA Group plc Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) which was approved at the Extraordinary General Meeting held 1n
2004 Under the LTIP, options are granted to selected indwiduals to acquire ordinary shares at an exercise price equal to the nominal value of the
shares, these ophiens will be exercrsable only if stringent performance cnitena are met There are no rules under the LTIP scheme which govern the
maximum awards that can be made to parbapants However in 2009/10 the market value of awards under the LTIP awarded to Richard Longdon and
Paul Taylor amounted to 50% of basic salary (2009 - 50%) It1s not expected that matenal changes will be made to the leve! of awards under the LTIP
without consultation with shareholders

Details of the outstanding awards under the LTIP are as follows

200607 awards

In 2006/07 a total of 42,588 share options were awarded to the Executive Directors under the LTIP The performance condihons were based on
average growth in earmngs per share (EPS) achieved over the three years from 2006/07 to 2008/09 If average EPS growth was greater than 15% per
annum then all of the shares would vest If average EPS growth was less than 7 5% per annum none of the shares would vest If average EPS growth
was between 7 5% and 15% then the number of shares that would vest would be determined by bnear interpolation The Remuneration Committee
considered that these were challenging performance conditions in the context of the Company's budget and market expectations at the time of
the awards

The performance conditions were measured 1n accordance with the terms of the grant and all awards vested n full

2007/08 awards

In 2007/08, a total of 18,234 share ophans were awarded to the Executive Directors under the LTIP The performance conditions are based on
average growth n EPS over the years from 2007/08 to 2009/10 If average EPS growth 1s greater than 11 5% per annum then all of the shares shall
vest. If average EPS 15 less than 9% per annum then none of the shares shall vest If average EPS growth 1s between 9% and 11 5% per annum then the
number of shares that shall vest shall be determined by tinear interpolation The Remuneration Committee consdered that these were challenging
performance condibiens n the context of Company’s budget and external expectations at the time of the awards

Although the vesting date has not yet been reached, 1t1s anticipated that the performance conditions attached to this award will be met fallowing
finabisation of the 2009/10 financialt results However this 1s stll subject to the approval of the Remuneration Committee at the time of announcement
of the results

2008/09 awards

In 2008/09, a total of 17,929 share options were awarded to the Executive Directors under the LTIP The performance condihons are based on average
growth n EPS over the years from 2008/09 to 2010/11 If average EPS growth 15 greater than 14% per annum then alt of the shares shall vest If average
EPS 15 less than 10% per annum then none of the shares shall vest If average EPS growth 1s between 10% and 14% per annum then the number of
shares that shall vest shall be determined by inear interpolation The Remuneration Committee considered that these were challenging performance
conditions n the context of internal and external expectabons at the time of the awards

2009/10 awards

In 2009/10, a total of 36,628 share options were awarded to the Executive Directors under the LTIP In view of the general economic background,
the Remuneration Committee gave especally careful consideration to what performance conditians woutd be appropnate and finally agreed that
they should be based on average diluted EPS over the three years from 2009/10 to 2011/12 All shares under this option shall vest 1f average diluted
EPS for the three years ending 31 March 2012 15 equal to or above 52 14 pence Should average diluted EPS for the period be below 52 14 pence,
then no shares will vest and the apton will lapse The Remuneration Committee considered that these were challenging performance condihions
n the context of internal and external expectations at the time of the awards
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UNAUDITED INFORMATION continued

Remuneration policy continued

Share awards continued

Deferred annual bonus share ptan

As described above, part of the annual bonus earned by Executive Directors 1n the year 1s used to determine eligibility for an award of deferred shares
under the Deferred Share Scheme Inorder to deliver shares under the Deferred Share Scheme, an Employee Benefit Trust (EBT) was established following
shareholder approval at the 2008 Annual General Meeting Awards of deferred shares are made by the trustee of EBT using shares purchased in the
market The awards, which take the form of ml-cost aptions, will normally delver the deferred shares to participants 1n three equal tranches, onein
each of the three years following the year 1n which an award 1s made by the EBT These awards are made solely in respect of performance in the
financial year immedately prior to thewr grant Delery of the deferred shares 1s not subject to further financial performance conditions provided
that the participant remans an employee or Director of the Group If the parttcaipant ceases to be an employee or Director, entitlement to all
outstanding tranches would fall away unless the cessation occurs by reason of bis or her death Following the death of a bonus parhapant, erona
takeover, reconstruchion or amalgamation, or voluntary winding up of the Company, the penod for which the partiapant must remain an employee or
Directer would be reduced below the normal three years and entitlement to delwery of the shares would be accelerated There are no arrangements
forthe delvery of additional matching shares to a participant in any arcumstances

On 27 May 2009 the EBT awarded 22,487 and 14,508 deferred shares to Richard Longdon and Paul Taylor respectively 1 respect of the bonus
arrangements for the year ended 31 March 2009

Following the achievement of the objectives for 2009/10, 1t1s antiaipated that 12,471 and 8,046 deferred shares will be awarded to Richard Longdon
and Paul Taylor respectvely 1n respect of the banus arrangements for the year ended 31 March 2010

Total shareholder return performance graph

The Large and Medwum-51zed Compames and Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 require the presentation of a performance graph of
total shareholder return compared with a broad equity market index for a penod of five years The foltowing graph shows the Company's perfermance,
measured by totat shareholder return, compared with the performance of the techMARK All-Share Index Totalshareholder return 1s the share price
plus dwvidends reinvested compared agawmst the techMARK All-Share Index, rebased to the start of the period

Total shareholder return v techMARK All-Share Index 2005-2010
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The Directors consider the techMARK All-Share Index to be an appropnate chotce as the Index includes AVEVA Group plc

Service contracts
The service contracts and letters of appointment of the Directors include the followang terms
Date of Date of Expiry/review Notice penad
contragt appointment date of current contract Manths
Mick Prest 10 January 2006 11 January 2006 11 January 2012 3
Dawvid Mann 17 May 2000 8 June 1999 Rolling 3
Jonathan Brooks 12 July 2007 12 July 2007 12 July 2010 3
Phibip Dayer 27 December 2007 7 January 2008 7 January 2011 3
Hervé Coutuner 18 March 2010 1Apnt 2010 1Apni2013 3
Richard Longden 28 November 1996 28 November 1996 Rolbng 12
Paul Taylor 17 October 1989 1 March 2001 Rolhing 9

The Committee considers that the notice penods of the Executive Directors are 1n line with those 1n other compames of a similar s1ze and nature
and are 1n the best interests of the Group to ensure stalbity 1n semor management.

There are no predetermined special provisions for Executive or Non-Executive Directors wath regard to compensation in the event of loss of office
The Remuneration Committee would be responsible for considening the aircumstances of the early terrmnation of an Executive Director’s contract and
deterrmming whether 1n exceptional arcumstances there should be compensahion payments 1n excess of the Company's contractual obhgations
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

AUDITED INFORMATION
Directors’ remuneration
The total amounts for Directors’ emoluments and other benefits were as follows
Basic Cash Benefits 2010 2009
salary Fees bonus*® n kand Total Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Nick Prest - 85 - - 85 85
Dawvid Mann - 33 - - 33 33
Jonathan Brooks - 35 - - 35 35
Pbp Dayer - 30 - - 30 30
Richard Longdon 326 - 220** 22 568 541
Paul Taylor 210 - 126 17 353 353
Aggregate emoluments 536 183 346 39 1,104 1,077

*  Inaddibon to the cash bonus award noted above, 1t 1s anhopated that fichard Longdon and Paul Taylor will be awarded 12 471 and 8,046 defesred shares respectively (2009 - 22,487 and
14 508 deferred shares were awarded respectively) under the Deferred Share Scheme The eshmated monetary vatue of these awards was £130 000 (2009 - £130,000) for Richard Longdon
and £84,000 {2009 - £84 000) for Paul Taytor

** Includes a payment of £25 000 after leaving the AVEVA Sclutions Limited defined benefit pension scheme (see page 41)

Aggregate emoluments disclosed above do not inctude any amounts for the value of options to acquire ordinary shares in the Company granted

to or held by the Directors

Share options
Thenterests of Directors in opbons to acquire ordinary shares were as follows
Asat As at
1Apnl 31 March Gainon Exerase Earhest
2009 Granted Exerpised 2010 exerase price date of Date of
Scheme Number Number Number Number £ Pence exernse expiry
Rachard Longdon LTIP 25,548 - {25,548) — 252,368 333 280609 280613
LTIP 11,083 - — 11,083 - 333 020710 020714
LTIP 10,891 - - 10,891 - 333 070711 070715
LTIP - 22,264 - 22,264 - 333 070712 070716
Deferred Share
Scheme (2008) 12,282 - - 12,282 - 000 260509 Note
Deferred Share
Scheme {2009) - 22,487 — 22,487 - 000 260510 Note
Paul Taylor LTIP 17,040 - (17,040) - 168,325 333 280609 280613
LTIP 7151 - - 7,151 - 333 020710 020714
LTIP 7,038 - — 7,038 — 333 070711 070715
e - 14,364 - 14,364 - 333 Q70712 Q70716
Deferred Share
Scheme {2008) 7,923 - - 7.923 - 000 260509 Note
Deferred Share
Scheme (2009) — 14,508 — 14,508 — 000 260510 Note

Note The last date of the exercise 1s the end of the 42 day period fallowing the announcement of the finanaal results of the Group in the third calendar year following that 1n which the option was
granted or {if applscable) such later date as the Remuneranon Committee may speafy

The market price as at 31 March 2010 was £11 85 (31 March 2009 - £5 64) with a mgh-low spread for the year of £5 35t0 £11 92

During the year Richard Longdon and Paul Taylor exercised options ever 25,548 and 17,040 ordinary shares respectively at an exeraise price of £0 03
The market pnice on the date of exercise was £9 91 which resulted 1n an aggregate gain on exercise of £252,368 for Richard Longdon and £168,325
for Paul Taylor Mr Longdon retained 14,970 and Mr Taylor 9,984 of the resultant shares ansing

At 31 March 2010, Mr Longdon owned 364,970 ordinary shares (2009 - 350,000 ordinary shares) and options over 79,007 ordinary shares (2009 - 59,804
options) MrTaylor owned 59,984 ordinary shares (2009 - 50,000 ordinary shares) and options over 50,984 ordinary shares (2009 ~ 39,152 ophons)

Options under the LTIP are normally exercisable in full orn part between the tinrd and tenth anmversanes of the date of grant Details of the

performance condihons of share option awards are set out on pages 42 and 43

44
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Pensions
The Directors had accrued entitlements under the pension scheme as follows
Increase in
accrued  Transfer value
pension of increase
Accumulated  Accumulated duning the after removing
accrued accrued Increasen year after the effects
pension at pension at accrued  remowving the  ofinflation,
31 March 31 March pension effects of less Directors
2010 2009 during year wflaton  contnbutions
£ £ £ £ £
Richard Longdon 143,964 135,536 8,428 1,651 17,141
Paul Taylor 54,868 49,269 5,599 3,136 18,462
The pension entitlement shown 1s that which would be pard annually, based on service to the end of the year
The transfer value as at date of retirement of each Director’s accrued benefits at the end of the financial year1s as follows
Movement, less
31 March 31 March hrectors
2010 2009 contnbutions
£ £ £
Richard Loangdon 2,097,351 1,720,009 371,926
Paul Taylor 615,644 470,242 136,141

The transfer values have been calculated on the basis of actuanal advice 1n accordance with Actuanal Guidance Note GN11 Members of the scheme
have the option to pay Addihional Voluntary Contributions  Nesther the contributions nor the resulting benefits are included 1n the above table

By order of the Board

i

Paul Taylor
Company Secretary
26 May 2010

High Cross
Madingley Road
Cambnidge C83 OHB

Drectors report
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in relation to the Consolidated financial statements
The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual report and the Consolidated financial statements 1n accordance with applicable Umted
Kingdom law and those International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Umon

The Directors are required to prepare Consohdated financal statements for each financial year which present fairly the financial posihen of the Group
and the financial performance and cash flows of the Group for that periad In prepanng those Consolidated financial statements, the Directors are
required to

* select switable accounting policies 1n accordance with [AS 8 and then apply them consistently,
* presentinformation, including accounting pobicies, 11 2 manner that prondes relevant, rebable, comparable and understandable nformation,

* provide additional disclosures when comphance with the speafic requirements 1n IFRSs is nsuffiqent to enable users to understand the impact
of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the entity’s financial positien and financial performance, and

® state that the Group has comphed with IFRSs, subject to any matenial departures disclosed and explained 1n the financial statements

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the finanmal position of the
Group and enable them to ensure that the Consobdated financial statements comply with the Compames Act 2006 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation
They are also responsible for safequarding the assets of the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud
and other irregulantes

This Annual report contains forward-looking statements These forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance Rather, they
are based on current views and assumptions and nvolve known and unknown nsks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause actual results to
hifer from any future results or developments expressed or \mphed from the forward-looking statements Each forward-looking statement speaks
only as of the date of the particular statement and save to the extent requred by the apphcable law or regulabion, we do not undertake any obligation
to update or renew any forward-locking statement

AVEVA Group plc Finangal statements - Group
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. Overview
Independent auditor’s report Business review
to the members of AVEVA Group plc

Corporate Governance

Finannal statements

We have audited the Group financial statements of AVEVA Group plc for the year ended 31 March 2010 which compnise the Consobdated income
statement, the Consohdated statement of comprehensive income, the Consohdated balance sheet, the Consolidated statement of changes in
shareholders’ equity, the Consolidated cash flow statement and the related notes 1 to 30 The financial reporting framewaork that has been applhied
n ther preparation 1s applicable law and International Finanqal Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Umon

Tis report 1s made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, 1 accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Compames Act 2006 Our audit work
has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’'s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and
far no other purpose Te the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the
Company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the epinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ responsibihities statement set out on page 46, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
Group financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view Qur responsibility 1s to audit the Group financial statements
in accerdance with apphicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the
Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the finanoal statements sufficent to give reasonable assurance that the
financal statements are free from matenial misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error Thisincludes an assessment of- whether the accounting
policies are appropniate to the Group's arcumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of sigmificant
accounting estimates made by the Directors, and the overall presentation of the finanaal statements

Opinion on financial statements

In our opimon the Group finanoal statements

* giveatrue and far view of the state of the Group’s affairs as at 31 March 2010 and of 1ts profit for the year then ended,
* have been properly prepared 1n accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Umion, and

® have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Compames Act 2006 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation
Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opimion

« the information given in the Directors” Report for the finanoal year for which the finanoal statements are prepared s consistent with the Group
finanoal statements, and

* thenformation given 1n the Corporate Governance Statement set out on pages 35 to 39 with respect to internal control and risk management
systems n relatien to financial reporting processes and about share capital structures 1s consistent with the financial statements

Matters an which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to reportn respect of the following

Under the Compames Act 2006 we are required to report to youf, 1n our opinion

& certain disclosures of Dwrectors’ remuneration speafed by law are not made, or

® we have not recewved all the \nformation and explanations we require for our audit

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review

& the Directors’ statement, set out on page 29, 1n relation to going concern, and

» the part of the Corporate Governance Statement on pages 35 to 39 relating to the Company’s comphance with the mne provisions of the June 2008
Combined Code speafied for cur review

Other matter
We have reported separately on the parent Company financial statements of AVEVA Group plc for the year ended 31 March 2010 and on the
wformabion in the Birectors’ remuneration report that 1s described as having been audited

ey & Yo Qu\"

Peter Bateson {(Senior statutory auditor)

for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
Cambndge

26 May 2010
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Consolidated income statement

for the year ended 31 March 2010

2010 2009

Notes £000 £000
Revenue 5,6 148,334 164,041
Cost of sales (30,380)  (37,612)
Gross profit 117,954 126,429
Uperating expenses
Selling and distnbution costs (60,027) (53,248)
Admmstrative expenses (8,718)  (16,532)
Tetal operating expenses (68,745}  (69,78%)
Profit from operations 7 49,209 56,649
Finance revenue g 2,861 4,846
Finance expense 10 (2.496) {2.294)
Analysis of profit before tax
Profit before tax, amortisation, share-based payments, foreign exchange contracts and restructuring costs 50,685 66,360
Amortisation of intangibles (excluding other software) (1,665} (2.482)
Share-based payments (1,184} (940)
Gamn/(loss) on fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts 3,610 (3,737)
Restructuring costs 8 (1,872} -
Profit before tax 49,574 59,201
Income tax expense 12 (16,134)  (17,047)
Profit for the year attnbutable to equity holders of the parent 33,440 42,154
Earmings per share {pence)
- basic 14 49 36p 62 27p
- dluted 14 49 08p 61 98p

All actvities relate to continiing activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this Consolidated 1ncome statement

AVEVA Group ple
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 March 2010

Overview
Business review

Carporate Governance

Financoal statements
2010 2009
Notes £009 £000

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive 1ncome

Exchange differences ansing on translation of foreign operations
Actuarial loss on defined benefit pension schemes

Tax on 1tems relating ta compenents of other comprehenswve income

33,440 42,154

1,537 5,503
26 (4907)  (7.523)
12(a) 1,302 1,885

Total comprehensive income for the year

31,372 42,019

The accompanying notes are an integral part of tms Consobidated statement of comprehensive income

Financial statements - Group
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Consolidated balance sheet
31 March 2010

2010 2009
Notes £000 £000

Non-current assets
Goodwill 15 18,177 17,05%
Otherintangible assets 16 10,571 10,750
Property, plant and equipment 17 7.557 8,096
Deferred tax assets 25 5.016 5,514
Other recevables 19 746 804

42,067 42,219

Current assets
Trade and other recewables 19 44,084 56,768
Current tax assets 1,801 746
Treasury deposits 20 106,555 -
Cash and cash equivalents 20 43,169 126,164
195,609 183,678
Total assets 237,676 225,897
Equity
Issued share capital 28(a) 2,264 2,260
Share premium 27,288 27,176
Other reserves 28(b) 14,455 13,535
Retained earmngs 125,215 100,160
Total equity 169,222 143,131

Current habbties

Trade and other payables 21 48,869 56,598
Financal babibhhes 22 1,033 4,643
Current tax habihbes 4,044 11,172

53,946 72,413

Non-current labbities
Deferred tax habhihes 25 1,426 1,589
Retirement benefit obhigations 26 13,082 8,764

14,508 10,353

Total equity and habibibes 237,676 225,897

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this Consohidated balance sheet

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Oirectors and avthonsed forssue on 26 May 2010 They were signed on s behalf by

o

Nick Prest ; Richard Longdon
Chairman Chief Executive
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Consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity

Overview

Bustness review
31 March 2010
Corporate Governance
Finanoal statements
Other reserves
Cemulative Own
Share Share Merger transtation shares Retained Total
capital premium reserve  adjustments held Total £arnings equity
Notes £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At 1 Aprnil 2008 2,250 26,522 3921 4,606 — 8,527 68,447 105,746
Profit for the year - - - - - - 42,154 42,154
Other comprehensive \ncome/(expense) - — - 5,503 — 5,503 {(5,638) (135)
Total comprehensive income — - — 5,503 - 5,503 36,516 42,019
Issue of share capital 28(a) 10 654 - - - — — 664
Share-based payments, net of tax — - - — - - 515 515
Investmentn own shares - - - - (495) (495) - {495)
Equity dwidends — — — — = — {5,318) (5,318)
At 31 March 2009 2,260 27,176 3,921 10,109 {495) 13,535 100,160 143,131
Profit for the year - — - - - - 33,440 33,440
Other comprehensive income/(expense) - — - 1,537 — 1,537 (3.605) (2,068)
Total comprehensive income - - - 1,537 - 1,537 29,835 31,372
Issue of share capital 28(a) 4 112 - - — - - 116
Share-based payments, net of tax - - - - - - 1,692 1,692
Investment in own shares - - - - (653) (653) - {653)
Cost of employee benefit trust shares
1ssued to employees - - - - 36 36 (36) -
Equity dwidends — — - - - — (6,436) (6,436)
At 31 March 2010 2,264 27,288 3,921 11,646 {1,112) 14,455 125,215 169,222
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this Consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity
Finanoial statements - Group AVEVA Group ple
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Consolidated cash flow statement
for the year ended 31 March 2010

2010 2009
Notes £000 £000

Cash flows from operating actwties
Profit for the year 33,440 42,154
Income tax 12(a) 16,134 17,047
Net finance revenue 9,10 {365) (2,552)
Amortisabon of intangible assets 16 1,749 2,538
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 17 1,948 1,550
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 7 38 11
Share-based payments 27 1,184 940
Difference between pension contnbutions paid and amounts recognised 1n the Consolhdated income statement (1,389) {603}
Changes xn working capital
Trade and other recewables 9,684 {15,550}
Trade and other payables {11,123) 9,409
Changes to fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts {3,610) 3,737
Cash generated from operating achvities before tax 47,690 58,681
Income taxes paid (22,114}  (15,109)
Net cash generated from operating achwvibes 25,576 43,572
Cash flows from investing achwities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 17 (1,479) (3,668)
Purchase of intangible assets 16 (1,305) (58)
Acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash acquired 30 - {1,664)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 98 30
Interest recewved 9 1,114 2,815
Purchase of treasury deposits 20 (106,555) —
Net cash used wn investing activibies (108,127) (2,545)
Cash flows from financing activities
Interest pard 10 (17 (7)
Payment of finance lease halbbes - (145)
Purchase of own shares 28(b}) (653) (495)
Proceeds from the1ssue of shares 28(a) 116 664
Dwidends paid to equity holders of the parent 13 {6,436} (5,318)
Net cash flows used 1n financing activibies (6,990) {5,301)
Net (decrease)/increase n cash and cash equivalents (89,541) 35,726
Net foreign exchange difference 6,546 7,589
Qpeming cash and cash equivalents 20 126,164 82,849
Closing cash and cash equivalents 20 43,169 126,164

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this Consobdated cash flow statement
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Overview

Notes to the consolidated financial statements Business review

Corporate Governance

Finanaiat statements

1 Corporate information
AVEVA Group ple s a pubbic bimted company incorporated and domiciled 1n the United Kingdom under the Compames Act 2006 The address of the
requstered office 1s given on page 28 AVEVA Group plc’s shares are publicly traded on the Official List of the London Stock Exchange

2 Besis of preparation

The accounting policies which follow set out those pehaes which apply in preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2010

The {onsobdated financial statements are presented in Pounds Sterling (£) and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand (£000) except when
otherwise indhcated

The Group presents adjusted profit before tax on the face of the Consolidated \ncome statement disclosing those matenal items of operating income
and expense which matenally impact the undertying performance of the business Histoncally these items have included amortisabion of intangible
assets, share-based payments and restructuring costs From 2009/10, the Group has chosen to also adjust for the gain/loss on the fair value of
foreign currency contracts because this 1s a non-cash stem and has become material due to the volabihity of the underlying exchange rates
Comparatives have been restated accordingly

The Directors believe that adjusted profit before tax allows shareholders to understand better the elements of financial performance in the year,
50 as to facilitate comparisan wath prior periods 1n assessing trends n financial performance

a) Statement of comphance

The Consohidated finanoal statements of AVEVA Group ple and athits subsidiaries (the Group) have been prepared tn accordance with Internabional
Finanoal Reporting Standards (IFRSs), as adopted by the European Umon, as they apply to the financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2010 The Group's finanaal statements are also consistent with IFRSs as 1ssued by the IASB

The parent Company financial statements of AVEVA Group plc have been prepared in accordance with UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
(UK GAAP) and are included on pages 82 to 86

b) Basis of consehdation

The Consobdated finanoal statements compnise the financial statements of AVEVA Group ple and 1ts subsidianies as at 31 March each year
The financial statements of subsidiartes are prepared using existing GAAP for each country of operation Adjustments are made to translate any
differences that may exist between the respective local GAAPs and IFRSs

Inter-company balances and transactions, 1ncluding unreabsed profits arising from intra-Group transachons, have been ehmnated 1n full

Subsiharies are consolidated from the date on which control1s obtaned by the Group and cease to be consolidated from the date on which control
1s transferred out of the Group

On acquisition, assets and habihities of subsidharies are measured at their faw values at the date of acquisitian, with any excess of the cost
of acquisition over ths value being capitabised as goodwall

¢) Adoption of new and revised standards
The accounting pohicies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financal year except as foltows

The Group has adopted the following new and amended IFRS and IFRIC interpretations during the year The other pronouncements which came nto
force during the year were not relevant to the Group

IFRS 2 Share-based Payment (Revised)
The IASB 1ssued an amendment to IFRS 2 which clanifies the defimtion of vesting conditions and prescribes the treatment for an award that1s
cancelled The Group adopted this amendment as of 1 January 2009 It did not have anmpact on the financial position or performance of the Group

IFRS 7 Finanaal Instruments. Disclosures

The amended standard requires addihanal disclosures about fair value measurement and hquidity risk  Fair value measurements related to 1tems
recorded at fair value are to be disclosed by source of \nputs using a three level fair value lerarchy, by class, for all financial nstruments recogmsed
atfairvalue In addrtion, a reconcibation between the beqinming and ending balance for level 3 fair value measurements 1s now required, as well
as sigmficant transfers between levels in the fair value merarchy The amendments also clanfy the requirements for hquidity risk disclosures wath
respect to dervative transactions and assets used for bquidity management The fair value measurement disclosures are presented 1 note 24(e)
The hiquidty sk disclosures are not sigmficantly impacted by the amendments and are presented in note 24(c)

IFRS 8 Operating Segments

IFRS 8 replaced (AS 14 Segment Reporting upon 1ts effective date The Group concluded that the operating segments determined 1n accordance with
IFRS 8 are the same as the business segments previously identified under IAS 14 IFRS 8 disclosures are shown 1n note 6, Including the related rewvised
comparative information

LAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

Therevised standard separates owner and non-owner changes n equity The Consolidated statement of changes 1n shareholders’ equity includes
only details of transactions with awners, with non-owner changes in equity presented 1n a reconaliabion of each component of equity In addition,
the standard introduces the statement of comprehensive tncome 1t presents allitems of recogmsed income and expense, either 1n one single
statement, or n two linked statements The Group has elected to present two statements

Financal statements - Group AVEVA Group plc
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

2 Basis of preparation continued

c) Adeption of new and revised standards continued

Improvements to [FRSs

In May 2008 and April 2009 the IASB 1ssued an ommbus of amendments to its standards, primarily with a view to removing inconsistencies and
clanfying wording There are separate transitional provisions for each standard The adoption of the following amendments resulted 1n changes
te accounting polheies and disclosures but did not have any1impact on the financial position or performance of the Group

* [FRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations,
« IFRS 8 Operating Segment Information,

* |AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements, and

e |AS 18 Revenue

IFRS 3 Business Combnations (Revised) and lAS 27 Consohdated 2nd Separate Financial Statements {Amended)

IFRS 3 {Rewvised) wntroduces sigmficant changes 1n the accounting for business combinations The new standard 1s effective for annual reporting
periods beginming on or after 1 July 2009 However, the Group has decided to adopt this standard early During the year the Group recogmsed the
benefit of tax losses of £500,000 attnibutable to an acquisiton completed 1n a previous period The impact1s included within the current income tax
expense Had the standard not been adopted early, an adjustment to goodwill would have been required Changes affect the valuahon of non-controlling
nterests, the accounting for transachon costs, the imtial recogmtion and subsequent measurement of a contingent consideration and business
combinations achneved n stages These changes impact the amount of goodwill recagmsed, the reported results in the pened that an acquisibion
occurs and future reported results (AS 27 (Amended) requires that a change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary (without loss of control) 1s
accounted for as a transaction with owners 1n thewr capaaity as owners Therefore, such transactions no longer give rise to goodwill, ner does it give
rse to a gawn or loss Furthermore, the amended standard changes the accounting for losses incurred by the subsichary as well as the loss of control
of a subsichary The changes by IFRS 3 (Revised) and (AS 27 (Amended) will affect future acquisitions or loss of control of subsidianes and transachons
with non-controlling interests

New standards and interpretations not yet effective
During the year, the IASB and IFRIC havessued the following standard whichis expected to have implications for the reporting of the finanaal
position or performance of the Group or which will require addhbhonal disclosures in future financial years

IFRS 9 Finandal Instruments - Classification and Measurement

This 15 the first part of a new standard to replace IAS 39 IFRS 9 has two measurement categories amorbsed cost and fair value All equity
nstruments are measured at fair value A debt instrument 1s at amortised cost onty if the entity 1s holding it to collect contractual cash flows and
the cash flows represent prinapal and interest Otherwiseit1s at fair vatue through profit or toss Published by the IASS 1n November 2009, this
15 effective for annual penods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 This standard is not yet endorsed by the European Umaon

3 Significant accounting estimates
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertanty at the balance sheet date that have a sigmficant nisk
of causing a matenal adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and habilities within the next financal year are discussed below

a) Defined benefit pension schemes

The determination of the Group’s cbhigations and expense for definad benefit pensions 1s dependent on the selection, by the Board of Directors,
of assumptions used by the pension scheme actuary 1n calculating these amounts The assumptions applied are described in note 26 and include,
amongst others, the discount rate, the inflahion rate, rates of increase n salanes and mortality rates While the Directors consider that the assumptions
are appropnate, sigmficant differences 1n the actual expenence or significant changes 1n assumptions may matenally affect the amount of the
Group’s future pension obligations, actuanal gains and losses included 1n the Consolidated statement of comprehensive income in future years
and the future staff costs The carrying amount of rebrement benefit abligations at 31 March 2010 was £13,082,000 (2009 - £8,764,000)

4 Summary of significant accounting policies

a) Revenue

The Group generates its revenue principally from hicensing the nghts to use 1ts software products directly to end users and to a lesser extent,
indirectly through resellers Revenue1s measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents the amounts recewable
for goods and services prowvided 1n the ordinary course of business, net of dhscounts and sales taxes It comprises of 1mtial hicence fees, annual fees
and rental iicence fees, together with income from consultancy and other related services

For each revenue stream, revenue 1s not recogmsed unless and until
* aclear contractual arrangement can be evidenced,

® delvery has been made 1n accordance wath that contract,

* frequired, contractual acceptance cntera have been met, and

® the fee has been agreed and collectability 15 probable

AVEVA Group pic Financal statements - Group
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Overview
Business review
Corporate Governance

Financial statements

4 Summary of significant accounting policies continued

a) Revenue continued

Imtial/annual bicence agreements

Users are charged an imtial bicence fee upon installation for a set number of users together with an obligatory annual fee, which 1s charged every
year Annualfees consist of the nght to use and custemer support and maintenance, whmchincludes core product upgrades and enhancements and
remote support services Users must continue to pay annual fees 1n order to maintain the night to use the software

Imbal beence fees are recogmsed once the above conditions have been met Annual fees are recogmsed on a straight-line basis aver the peniod of
the contract, which 15 typically twelve months If annual fees are charged at a discount, an amount s allocated out of the imbial hcence fee at fair
market value based on the value established when annual fees are charged separately to customers

Rental hicence agreements
Asan alternative to the imtial heence fee plus annual fee modet, the Group also supphesits software under three different types of rental icence agreement.

Rental hicence fees which are invorced monthly and whach are cancellable by the customer are recogmised on a monthly basis

Other rental hcence agreements are invoiced at the start of the contracted penod, are non-cancellable and consist of two separate components,
the nght to use and customer support and maintenance Revenuen respect of the customer support and maintenance element s valued at fair
market value based on the value estabbshed when annual fees are charged separately to customer This compenent s recogmsed on a straight-line
basis over the period of the contract The residual amount representing the nght to use elementis recognised upfront, provided all of the above
cntena have been met

The Group alsa licenses 1ts software using a token hicensing model Under this model, a *basket of tokens’ representing licences to use the software
over a defined period 15 granted, which enables the customer to draw these down as and when required Where the customer commits 1n advance to

a spearfied number of tokens over a defined penod, a proportion of revenue 1s recogmsed with an appropriate element deferred for customer support
and maintenance obligations, subject to the above recogmtion conditions betng met Where the customer1s charged 1n arrears, revenue is recogmsed
based on actual number of tokens used

Services
Services consist pnmanly of consultancy, implementation services and traiming and are performed on a ime and matenal basis under separate
service arrangements Revenue from these services 1s recogmsed as the services are performed

b) Forexgn currencies

The functonal and presentational currency of AVEVA Group plc1s Pounds Sterbing (£) Transachons in foreign currencies are imtially recorded 1n

the functional currency rate ruling at the date of the transachon Monetary assets and babibties denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the functional currency rate of exchange rubing at the Balance sheet date All dhfferences are taken to the Consahdated income statement

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of histoncal cost 1n a foreign currency are transtated using the exchange rate as at the date of the
imhal transachon

The subsicharies have a number of different funchonal currencies As at the reporting date, the assets and habihihies of these overseas subsidiaries
are translated nto Pounds Sterhing {£) at the rate of exchange rubing at the Balance sheet date, and their Income statements are translated at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year Exchange differences arsing on the retranslation are taken directly to the Consobidated statement

of comprehensve income

c) Goodwll

Goodwll on acquisibions 1s imbally measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the business combination over the acquirer’s interest in the
net fair value of the ydenbfiable assets, habilities and contingent habibhies Following imbial recogmtion, goedwillis measured at cost less any
accumulated 1mpairment losses

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating umt and part of the operation within that umt s disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of 15 included n the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation Goodwill
disposed of in this arcumstance 1s measured on the basis of the relative values of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating
unit retained

If the potenhal benefit of tax losses or other deferred tax assets does not satisfy the entenan IFRS 3 for separate recogmition when a business
comibination s imtizlly accounted for but 15 subsequently realised, the Group recogmises the deferred tax income n the Consohdated income statement

d) Intanqible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are capitabised at costand from a business acquisibion are capitalised at fair value as at the date of acquisthon
Following yimtial recogmbion, the cost model s applied to each class of intangible assets as set out below

Expenditure on internally developed intanguble assets, excluding development costs, 1s taken to the Consobdated income statement in the year in
whichitisincurred Internal software development expenditure 15 recogmsed as an ntangible asset only after its techmeal feasibility and commercial
viability can be demonstrated
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

4 Summary of significant accounting policies continued

d) Intangible assets continued

Useful bives are also examned on an annual basis and adjustments, where applicable, are made on a prospective basis Amorhisation 1s calcutated
on a straight-bine basis over the estimated useful economic lives of the asset, which are as follows

Years
Developed technology 5-12
Customer relationships 20
Other software 3
Purchased software nghts 5-10

) Research expenditure
Research expenditure 1s written off in the year of expenditure

f) Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and eguipment is stated at cost less depreaation and any accumulated impairment losses

Depreaation 1s calculated on a straight-line basis to wnite down the assets to ther estimated residual value over the useful economic bife of the asset
as follows

Years
Computer equipment 3
Fixtures, fittings and office equipment 6-8
Motor vehicles 4

Leasehold \improvements are amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease (3 to 49 years) or useful economic Life, 1f shorter

g) Impairment of assets

Goodwill ansing on acquisibon is allocated to cash-generating units expected to benefit frem the combination’s synergies and represents the lowest
level at which goodwill s momtored for internal management purposes and generates cash flows which are independent of other cash-generating
umts The recoverable amount of the cash-generating umt to which goodwill has been allocated 15 tested for impairment annually or when events

or changesn aircumstance indicate that 1t might be impaed The carrying values of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets other
than goodwill are reviewed for impairment when events or changes wn circumstance indicate the carrying value may be impaired If any such
ndication exists and where the carrying values exceed the eshmated recoverable amount, the assets or cash-generating umts are written down to
thewr recoverable amount. The recoverable amount1s the greater of net seling price and value 1n use In assessing value 1n use, the estmated future
cash flows are thscounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the hme value of money and
the rnisks speaific to the asset For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount 1s determined for the
cash-generating umt to which the asset belongs Impairment losses are recogmised in the [ncome statement 1n the admimistrative expenses line item

h) Trade and other recewvables

Trade receivables, which generally have 30 to 90 day terms, are recogmised and carred at onginal inveice amount less an allowance for any
uncollectible amounts An estimate for doubtful debts 1s made when collection of the full amount s no longer probable Bad debts are written off
whendentified

1) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and shart-term deposits in the Consohdated balance sheet comprise cash at bank and 1n hand and short-term deposits with an onginal matunty
of three months or less The carrying amount of these approximates their fairvalue For the purpose of the Consolidated cash flow statement, cash
and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts

i} Denvative financial instruments

The only derwative finanaal instruments the Group holds are forward foreign exchange contracts to reduce exposure to foreign exchange risk
The Group does not hold or 1ssue dervative financial instruments for speculative purposes The Group has not applied hedge accounting during
the year and therefore all forward foreign exchange contracts have been marked-to-market and are held at fair value on the Consolidated balance
sheet with any movements being recorded  the Cansohdated income statement. Fair value1s eshmated using the settlement rates prevailing at the
penod end

k) Leases
Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases Operating lease
payments are recogmsed as an expense 1n the Consobdated income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies continued

() Taxation

Deferred income tax 15 provided, using the hab1lity method, on alt temporary differences at the Balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets
and babihhes and their carrying ameunts for financial reperting purposes

Deferred income tax habilibes are recogmsed for all taxable temporary differences

* except where the deferred \ncome tax hability anises from goodwll amortisabon or the 1mtial recogmition of an asset or habibtyn a transaction
that1s not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss, and

¢ nrespect of taxable temporary differences assonated with investments 1n subsidianes, except where the timing of the reversal of the temparary
differences can be controlled and 1t1s probable that the temporary differences wall not reverse 1n the foreseeable future

Deferred \ncome tax assets are recogmised for all deductible temporary differences, carry-forward of unused tax assets and unused tax losses to
the extent that 1t 15 prebable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, carry-forward of unused
tax assets and unused tax losses can be ublised

* except where the deferred income tax asset relating to the deductible temparary difference anses from the imtal recagmtion of an asset or
Liabbity 1n a transaction that s not a business comination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxahle
profit or loss, and

* n respect of deductible temporary differences assocrated with investments 1n subsicharies, deferred tax assets are only recogmsed to the extent
that1t1s probabte that the temporary differences will reverse 1n the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be avalable against which the
temporary differences can be uhlised

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets 1s reviewed at each Balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that 1t1s no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be avarlable to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utibised

Deferred income tax assets and babbhes are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when the asset1s realised or the bability
15 settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance sheet date

The income tax effects of items recorded in erther other comprehensive income or equity are recogmsed 1n the Consolidated statement of
comprehensive ncome or the Consolhdated statement of changes 1n shareholders’ equity respectively Otherwise, income taxis recogmsedn the
Consolidated income statement

Revenue, expenses and assets are recogmsed net of the amount of sales taxes except

* where the sales tax incurred on a purchase of goods and services 15 not recoverable from the taxation authonity, 1n which case the sales tax
1s recogmised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense 1tem as applbicable, and

* recewables and payables are stated with the amount of sales taxes included

The net amount of sales taxes recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authonty 1s included as part of recervables or payables 1n the
Consolidated balance sheet.

m) Post retirement benefits
The Group operates defined benefit pension schemes 1n the UK, Sweden and Germany The Group also prowides certain post employment benefits
to 1ts South Korean employees

The UK defined benefit penston scheme, previously available to all UK employees, was closed to new applicants in 2602 UK employees are now
offered membersmp of a defined contnbution scheme

The German unfunded defined benefit scheme 1s closed to new apphcants and provides benefits to three deferred members following an acquisition :
1n 1992 by Tnben No current employees partiipate an the scheme Full prowision has been made for the habbity on the Consebidated balance sheet |
The Group also operates a defined beneht pension scheme for one German employee |

The Group provides pension arrangements to 1ts Swedish employees through an industry-wide defined benefit scheme Itis not possible to wdentify
the share of the underlying assets and habiliies 1n the scheme which 1s attnibutable to the Group on a fair and reasonable basis Therefore the Group
has applbed the provisions tn IAS 19 to account for the scheme as 1f 1t was a defined contribution scheme

For the defined benefit schemes, the defined benefit abhgation 1s calculated annually for each plan by independent actuaries using the projected umit
credit method which attributes entitlement to benefits teo the current period (to deterrmne current service cost) and to the current and prior peneds
(to determine the present value of defined benefit obhgation) The retirement benefit hablity 1n the Consolidated balance sheet represents the present
value of the defined benefit obhigation (using a discount rate derived from a pubbished index of AA rated corporate bands) as reduced by the fair value of
plan assets out of which the obligations are to be settled directly Fair value1s based on market price information and 1n the case of quoted securities
1s the published bid price The value of a net pension benefit asset 1s restricted to the present value of any amount the Group expects ta recover by
way of refunds from the plan or reductions in the future contributions The current service cost 1s recognised 1n the Consobidated 1ncome statement as
an employee benefit expense The interest element of the defined benefit cast represents the change in present value of scheme obbgahons resulting
from the passage of hme, and 1s determined by applying the discount rate to the opening present value of the benefit obhigation, taking nto account
material changes in the obhigation duning the year The expected return on plan assets1s based on an assessment made at the beginming of the year
of long term market returns on scheme assets, adjusted for the effect on the fair value of plan assets of contributions recewved and benefits paid
during the year The expected return on plan assets and the interest cost 1s recogmsed 1n the Consohdated income statement as finance revenue and
finance costs respectively
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies continued

m) Post retirement benefits continued

Actuanal gains and losses arsing from expenence adjustments or changes n actuanal assumptions are charged or credited 1n the Censobdated
statement of comprehensive income 1n the period 1n which they anse

The Group also aperates defined contnbution pension schemes for a number of UK and non-UK employees Contributions to defined contrbution
plans are charged to profit before tax as they become payable

n) Share-based payments

The cost of equity-settled transactions wath employees 15 measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which they are granted, further details

of which are given in note 27 In valuing equity-settled transactions, no account1s taken of any performance condibons, cther than condibions linked
to the price of the shares of AVEVA Group plc {(market conditions)

The cost of equity-settled transactions 1s recogmsed, together with a corresponding increase 1n equity, over the period 1n which the performance
conditions are fulfilled, ending on the date on which the relevant employees become fully entitled to the award {vesting date} The cumulative
expense recogmsed for equity-settled transachons at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has
expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity \nstruments that will ultimately vest

No expense1s recogmsed for awards that do not ulbmately vest, except for awards where vesting 1s conditronal upon a market condition, which
are treated as vesting wrespective of whether or not the market condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance conditions are satisfied

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as 2 mmmum an expense 1s recogmsed as 1f the terms had not been modified In additon,
an expense 1s recegmsed for any increase 1n the value of the transaction as a resutt of the modificabien, as measured at the date of modification

Where an equity-settled award s cancelled, 1t 1s treated as f it had vested on the date of cancellaticn, and any expense not yet recogmsed for

the award 15 recogmsed 1mmedhately However, 1f a new award 15 substituted for the cancelled award, and designated as a replacement award on the
date that 1t 15 granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as 1f they were a modification of the onginal award, as descnbed 1n the previous
paragraph The dilutve effect of outstanding eptiens s reflected as additional share dilubien in the computation of earmings per share, subject to
an eshmate of whether performance conditions will be met

o) Employee benefit trust

The Group has estabhished an employee benefit trust (AVEVA Group Employee Benefit Trust 2008) which 1s a separately admimstered trust and
15 funded by loans from Group compames The assets of the trust comprise shares in AVEVA Group plc and cash balances The Group recogmses
assets and habbties of the trust in the Consolbdated financial statements and shares held by the trust are recorded at cost as a deduction from
sharehclders’ equity

5 Revenue
Ant analysis of the Group's revenue s as follows
2010 2009
£000 £000
Annual fees 40,397 33,912
Rental bicence fees 61,164 57,6587
Recurnng services 1,140 2,627
Totalrecurring revenue 102,701 94,196
Imtal hcence fees 35,149 57,741
Services 10,484 12,104
Totalrevenue 148,334 164,041
Finance revenue 2,861 4,846
151,195 168,887

Services consist of consultancy and traiming fees
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For management purposes the Group 15 argamsed into three geographical segments known as Sales dwisions Asia Paqific, Americas, and Europe,
Middle East and Africa (EMEA) On 1 Apnl 2009, Central, Eastern and Southern (CES) Europe Sales division and Western Europe, Middle Eastand
Africa (WEMEA) Sales division were merged to form EMEA Comparatives have been restated to reflect this change Each segment)s determined by the
location of the Group's operations and 15 orgamsed and managed separately due to the differing local requirements 1n each market Sales dwisions
are granted distributton rights to license the Group’s software to customers in their respective territones The segments idenbfied under IFRS 8 are

unchanged from those previously dentified under IAS 14

The Executwve Board, comprising of the Chief Executive, Finance Drectar, Head of Group Dperations, Head of Product Development and Head of
Human Resources, momtors the operating results of the Sales dwasions for the purposes of making deqisions about performance assessment and
resource allocation Sales dwision performance 1s evaluated based on profit before tax using the same accounting policies as adopted for the Group’s
financial statements Thereis no wnter-segment revenue Balance sheet information 1s netincluded in the information provided to the Execubve Board
Support functions such as product development and head office departments are controlled and momtored centrally

Information concerning the Group’s segments s set out below

Year ended 31 March 2010
Asia Pacific EMEA Amencas Total
£000 £000 £000 £000

Income statement
Revenue
Annual fees 15,436 20,360 4,601 40,397
Rental licence fees 12,823 30,347 17,994 61,164
Recurring services - 100 1,040 1,140
Imbal beence fees 19,703 13,548 1,898 35,149
Services 2,542 6,541 1,401 10,484
Segment revenue 50,504 70,896 26,934 148,334
Segment operating costs (20,361)  (28,267) (11,545} (60,173}
Segment profit contribution before interest 30,143 42,629 15,389 88,161
Finance revenue 40 15 44 99
Finance expense - {13) - (13)
Segment profit contnbution 30,183 42,631 15,433 88,247
Reconabiation of segment profit contnbubon to profit before tax
Segment profit contnbution 88,247
Research and development expenditure {20,946)
Corporate overheads (including restructuring costs of £1,617,000) (18,006)
Other finance revenue 2,762
Other finance expense (2.483)
Profit before tax 49,574
Other segmental disclosures
Restructuring costs (71) {159) (25) {255)
Depreciation (691) {303) (169) {1,163)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

6 Segment information continued
Year ended 31 March 2009 {restated)

Asia Pacfic EMEA Amencas Total
£000 £000 £000 £000

Income statement
Revenue
Annual fees 12,541 17,774 3,697 33,912
Rental licence fees 14,983 28,289 14,385 57,657
Recurring services - 99 2,528 2,627
Imbal heence fees 36,774 19,069 1,898 57,741
Services 2,769 7,377 1,958 12,104
Segment revenue 67,067 72,608 24,366 164,041
Segment operating costs (22,957)  (26,487) (9.868)  (59,312)
Segment profit contnbution before interest 44,110 46,121 14,498 104,729
Finance revenue 112 238 12 362
Segment profit contribubion 44,222 46,359 14,510 105,091
Reconaliation of segment profit contnibution to profit before tax
Segment profit contribution 105,091
Research and development expenditure (27.332)
Corporate overheads {20,748)
Other finance revenue 4,484
Other finance expense (2,294)
Profit before tax 59,201
Other segmental dhsclosures
Depreciation (507) (207) {93) (807)

Other segmental disclosures

The Company’s country of domalle 1s the UK Revenue attnbuted to the UK and all foreign countries amounted to £11,951,000 and £136,383,000
(2009 - £11,146,000 and £152,895,000) respectively No indmidual country accounted for 10% or more of the Group’s total revenue Revenueis
allocated to countries on the basis of the location of the customer

Non-current assets {excluding deferred tax assets) held 1n the UK and all foreign countries amounted to £7,878,000 and £29,173,000 (2009 - £8,528,000
and £28,177,000) respectely There are no matenal non-current assets located 1n anindwidual country outside of the UK

No single external customer accaunted for 10% or more of the Group’s total revenue (2009 - none)
Further information concerming revenue by type of product and service 1s disclosed 1n note 5

7 Profit from operations
Profit from operations 1s stated after charging

2010 2009

£000 £000
Depreciation of owned property, plant and equpment 1,948 1,527
Deprecianon of property, plant and equipment held under finance leases — 23
Amaorhsation of intangible assets
-1ncluded 1n cost of sales 1,275 2,094
-ncluded 1n admimstrative expenses 118 88
~ncluded 1n selling and distribution costs 356 356
Research and Develepment costs (included 1n cost of sales) 20,946 27,332
Staff costs 58,848 55,503
Operating lease rentals — mmimurn lease payments 3,761 3,418
Loss on disposal of property, plant and eguipment 38 1
Net foreign exchange losses 1,076 2,359

During the year the Group {including its overseas subsidianes) obtained the following services from the Group’s auditor at costs as detailed below

2010 2009
£000 £000

Fees payable to the Company audstor for the audit of parent Company and Consobdated financial statements 274 259

Fees payable to the Company auditor and its assemates for other services

~ the audht of Company's subsidiaries pursuant to legislation 127 116

- taxservices 59 25

- other services pursuant to legislahion 23 35
483 435
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Restructuring costs incurred 1n the year amounted to £1,872,000 (2009 - £ml) and arose from the programme to reduce headcount following the
merger of CES Europe and WEMEA Sales dwisions and the restructuring of operations in Research and Development The costs mainly compnise of

redundancy costs and related expenditure and was all borne n the year

9 Finance revenue

2010 2009
£000 £000
Expected return on pension scheme assets 1,747 2,031
Bank interest receivable 1,114 2,815
2,861 4,846
10 Finance expense
2010 2009
£000 £000
Bankinterest payable and symilar charges 17 7
Finance lease interest — 3
Interest on pension scheme habilibes 2,479 2.284
2,496 2,204
11 Staff costs
Staff costs relating to employees (including Executive Directors) are shown below
2010 09
£000 £00C
Wages and salares 47,842 45,100
Seaal secunty costs 6,218 5,604
Other pension costs 3,604 3,859
Expense of share-based payments 1,184 940
58,848 55,503
The average monthly number of persons {including £xecutive Dwrectors) employed by the Group was as follows
2010 2009
Number Number
Research, development and product support 228 253
Sales, marketing and customer suppart 417 380
Admimstration 170 176
815 809

Directors’ remuneration

The disclosure of an indwadual Director’s remuneration and interests required by the Compames Act 2006 and those specfied for audit by the Listing
Rules of the Finanaal Services Authonty are shown 1n the audited section of the Directors’ remuneration report on pages 40 and 45 and form part

of these financial statements

12 Income tax expense
a) Tax on profit

The major components of income tax expense for the years ended 31 March 2010 and 2009 are as follows

2010 2009
£000 £000
Tax charged 1n Consolidated \ncome statement
Current tax
UK corporation tax 7,282 13,243
Adjustments in respect of prior periods (575) {40)
6,707 13,203
Foreign tax 6,721 6,585
Adjustments 1n respect of pnor penods 849 (162)
7,570 6,423
Total current tax 14,277 19,626
Deferred tax
Ongination and reversal of temparary differences 1,715 {2.534)
Adjustment 1n respect of prior periods 142 (45)
Total deferred tax (note 25) 1,857 (2.579)
Total income tax expense reported 1n Consohdated income statement 16,134 17,047
Finzncal statements - Grou, AVEVA Group plc
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12 Income tax expense conbnued
a) Tax on profit continued

2010 2009
£000 £000
Tax relating to items {charged)/credited directly to Consahidated statement of comprehensive income
Deferred tax on retranslation of intangible assets (40) (220}
Deferred tax on actuanal loss on defined benefit pension scheme 1,342 2,105
Tax credit reported in Consobidated statement of comprehensive mcome 1,302 1,885
b} Reconcibation of the total tax charge
The differences between the total tax charge shown above and the amount calculated by applying the standard rate of UK corperation tax to the
profit before tax are as follows
2010 2009
£000 £000
Tax on Group profit before tax at standard UK corporation tax rate of 28% {2009 - 28%) 13,881 16,576
Effects of
- expenses not deduchibte for tax purposes 866 434
- rrecoverable withholding tax 392 -
- movement on unprovided deferred tax balances 257 204
- higher tax rates on overseas earmngs 322 80
- adjustiments 1n respect of prior years 416 (247)
Income tax expense reported in Consolidated income statement 16,134 17,047
13 Dividends paid and proposed on equity shares
2010 2009
£000 £000
Declared and paid during the year
Intenim 2009/10 dwidend paid of 3 O pence (2008/09 - 2 86 pence) per ordinary share 2,034 1,938
Final 2008/09 diwidend pad of 6 5 pence (2007/08 - 5 0 pence) per ordinary share 4,402 3,380
6,436 5,318
Proposed for approval by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting
fFinal proposed diidend 2009/10 of 13 9 pence (2008/09 - 6 5 pence) per ordinary share 9,442 4,408

The proposed final dwvidend 1s subject to approval by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting on 7 July 2010 and has not beenincluded as a
bability in these financial statements If approved at the Annual General Meeting the final dvadend will be paid on 30 July 2010 to shareholders

on the reqister at the close of business on 25 June 2010

14 Earnings per share
2010 2009
Pence Pence
{restated)}
Earmings per share for the year
- basic 49 36 62 27
- diluted 4908 6198
Adjusted earmings per share for the year
- basic 5092 69 99
= datuted 50 62 69 67
2010 2009
Number Number
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for basic earmings per share 67,741,927 67,695,127
Effect of dilubon_employee share options 394,460 312,387
Weighted average number of ordinary shares adjusted for the effect of dilution 68,136,387 68,007,514

The calculations of basic and diluted earmings per share are based on the net prafit attributable to equity holders of the parent for the year of
£33,440,000 (2009 - £42,154,000) Basic earmings per share amounts are calculated by diwading the net profit attributable to equity holders of the
parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year D1luted earmngs per share amounts are calculated by
dwiding the net profit attnibutable to equity holders of the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year
plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be 1ssued on the conversion of all the potentially dilutsve share options into ordinary

shares Details of the terms and conditions of share gptions are provided 10 note 27
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14 Earnings per share continued
Details of the calculation of adjusted earmings per share are set out below

2010 2009

£000 £000

{restated)

Profit after tax for the year 33,440 42,154
Intangible amorbsation {excluding software) 1,665 2,482
Share-based payments 1,184 940
{Gawn)/loss on fawr value of forward foreign exchange contracts (3,610} 3,737
Restructuring costs 1,872 -
Tax effect {58) {1,935)
Adjusted profit after tax 34,493 47,378

The denominators used are the same as those detarled above for both basic and diluted earmings per share The adjusted earmngs per share
comparative has been restated to include the gain/loss on the fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts

The adjustment made to profit after tax in calculating adjusted basic and diluted earnings per share has been adjusted for the tax effects of thetems
adjusted in the current year The preceding year has been restated to reflect this

The Directors believe that adjusted earmings per share 1s a more representative presentation of the underlying performance of the business

15 Goodwill

£000
At 1 Apnl 2008 16,689
Exchange adjustment 366
At 31 March 2009 17,055
Exchange adjustment 1,122
At 31 March 2010 18,177

The Group tests gaodwill annually for impairment or more frequently if there are indicabions that goodwill might be impawed

Goodwill acquired in a business combination 15 allocated, at acquisition, to the cash-generating umts (CGUs) that are expected to benefit from that
business combnation The carrying amount of goodwill has been allocated to CGUs as follows

Asia
Pacfic EMEA Americas Total
“Year ended 31 March 2010 £000 £000 £000 £000

0n the acquesibon of

Tribon Solutions AB 8,576 6,892 356 15,824
Realitywave Inc 260 520 260 1,040
AEA Technology 108 - 976 1,084
Kyokuto Boeki Kasha 229 - — 229
9,173 7,412 1,592 18,177

Asia
Paafic EMEA Amencas Total
Year ended 31 March 2009 (restated)® £000 £000 £000 £000
Tribon Solutions AB 7,934 §.377 327 14,638
Realhtywave Inc 276 552 276 1,104
AEA Technology 108 - 976 1,084
Kyokuto Boeki Kaisha 229 — — 229
8,547 6,929 1,579 17,055

The comparatives for 31 March 2009 have been restated to reflect the merger of Central, Eastern and Southern Europe and Western Eurape, Middle East and Afnica Sales dmisions into one
Sales dvision known as Europe, Middle East and Afnca
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18 Goodwill continued

The recoverable amounts of CGUs are determined from value 1n use calculations The key assumptions for the value in use calculations are those

regarding discount rates and growth rates Management estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments

of the time value of money and the nisks specfic to the CGUs

The growth rates are based on management’s eshmates of growth 1n those speafic markets based on past experience and external market information

The Greup prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent financial budgets approved by management for the year ending 31 March 2011
and extrapolates cash flows for future years based on an average estimated growth rate of 2% for each CGU (2009 - 2%), representing the long term
average growth rate for the Group’s CGUs Future cash flows are discounted 1n line with the weighted average cost of capital of approximately 10%

pre-tax (2009 - 10%)

Whilstit1s concewable that a key assumption in the caleulation could change, the Directors believe that no reasonably foreseeable changes to key
assumptions would result 1n an 1mpawrment of goodwrll, such 1s the margin by which the eshmated recoverable amount exceeds the carrying value

16 Intangible assets
Purchased
Developed Customer Other software
technology  relatonships software nghts Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cost
At 1 Apnil 2008 9,393 7,155 1,104 4,563 22,215
Acquisition of iDesign Office Pty Ltd 1,622 - - - 1,622
Additions - - 58 - 58
Exchange adjustment 1,155 24 48 - 1,227
At 31 March 2008 12,170 7,179 1,210 4,563 25,122
Additions - - 125 1,180 1,305
Exchange adjustment 337 581 7 - G625
At 31 March 2010 12,507 7.760 1,342 5,743 27,352
Amorhsation
At 1 Apnil 2008 5,797 1,385 1,013 3,214 11,409
Charge for the year 1,566 356 56 560 2,538
Exchange adjustment 386 7 32 - 425
At 31 March 2009 1,749 1,748 1,101 3,774 14,372
Charge for the year 793 356 84 516 1,749
Exchange adjustment 482 173 5 — 660
At 31 March 2010 9,024 2,277 1,190 4,290 16,781
Net book value
At 31 March 2008 3,596 5,770 91 1,349 10,806
At 31 March 2009 4,421 5,431 109 789 10,750
At 31 March 2010 3,483 5,483 152 1,453 10,571

For the purposes of the adjusted earmings per share calculation (note 14}, 1ntangible asset amortisation excludes the charge retating to other

software of £84,000 (2009 - £56,000}
Developed technology

Developed technology includes the Reabtywave developed technology which was acquired as part of the acquisihon of Realitywave Inc n 2005 and
the Tnbon Soluhons AB developed technology which was acquired in 2004 The Tnbon developed technology was amortised over five years using the
straight-ine method and 1s now full written down The Realitywave developed technology 1s being amortised over twelve years using the straight-line
method Inaddibon, this caption includes the devetoped technology intangible asset acquired as part of the acquisition of 1Design Office Pty Linmited

n March 2009 which 1s being amortised over five years on a straight-line basis

Customer relationships

The customer relationsmps intangible asset was acquired as part of the acqunsibion of Tribon Solutions AB and 1s being amortised over twenty years

using the straight-line method
Other software

Other software represents third party software and 1s being amortised over three years using the straight-line method

Purchased software nghts

Purchased software nghts arose on the acquisition of the products ‘FOCUS’ for £1,700,000 and ‘VANTAGE” for £1,500,000 1n 1999 and OPE software
for £323,000 11 2000 These purchased software nghts were amorhised on a straight-line basis over ten years and are now fully depreciated In 2007 the
Group acquired a source code hicence for certain software from Spescom Software Inc for the sum of £1,040,000 ($2,000,000) This software 1s being

amartised on a straight-line basis over five years

During the year the Group acquired bicences for third party software components that are included 1n the sunte of AVEVA products at a cost
0f £1,180,000 The licences have aterm of five years and accordingly are being amortised on a straight-line basis over that period
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17 Property, plant and equipment
Fixtures
Long leasehold fithngs
buildings and Computer and office Motor
mprovements equipment equipment vehicles Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost
At 1 Apnil 2008 3,209 8,484 3,960 810 16,463
Acquisihon of subsidhary - - 12 - 12
Additions 132 903 2,338 295 3,668
Disposals - {355) (164) (105) (624)
Exchange adjustment 20 406 539 157 1,122
At 31 March 2009 3,361 9,438 6,685 1157 20,641
Additons - 507 840 132 1,479
Disposals - (211) (67) (268) (546)
Exchange adjustment 4 87 104 64 259
At 31 March 2010 3,365 9,821 7,562 1,085 21,833
Depreciation
At 1 April 2008 559 7291 2,914 296 11,060
Charge for the year 102 834 404 210 1,550
Disposals - (351) (158) (74) {583)
Exchange adjustment 4 282 176 56 518
At 31 March 2009 665 8,056 3,336 488 12,545
Charge for the year 104 959 661 224 1,948
isposals - (208) (35) (167) {410)
Exchange adjustment 3 70 71 49 193
At 31 March 2010 772 8,877 4,033 594 14,276
Net book value
At 31 March 2008 2,650 1,193 1,046 514 5,403
At 31 March 2009 2,696 1,382 3,349 669 8,096
At 31 March 2010 2,593 944 3,529 491 1,557

18 Investments

At 31 March 2010 the Group had the following prinaipal investments, which are held by AVEVA Solutions Limited unless stated and all of which have

been included n the cansobdation

Country of
incorporation
or reqistrahon

Princrpal actmty

Description and proportien of
shares and voting nghts held

AVEVA Solutions Limted*
AVEVA Inc

AVEVA GmbH

AVEVA SA

AVEVA East Asia Limited

Cadcentre Property Linmted

AVEVA AS
AVEVA KK
AVEVA Sendinan Berhad**

AVEVA As1a Paaific Sendinan Berhad

AVEVA Korea Linmted

AVEVA Information Technology

India Private Limited
AVEVA Pty Limited
AVEVA AB

AVEVA Pte Limited***

AVEVA (Shangha1) Consultancy Co Limted***
AVEVA Software and Services S A deCV
AVEVA Limited Lvalnlity Company

AVEVA de MexicoS DE RL deCV

1Design Office Pty Limited™***

AVEVA do Brasil Informdtica Ltda

Great Bnitain
USA
Germany
France

Hong Kong
Great Britain
Norway
Japan
Malaysia
Malaysia
Korea

India
Austraha
Sweden
Singapore
China
Mexico
Russia
Mexico
Austraba
Braal

Software development and marketing

Software marketing
Software marketing
Software marketing
Software marketing
Holdng property
Traimng and consultancy
Software marketing
Software markebng
Software marketing
Software marketing

Software marketing
Software marketing

Software development and marketing

Software marketing
Services and training
Software marketing
Software marketing
Provision of staff

Software marketing and development

Software marketing

100% ordinary shares of £1 each

100% common stock of US$1 each

100% ordinary shares of €25,565 each
100% ordnary shares of €30 each

100% ordinary shares of HK$1 each
100% ordinary shares of £1 each

100% ordinary shares of NOK 500 each
100% ordinary shares of 50,000 Yen each
49% ordinary shares of MYR1 each

100% ordnary shares of MYR1 each
100% ordinary shares of KRW 500,000 each

100% ordnary shares of 10 Rupees each
100% ordinary shares of AUD$1 each
100% of ordinary shares of SEK 10 each
100% of ordinary shares of SGD 10 each
100% of 1ssued share capital

100% of ordinary shares of US$50 each
100% of erdinary shares

100% of ordinary shares of MXP 1 each
100% of ordinary shares of AUDS$ 1 each
100% of ordinary shares of BRL 1 each

*  Held by AVEVA Group plc
.
*** Held by AVEVA AB

**** Held by AVEVA Pty Ltd

AVEVA Sendinan Berhad has been consolidated on the basis that the Group exeraises control over its finanaal and aperating polices under the terms of the sharehalders’ agreement
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19 Trade and other receivables

2010 2009
£000 £000

Current

Amounts falling due within one year

Trade recevables 40,928 54,201

Prepayments and other receivables 2,630 2,386

Accrued income 526 181

44,084 56,768

Trade recewables are non-interest bearing and generally on terms of between 30 and 90 days The Dwrectors consider that the carrying amount
of trade and other recewables approxamates ther fair vatue

2010 2009
£000 £000

Non-current

Prepayments and other recewvables 146 804

Non-current prepayments and other recewvables consist of rental deposits for operating leases

As at 31 March 2010 the provision for impairment of recewvables was £6,629,000 (2009 - £4,823,000) and an analysis of the movements during
the year was as follows

£000
At 1 Apnl 2008 1,964
Charge for the year, net of amounts reversed 3,623
Utibsed (853}
Exchange adyustment 189
At 31 March 2009 4,823
Charge for the year, net of amounts reversed 1,834
Utalhised (235)
Exchange adjustment 207
As at 31 March 2010 6,629
As at 31 March, the ageing analysis of trade recewvables {net of provision for impairment) was as follows
Past due notimpaired
Neither past
due nor Less than Four to Eight to More than
Total impawed  fourmenths  exght months twelve months  twelve months
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
2010 40,928 23,245 14,555 2,426 702 -
2009 54,201 29,457 20,070 4,361 313 —
20 Cash and cash equivalents and treasury deposits
2010 2009
£000 £000
Cash at bank and1n hand 37.021 38,491
Short-term deposits 6,148 87,673
Net cash and cash equivalents per cash flow 43,169 126,164
Treasury deposits 106,555 -

149,724 126,164

Treasury deposits represent bank deposits with an original maturity of over three months

Shart-term deposits are made for varying penods of between ane day and three months, depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Group, and earn nterest at the respectwe short-term deposit rates

The fair value of cash and cash equivalents and treasury deposits s £149,724,000 (2009 - £126,164,000)
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21 Trade and other payables
2010 2009
£000 £000
Current
Trade payables 2,630 2,583
Sooal secunty, employee taxes and sates taxes 4,160 4,490
Other payables 51 197
Accruals 15,091 18,241
Deferred income 26,937 31,087

48,869 56,598

Trade payables are non-interest beaning and are normatly settled on terms of between 30 and 60 days Socal security, employee taxes and sales taxes
are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on terms of between 19 and 30 days The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and
other payables approximates their fair value

22 Financial liabilities

2010 2009
£000 £000
Current
Fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts 1,033 4,643
Borrowing faalities

At 31 March 2009 and 2010 the Group had no committed UK bank overdraft or loan facihity

In addition, 1n both years, the Group had a committed overdraft facility of SEK 10,000,000 (£915,000) (2009 - SEK 10,000,000 (£845,000)) of which
£ml (2009 - £ml) had been drawn down

The bank overdraft 1s secured by a floating charge over certain of the Group’s assets

23 Obligations under leases
At 31 March 2010 the Group had the following future mimmum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases as follows

2010 2009
Land and Plant and Land and Plant and
buildings machinery buldings machinery
£000 £000 £000 £000
Not later than one year 2,701 251 2,911 441
After one but not more than five years 5,231 394 5177 776
Expiry n mare than five years = = 21 =
7,932 645 8,109 1,217

The Group has entered into commeroal leases on certain properties, motor vehicles and items of equipment These leases have a duration of between
one and five years Certain property leases contain an option for renewal

24 Financial risk management
The Group's pnnapal financialinstruments comprise cash and short-term deposits, treasury deposits and forward foreign exchange contracts
The Group has various other financial assets and habihties such as trade recervables and trade payables, which anse directly from 1ts operations

The Group also enters nto forward foreign currency contracts to manage currency nsks anising from the Group's operations
It1s, and has been, throughout the perod under review, the Group’s policy that no speculative tradingin finanaal instruments shall be undertaken

The main nisks ansing from the Group’s finanmat instruments are market nisk, credit nsk and hquidity risk The Board reviews and agrees pohoies
for managing such risks on a regular basis as summansed below

a) Market nsk

Market risk1s the nisk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates, will affect the Group’s \ncome or the value
of tts holding of financal instruments The objectve of market nsk management 1s to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable
parameters, whilst optirmsing the return on nsk

Interest rate nsk

The Group holds net funds, and hence 1ts interest rate rsk1s assoaated with short-term cash deposits and treasury deposits The Group's overall
obyective with respect to holding these deposits 1s to maintan a balance between accessimlity of funds and compettive rates of return Duning the
year the treasury policy was amended to enable the Group to put treasury deposits in place with a2 matunity of up to s1x months

For the presentation of market nsks, IFRS 7 requires sensitvity analyses that show the effects of hypothetical changes of retevant nsk variables
on profit or loss and shareholders’ equity The Group 1s exposed to fluctuations in 1nterest rates onits cash and cash equivalents and treasury
deposits The Group does not have any sigmificant borrowings The impact1s determinad by applying sensitised interest rates to the cash and cash
equivalents and treasury deposit balances

A 1% decrease 1 the Sterling and US Dollarinterest rate would have reduced interest income by approxamately £670,000 (2009 — £1,033,000)
and profit after tax by £480,000 (2009 ~ £738,000)
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24 Financial risk management continued

a) Market nsk continued

Foreign currency nsk

Foreign currency nsk anses from the Group undertaking a sigmficant number of foreign currency transactions 1n the course of operahions

These exposures arise from sales by business umts 1n currencies other than the Group’s functional currency of Sterling The majority of costs are
denominated 1n the funchional currency of the business umit The man exposures relate to the US Dollar and Euro reflecting the fact that a ssgnificant
propartion of the Group's revenue and cash recepts are denominated 1n these currencies whilst a large proportion of its costs, such as Research and
Development, are settled n Sterling and Swedish Krona

The Group manages these exchange rnsks, where possible, by using currency exchange contracts and currency options for the sate of US Dollar

and Euro as appropnate During the year the Group has started to use forward exchange contracts for Japanese Yen The Group enters into
speafic forward foreign exchange contracts for indivdually sigmficant revenue contracts when the timing of forecast cash flows 1s reasonably
certawn In addibon, the Group enters into forward foreign exchange contracts to sell US Dollars and Eure to match forecast cash flows ansing from
1ts recurring revenue base These are renewed on a revolving basis as required At 31 March 2010, the Group had outstanding currency exchange
contracts to sell $24 5 mlhon (2009 - 323 5 milhion), €12 8 milhon {2009 - €15 2 milhon) and JPY 120 million {2009 - JPY ml) In addition,
n previous penods, the Group has utshsed option instruments which included varous provisions that, depending on the spot rate at matunty, give
either the Group or the counterparty the option to exercise At 31 March 2010, the Group had outstanding currency options under which the Group
may, under certain arcumstances, be required to sell up to $ml million (2009 - $10 5 mlhon)

The Group has not apphied hedge accounting during the current year and therefore all gains and losses on forward foreign exchange contracts have
beenncluded 1n the Consohdated income statement

The Group has investments in foreign operations whose net assets are exposed to currency translation nsk There1s currently no reguirement for
borrowings and therefore this nsk1s not managed through borrowings denominated in the relevant foreign currencies Gains and losses arising
from these structural currency exposures are recogmsed 1n the Consolidated statement of comprehensive 1ncome

Foreign currency sensiivity anatysis

For the presentation of market nsks, IFRS 7 requires sensitvity analyses that show the effects of hypothetical changes 1n the foreign exchange
rates 1n profit or loss or shareholder’s equnty Theympact s determined by applying the sensitised forergn exchange rate to the monetary assets
and habibibes at the balance sheet date

Currency nsks as defined by IFRS 7 arise on account of finanoal instruments being denominated in a currency that1s not the functionat currency
and being of a monetary nature, differences resulting from the transiation of finanoal statements 1nto the Group’s presentation currency are not
takeninto consideration

A 10% change in the US Dollar against Sterling, Euro agawnst Sterling and Swedish Krona against Sterling would have impacted equity and profit after
tax by the amounts shown below as at the reporting date shown In management’s opimon, this1s a reasonably possible change given current market
condibons This analysis assumes that all other varables, 1n particular interest rates and other foreign currencies, remain constant The analysisis
performed on the same basis for 2008/09

Increase/ Profit/
(decrease) in (loss) Equity
31 March 2010 average rate £000 £000
US Dollar 10% {88) (88)
(10%) 97 97
Euro 10% 295 295
(10%) (324) (324)
Swedish Krona 10% 115 15
(10%) (127 (127)
Increase/ Profit/
(decrease)in (loss) Equity
31 March 2009 average rate £000 £000
US Dollar 10% 86 86
(10%) (94) (94)
Euro 10% 865 865
(10%) (951) (951)
Swedish Krona 10% 861 861

(10%) (948) (948)

The movement in profit for the period 1s maimly attnibutable to the Group’s exposure to exchange movements in US Dollar, Swedish Krona and Euro
denominated monetary assets and habibities
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24 Financial risk management continued
b) Credit nsk
The Group’s prinapal financial assets are cash equvalents, treasury deposits, trade and other recewvables

Counterparbies for cash and cash equivalents and treasury deposits are governed by the treasury pobey, which has been approved by the Board,
and are imited to financialnstitubions which have a high credit rating assigned by international credit rating agencies The amount of exposure
to any indwidual counterparty 1s subject to a imt of £50 mllion as set out in the Group’s treasury pobicy

The Group trades only with recogmsed, creditworthy third parties and prowvides credit to customers 1n the normal course of business The amounts
presentedin the Consohdated balance sheet are net of allowances for doubtful receivables An allowance for impairment1s made where theres
an dentihed loss event, which, based on previous expenence, 1s evidence of 2 reduction in the recoverabibty of the cash flows The Group has
credit control funchons ta momtor recewable balances on an ongetng basis Credst checks are performed before creditis granted to new customers
The Group has no signtiicant concentration of credit nsk, with exposure spread over a large number of customers The maxymum exposure to credit
nisk s represented by the carrywng amount of each finanoal asset The exposure to credit nisk s mingated where necessary by exther letters of credit
or payments 1n advance

The Group does not require collateralin respect of its finanoial assets
sclosures relating to the credit assoaated with trade recewvables are in note 19

c) Ligndhty nsk

The Group manages iqudity risk by maintaiming adequate cash reserves and by continuously momtoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching
the matunty of finanaal assets and habibbes The Group has no sigmificant borrowings from third parties and therefore biguidity nisk 1s not considered
2 ssgmificant nisk at this bme

The table below analyses the Group’s financal babilihes, which will be settled on a net basis, into relevant matunty groupings based on the remaimng
period at the Balance sheet to the contractual matunty date The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undhscounted cash flows

Between Between
Less than  three months sixmonths  Greaterthan
three months and sixmonths  and one year oneyear
£000 £000 £000 £000
As at 31 March 2010
Trade and other payables 21,932 — — —
As at 31 March 2009
Trade and other payables 25,510 - — —

The table below analyses the Group's forward foreign exchange contracts, which will be settled on a gross basis, nto relevant matunty groupings
based on the remaiming peniod at the Balance sheet to the contractual matunty date The amounts disclosed 1n the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows

Less than Between Between
three three manths s1x months
months and sixmoenths  and oneyear
000 000 000
As at 31 March 2010
Forward foreign exchange contracts {Euro)
Outflow €3,750 €3,500 €5,500
Inflow £3,284 £3,085 £4,962
Forward foreign exchange contracts (US Dollar)
Outflow $7,500 $6,000  $11,000
Inflow £4,808 £3,651 £6,848
Forward foreign exchange contracts (Yen)
Outflow JPY30,000 JPY30,000 JPY60,000
Inflow £205 £209 £441
As at 31 March 2009
Forward forexgn exchange contracts {Euro)
Outflow €4,500 €4,500 €6,250
Inflow £3,920 £3.814 £5.,505
Forward foreign exchange contracts (US Dollar)
Outflow $4,000 $6,000 $13,500
Inflow £2,138 £3,314 £9,039
Forward foreign exchange options (US Dollar)
Outflow $9,000 $1,500 -
Inflow £4,780 £904 -
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24 Financial risk management continued
d) Interest rate profile of financial assets and liabilities
The interest rate profile of the financial assets and bablities of the Group as at 31 March 1s as follows

Year ended 31 March 2010
Withn Onetotwe  Twoto three
one year years years Total
Fixed rate £000 £000 £000 £000
Cash and short-term deposits 9,293 — — 9,293
Treasury deposits 106,494 — — 106,494
Floating rate
Cash and short-term deposits 33,937 — = 33,937
Year ended 31 March 2009
Within Onetotwo  Two to three
one year years. years Total
Fixed rate £000 £000 £000 £000
Cash and short-term deposits 82,822 — — 82,822
Floating rate
Cash and short-term deposits 43,342 — — 43,342

e) Fairvalues

The book values of the Group’s financal assets and habihties consist of bank and cash balances of £43,169,000 (2009 — £126,164,000) and treasury
deposits of £106,555,000 {2009 - £ml) The carrying amounts of these financial assets and hambties 1n the Group’s financial statements
approximates their fair values

In addition the Group’s finanoal hambties also include forward foreign exchange contracts Financialinstruments which are recogmsed at fanr value
subsequent to 1mbial recogmtion are grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value 1s observable The 3 levels are defined
as follows

& Level 1 fair value measurements are those denved from quoted prices {unadjusted) \n active markets for 1dentical assets or habihities,

® level 2 fair value measurements are those denved from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or habibity, exther directly {1 e as prices) orindirectly (1 e derved from prices), and

¢ Level 3 fair value measurements are those derved from valuation techmques that inelude nputs for the asset or habibty that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs)

At 31 March 2010 the Group had forward foreign exchange cantracts, which were measured at Level 2 fair vatue subsequent to invtial recogmtion
The estimation of the fair value of the batlity n respect of forewgn exchange contracts 1s £1,033,000 at 31 March 2010 {2009 - habsbty of £4,643,000)

The resulting gain of £3,610,000 {2009 - loss of £3,737,000} on the movement of the fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts 1s recogmised
in the Consobdated income statement under admimistrative expenses

f) Caprtal management

The Group's policy 15 to maintain a strong camital base so as to maintain investor market, creditor, customer and employee confidence and to sustain
future development of the business The capital structure of the Group consists of equnty attnibutable to the equity holders of AVEVA Group plc compnsing
of 1ssued share capital, other reserves and retained earmngs

To mawntain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dwidend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or 1ssue new
shares No changes were made 1n the chjectives, pobcies or processes during the years ended 31 March 2009 or 2010

The Board momitors the capital structure on a regular basis and determines the level of annual dwvidend The Group 1s not exposed to any externally
mposed capital requirements
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25 Deferred tax
The following are the major deferred tax babilinies and assets recogmsed by the Group and the movements thereon duning the current year
Accelerated Retrement
capital Land and benefit Intangible Share
allowances binldings* oblgations assets options Other Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At 1Apnl 2009 (58) (213) 2,135 (2.215) 214 4,062 3,925
Credit/{charge) to Income statement 95 6 (202) 349 78 (2,183) (1.857)
Credit/{charge) to other comprehenswe income - - 1,342 (40) — - 1,302
Credit to equity — — - - 250 - 250
Exchange adjustment 2 - — — - {32) (30)
At 31 March 2010 39 {207) 3,275 (1,906) 542 1,847 3,590
*  Adeferred tax babibty anses on the difference between the tax base and the accounting base of a long leasehold property that was acquired 1n 1994
Other deferred tax assets consist pnncipally of deferred tax on bad debt provision, forward foreign exchange contracts, staff bonus accrual and
tirming differences in respect of revenue recogmtion
Certan deferred tax assets and habihties have been offset The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances (after offset} for financial
reporting purposes
2010 2009 I
£000 £000
Deferred tax habihiies (1,426) (1,589}
Deferred tax assets 5,016 5.514
3,590 3,925

At the Balance sheet date, the Group has unused tax losses of £5,072,000 (2009 - £3,810,000) avaitable for offset aganst future profits Of the total
deferred tax asset of £1,584,000 (2009 - £1,287,000}, £ml (2009 - £580,000) has been recogmsed and 1s included 1n ‘other’ above No deferred tax
asset has been recogmsed in respect of the balance due to the unpredictability of future profit streams, these losses may be carned forward indefimtely

At the Balance sheet date, the aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with undistributed earmings of averseas subsidiaries for which
deferred tax habibties have not been recogmsed was approximatety £23,300,000 (2009 - £38,800,000) No hablity has been recogmsed n respect
of these differences because the Group 15 1n a posihion to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and 1t 1s probable that such
dhfferences will not reverse 1n the foreseeable future It1s Lkely that the majonty of the overseas earmngs would qualify for the UK dnadend exemphons
but may be subject to foreign withholding taxes

There are no wncome tax consequences attaching to the payment of dwmidends by AVEVA Group plc toits shareholders

26 Retirement benefit obligations
The movement on the prowvision for retirement benefit obbgations was as follows

UK German Sauth
defined defined Kerean
benefit henefit severance
scheme schemes pay Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
At 31 March 2008 669 539 384 1,562
Current service cost 1,093 31 188 1,312
Interest on penswon scheme habbities 2,251 33 - 2,284
Expected return on pensien scheme assets (2,031) — - {2,031)
Actuanal loss 7.517 6 - 7.523
Employer contributions (1.877) (76) (60) {2.013)
Exchange adjustment - 91 6 97
At 31 March 2009 7,622 624 518 8,764
Current service cost B34 3 154 1,019
Interest on pension scheme habibties 2,428 51 - 2,479
Expected return on pension scheme assets (1,747) — - {1,747)
Actuanal loss 4,794 113 - 4,907
Employer contnibutions (2,239) (81) {78) (2,398)
Exchange adjustment — (35) 93 58
At 31 March 2010 11,692 703 687 13,082
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26 Retirement benefit obligations continued
a) UK defined benefit scheme

The Group operates a UK defined benefit pension plan providing benefits based on final pensionable pay which 1s funded This scheme was closed
to new employees on 30 September 2002 (with the option of re-cpeming1f required) and was converted to a Career Average Revalued Earmings basis
on 30 September 2004 Pensions are payable to dependants on death in retirement and a lump sum 15 payable if death occurs wn service There1s an
nsurance palicy 1n place which covers ths hability Admimstration on behalf of the members1s governed by a Trust Deed, and the funds are held

and managed by professional investment managers who are independent of the Group

Contnbuhons te the scheme are made 1n accordance with advice from an independent professionally quahfied actuary, BDO Stoy Hayward Investment
Management Limited, at rates which are catculated to be sufficient to meet the future labilines of the scheme using the projected umt credit methed
The employees’ contnbubons are fixed as a percentage of salary, the balance being made up by the employer Scheme assets are stated at thewr market

values at the respective Balance sheet dates

To develop the expected long term rate of return on assets assumption, the Company considered the current level of expected returns on risk-free
nvestments (primarily government bonds), the historical level of the nsk premum assonated with the other asset classes in which the pertfolio

1s invested and the expectabions for future returns of each asset class

The prinaipal assumptions used 1n determiming the pension valuation were as follows

2010 2009
% %

Main assumptions
Rate of salary increases 570 510
Rate of 1ncrease of pensions 1n payment 340 100
Rate of increase of pensions in deferment 370 310
Discount rate 550 660
Inflatton assumption 3.7 310
Expected rate of return on scheme assets
Equities 6 65 715
Bonds 4.00 370
Other 0 50 050
For the years ended 31 March 2010 and 2009, the following weighted average bfe expectancy at age 65 for mortality has been used

2010 2009

Years Years
Male pensicners 241 238
Female pensigners 26 6 26 4
Non-retired males 270 267
Non-retired females 289 285

Member contributions were 7 5% (2009 - 7 5%) of pensionable salary and Company contributions were £2,239,000 (2009 - £1,877,000)

The total contnbutrons 1n 2011 are expected to be approxamately £2,069,000

The assumed discount rate, inflatien rate and mortality alt have a sigmificant effect on the IAS 19 accounting valuation The following table shows the

sensitmity of the valuation to changes 1n these assumptions

Impact on defiat
increase/(decrease)

2010 2009

£000 £000
0 25 percentage point increase to
- discount rate (2,227) (1,475)
-1nflation {including pension 1ncreases linked to inflation) 1,332 845
Addihonal one year increase to hife expectancy 860 586
The assets and Labihties of the scheme at 31 March 2010 and 2009 were as follows

2010 2009

£000 £000
Equites 30,189 18,379
Bonds 9,298 6,976
Other 1,249 3,336
Total fair value of assets 40,736 28,691
Present value of scheme babilibes (52,428) (36,313)
Net pension hability (11,692) (7,622)
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26 Retirement benefit obligations continued
a) UK defined benefit scheme continued
The amounts recogmsed 1n the Consobidated income statement and Consolhdated statement of comprehensive income for the year are analysed as follows

2000 2009
£000 £000
Recagmsed n the Consolidated income statement
Current service cost
Cost of sales 534 715
Selling and distribution costs 170 196
Admimistrative expenses 130 182
Total operating charge 834 1,093
Finance revenue
Expected return on pension scheme assets (1,747) (2,031)
Finance costs
Interest on pension scheme lambties 2,428 2,251
Taken to Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
Actual return on pension scheme assets 10,253 (6,012)
Less expected return on pension scheme assets (1,747) (2.031)
8,506 {8.043)
Changes in assumptions and expenence adjustments on babilibes (13,300) 526
Actuanal loss recogmsed 1n Consobdated statement of comprehensive income {4,794) (7,517)
Analysis of movements in the present value of the defined benefit pension obhgations during the year are analysed as follows
2010 2009
£000 £000
At 1Apnl 36,313 33,600
Current service costs 834 1,093
Contnbutions by employees 418 469
Interest on pension scheme hamlibes 2,428 2,251
Benefits paid (812) (551)
Premums pawd (53) (23)
Actuanalloss/{gan) 13,300 (526)
At 31 March 52,428 36,313
The above defined benefit ohhigation arises from a plan that s wholly funded
Changes 1n the fair value of plan assets are as follows
2010 2009
£000 £000
At1Apnl 28,691 32,931
Expected return 1,747 2,031
Contributions by employer 2,239 1,877
Contnbutions by employees 418 469
Benefits paid (812) {551}
Premums pad (53) (23)
Actuanal gain/(loss) 8,506 (8,043}
At 31 March 40,736 28,691
The history of experience adjustments are as follows
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Fair value of scheme assets 40,736 28,691 32,931 32,295 27,767
Present value of defined benefit obbhgatons (52,428) (36,313} (33,600) (36,368)  (31,227)
Defiat in the scheme (11,692) {7.622) (669} (4.073) (3,460)
Expenence adjustments on scheme babibhes 1,452 492 %6 - -
Experience adjustments on scheme assets 8,506 (8.043) (2,793) {534) 4,513

The cumulative amount of actuanal gans and losses since 1 April 2004 recogmised directly withn other comprehensive Income was a loss of
£9,424,000 (2009 - loss of £4,630,000) The Drectors are unable to determine how much of the pension scheme defiait recogmsed on transibon to
IFRSs and taken to the Consohdated statement of comprehensive income of £8,500,000 1n the Group 15 attributable to actuarial gains and losses
since inception of the pension schemes Consequently, the Directors are unable to determine the amount of actuanal gains and losses that would
have been recogmsed 1n the Consolidated statement of comprehensive income before 1 Apnl 2004
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

26 Retirement benefit obligations continued

b) German defined benefit schemes

There are two defined benefit pension schemes 1n AVEVA GmbH Tribon Soluttons GmbH operated an unfunded defined benefit scheme that provides
benefits to three deferred members following an acquisttion 1n 1992 No current employees participate in the scheme and 1t1s closed to new apphicants
Benefit payments are made as they fall due The scheme was transferred to AVEVA GmbH when Tnihon Selutons GmbH and AVEVA GmbH merged
m 2045

In addibion, AVEVA GmbH operates a defined benefit pension scheme for one employee This schemens closed to new members

Details of the actuarial assumptions used to value these schemes 1n accordance with IAS 19 are set out below

2010 2009
Rate of increase of pension 1n payment 150%-2 50% 1 75%-2 50%
Mscount rate 5 30%-6.20% 5 50%-6 20%
Mortality 13 years 14 years
Rate of salary increases 0%-2 50% 0%-2 50%

The retirement age for the Tnbon Solutions GmbH and AVEVA GmbH schemes was 60 and 63 years of age respectvely {2009 - 60 and 63 years of age)

Analysis of movements in the present value of the defined benefit pension obligations during the year are set out below

2010 2009

£000 £000
At 1Apni 624 539
Current service cost (1ncluded 1n selling and distnbution costs) n N
Interest on pension scheme habbbes (ncluded 1n finance costs) 51 33
Benefits pard (81) (76}
Actuanal loss (included 1n Consohidated statement of comprehensive income) 113 6
Exchange adjustment (35) 91
At 31 March 703 624

The contnbutions 1n 2011 are expected to be approximately £80,000

¢) South Korean severance pay
South Korean employees are entitled to a lump sum on severance of their employment equal to one month's salary for each year of service
An IAS 19 valuabon of the hability has been carned out using the following assumptions

2010 2009
% %

Rate of salary increases 500 700
Diseount rate 3.70 490
Inflabon assumphion 2 60 4 40
The retirement age for AVEVA Korea Limited employees 1s 60 years of age {2009 - 60 years of age)
Analysis of movements 1n the present value of the obhigation during the year are set out below

2010 2009

£000 £000
At 1 Apnl 518 384
Current service cost (included 1n selling and distribution costs) 154 188
Payment of benefits (78) (60)
Exchange adjustment 93 6
At 31 March 687 518

d) Other retirement schemes

All Swedish employees employed by AVEVA AB aged 28 or over are members of the ‘TTP’, an ndustry scheme for salaried employees which provides
benefits 1n additron to the state pension arrangements The ITP scheme 1s managed by Alecta, a Swedish insurance company It 15 a multi-employer
defined benefit scheme with a supplementary defined contribution component AVEVA AB pays monthly premiums to the insurers which vary by age,
service and salary of the employee AVEVA AB 15 unable to 1dentfy its share of the underlying assets and habilibies in the scheme on a fair and reasonable
basis because this information 1s not provided by the scheme and therefore has accounted for the scheme as 1f it was a defined contnbuhon pension
scheme At 31 March 2010, Alecta’s surplus 1n the form of collective funding level was 143% (2009 - 122%) which was calculated 1n accordance with
the Swedish Annual Accounts Act for Insurance Compames The total cost charged to income was £741,000 (2009 - £545,000)

e) Defined contnbution schemes

The Group cperates defined contribution retirement schemes for certain UK, US, German, French, Norwegian and Asian employees The assets of the
schemes are held separately from those of the Group The total cost charged to income of £1,844,000 (2009 - £2,002,000) represents contnbubians
payable to these schemes by the Group at the rates specfied 1n the rules of the plans
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27 Share-based payment plans

The Group operates four equity-settled share option schemes, the AVEVA Group plc Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP), the AVEVA Group plc Employee
and Executive Share Option Scheme (Executive Scheme and Employee Scheme respectively), and the AVEVA Group plc Executive Share Option Scheme
2007 (2007 scheme) The Executwe and Employee schemes lapsed 1n 2006 and no grants have been made under the 2007 scheme which was approved
at the Annual General Meeting on 12 July 2007 The Group also operates a deferred annual bonus share plan Details of these plans are set out below

The following tabte 1llustrates the number and weighted average exercise prices (WAEP) of, and movements 1n, share options far both plans dunng

the year

2010 2009

2010 WAEP 2009 WAEP

Number Pence Number Pence

Outstanding at start of year 263,399 4541 488,624 162 06

Granted during year 226,855 202 86,481 193

Forfeited duning year - - (4,157) 333

Exerased dunng year* (112,034) 10326  {301,549) 220 26

Expired during year - - {6.000) 159 83

Qutstanding at end of year 378,220 2235 263,399 45 41

Exerasable at end of year 21,528 187 42,764 265 33

*  The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for the options exeroised s £9 72 (2009 - £14 78)
Share options have been granted under both plans to certain employees of the Group and remain autstanding as follows
Number Number

Share of options of options Exerase

optien 2010 2009 price

Date of grant plan Number Number Pence

20 July 2005 Executive Scheme - 42,764 265 33

28 June 2006 LTIP 12,072 78,648 333

2 July 2007 Lmip 55,506 55,506 333

7 July 2008 LTIP 50,033 50,033 333

15 July 2008 Deferred Share Scheme 33,754 36,448 000

27 May 2009 Deferred Share Scheme 89,016 - 000

7 July 2009 LTIP 137,839 — 333

378,220 263,399

The werghted average remaining contractual hife for the options outstanding at 31 March 201015 5 63 years (2009 - 5 0 years)

The average fair value of options granted during the year was £6 84 (2009 - £14 13) In calculating the fair value, the expected hife of the options
1s based on listonical data and 1s not necessanly \nchcative of exercise patterns that may occur The expected volatihity reflects the assumption that

the historical volahlity 1s indicative of future trends, which may also not necessanly be the actual outcome
The range of exeraise prices for opbons outstanding at the end of the year was £ml to £0 03 {2009 - £mlto £2 65)

The Group recogmsed total expenses of £1,184,000 and £940,000 related to equity-settled share-based payment transactions 1n the years ended

31 March 2010 and 2009 respectively
Detals of the share option plans are as follows
a) Long Term Incentive Plan {LTIP)

The following awards have been made under the LTIP The exercise pnice 1s equal to the nominal value of the underlying shares, which1s 3 33 pence

Options under the LTIP are normally exercisable 1n full orn part between the third and tenth anmversanies of the date of grant

2009/10 awards

On 7 July 2009, a total of 137,839 share ophons were awarded to the Executive Directors and semor management under the LTIP The performance
condihions are based on average diluted earmings per share over the three years from 2009/10 to 2011/12 All shares under this option shall vest
1f average diluted earmings per share for the three years ending 31 March 201215 equal to or above 52 14 pence Should average diluted earmngs

per share for the penod be below 52 14 pence, then no shares will vest and the option will Lapse

The fair value of these option awards 1s measured at grant date using the Black Scholes eption pnang model talang into account the terms and
condibons upon which the instruments were granted The following table bists the inputs to the model used for the year ended 31 March 2010

Year ended

31 March

2010

Dwidend yeld 130%
Expected volablity 52 00%
Risk-free interest rate 2 28%
Expected Life of the option 3years
Weighted average share price £720
Weighted average exerase price £003

Finangal statements - Group AVEVA Group plc
Annual report 2010

75



Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

27 Share-based payment plans continued

a} Long Term Incentve Plan {LTIP} continued

2008/09 awards

On 7 July 2008, a total of 50,033 share options were awarded to the Executive Directors and semor management under the LTIP The performance
canditions are based on average growth 1n earnings per share over the years from 2008/09 to 2010/11 If average earnings per share growth 1s
greater than 14% per annum then all of the shares shall vest If average earnings per share 1s less than 10% per annum then none of the shares shall
vest If average earmngs per share growth 15 between 10% and 14% per annum then the number of shares that shall vest shall be determined by
linear interpolation

The fair value of these option awards 1s measured at grant date using the Black Scholes option pricing model taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the instruments were granted The following table bists the inputs to the model used for the year ended 31 March 2009

Year ended

31 March

2009

Dwdend yretd 0 45%
Expected volatiity 41 00%
Risk-free interest rate 4 97%
Expected bfe of the option 3 years
Weighted average share price £14 92
Weighted average exercise price £0 03

2007/08 awards

On 2 July 2007, a total of 59,663 share optons were awarded to the Execubve Directors and semor management under the LTIP This scheme was used
because the AVEVA Group plc Executive Share Option and Employee Share Option schemes onginally introduced 1n 1996 had expired and the new scheme,
which was approved by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting held on 12 July 2007, had not yet been established The performance conditions
are based on average growth n earnings per share over the years from 2007/08 to 2009/10 If average earmings per share growth 1s greater than
11 5% per annum then all of the shares shall vest If average earmings per share growth 1s less than 9% per annum then none of the shares shall
vest If average earmings per share growth s between 9% and 11 5% per annum then the number of shares that shall vest shall be deterrmined

by tinear interpolation

The fair value of these option awards 1s measured at grant date using the Black Scholes option priang model talang 1into account the terms and
conditions upon which the instruments were granted The following table bsts the inputs to the model used for the year ended 31 March 2008

Year ended

31 March

2008

Dwidend yield 0 50%
Expected volatility 31 90%
Risk-free interest rate 5 75%
Expected bfe of the option 3 years
Weaghted average share price £9 55
Weighted average exercse price £0 03

2006/07 awards

On 28 June 2006, a total of 78,648 share options were awarded to the Executive Directors and semor management under the LTIP These ophons are
subject to performance conditions whach are based on average growth 1n earmings per share acmeved over the three years from 2006/07 to 2008/0%
If average earnings per share growth 15 greater than 15% per annum then all of the shares shall vest If average earnings per share growth 1s less
than 7 5% per annum none of the shares shall vest If average earmings per share growth 1s between 7 5% and 15% then the number of shares that
shallvest will be determined by linear interpolation

The fair value of these option awards 1s measured at grant date using the Black Scholes opton pricing model taking into account the terms and
condibons upon which the instruments were granted The following table hists the inputs to the model used for the year ended 31 March 2007

Year ended

31 March

2007

Dividend yeld 0 60%
Expected volahlity 31 90%
Risk-free 1nterest rate 4 8%%
Expected bife of the option 3 years
Weighted average share price £3 62
Weighted average exercise price £0 03
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27 Share-based payment plans continued

b) Employee and executive share option plan

Options have also been granted under the AVEVA Group plc Employee Share Option Scheme and the AVEVA Group ple Executive Share Option Scheme
(the Employee and Execubive Scheme) The exercise price 1s equal to the market price at the time of the award Options under this plan are normally
exercisable n full or in part between the third and seventh anmiversanes of the date of grant

2005/06 awards

On 20 July 2005, a total of 255,531 options were awarded under the Employee and Executive Scheme The performance conditions required to be
acheved for the exercise of the option would be that earmngs per share in the financal year ending 31 March 2008 would have grown no less than
5% above the Retail Price Index per annum from that achieved 1n the finanoal year ended 31 March 2005

The fair value of these option awards 1s measured at grant date using the Black Scholes option pnang model taking into account the terms and
condibions upon which the instruments were granted The following table bists the inputs to the model used for the year ended 31 March 2006

Year ended

31 March

2006

Dwvidend yeld 0 90%
Expected volatlity 33 44%
Risk-free interest rate 4 21%
Expected bfe of the option 5 years
Weighted average share pnce £2 65
Weighted average exercise price £2 65

c) Deferred annual bonus share plan

In 2008 the Company estabhished the AVEVA Group Management Bonus Deferred Share Scheme 2008 (the Deferred Share Scheme) Directors and
semar management parbicipate 1n ths scheme Subject to the achevement of performance conditions relating to a single finanoal year, these
ncentive arrangements are intended to reward the recipient partly in cash, and partly in ordinary shares in the Company to be delivered on a
deferred basis

In May 2009, the AVEVA Group Employee Benefit Trust 2008 awarded 89,016 (2009 - 36,448) deferred shares to the Executive Directors and
semor management 1n respect of the bonus earned in the year ended 31 March 2009 (2009 - bonus earned 1n year ended 31 March 2008)

The awards of deferred shares take the form of ml-cost options exercisable by participants in three equal tranches, one in each of the three years
fotlowing the year 1n which the award s made The option may be exercised 1n the 42-day period beginmng on the announcement of the finanaal
results of the Groupn each of the three calendar years after thatn which the option was granted The last date of the exercise 1s the end of the
42-day penod following the announcement of the financal results of the Group n the third calendar year following that 1n which the option was
granted or (1f applicable) such later date as the Remuneration Committee may specify These awards are made solely 1n respect of performance
1n the finanaial year immediately prior to their grant Debvery of the deferred shares 1s not subject to further performance cenditions but each
participant s required to remamn an employee or Director of the Group duning the three-year vesting period 1n order to receve his deferred shares
1n full (exceptn the case of death or the occurrence of a takeover, reconstruction or amalgamation, or voluntary winding up of the Company)

The fair value of these option awards 1s measured at grant date using the Black Scholes option pnong model taking into account the terms and
candiions upon which the instruments were granted The following table bsts the inputs to the model used for the year ended 31 March 2010

Year ended

31 March

2010

Dwidend yield 128%
Expected volabbity 52 00%
Risk-free interest rate 2 20%
Expected bife of the optian 3 years
Weighted average share price £704
Weighted average exerase price £0 00

d) AVEVA Group plc Executive Share Option Scheme 2007
The above scheme was approved by sharehaolders at the Annual Generat Meeting 1n 2007 No awards have yet been made under this scheme and
performance conditions will be set when awards are made under this scheme
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

28 Share capital and reserves

a) Share capital
2010 2009
£000 £000
Authonised
120,000,000 (2009 - 90,000,000) ordinary shares of 3 33 pence (2009 - 3 33 pence) each 4,000 3,000
Allotted, called-up and fully paid
67,928,208 (2009 ~ 67,818,868) ordinary shares of 3 33 pence (2009 - 3 33 pence) each 2,264 2,260
Details of the sharesissued during the year and the prior year were as follows
2010 2010 2009 2009
Number £000 Number £000
At 1Apnl 67,818,868 2,260 67,517,319 2,250
Exeraise of share options 109,340 4 301,549 10
At 31 March 67,928,208 2,264 67,818,868 2,260
Year ended 31 March 2010
Nominal Share
Number value premum Market
of shares 2010 2010 pnce
Date of 155ue 2010 £ £ £
10 July 2009 10,335 345 - 677
18 December 2009 85,352 2,845 112,042 901
4 March 2010 13,653 455 - 1073
108,340 3,645 112,042
Year ended 31 March 2009
Nomnal Share
Number value premium Market
of shares 2009 2009 prce
Date of 1ssue 2009 £ £ £
4 June 2008 5,250 175 8,215 12 85
5 June 2008 55,732 1,858 87,202 14 00
11 July 2008 800 27 1,252 1321
4 August 2008 11,304 ETn) 29,613 15 68
4 August 2008 28,647 955 75,046 15 68
4 August 2008 64,071 2,136 167,845 15 68
4 August 2008 98,745 3,292 258,679 15 68
18 August 2008 27,000 900 - 13 48
12 December 2008 10,000 333 26,200 552

301,549 10,053 654,052
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28 Share capital and reserves continued
b) Other reserves
Other reserves consist of the followang

Cumulative translation adjustment reserve
The cumulative translation adjustment reserve 15 used to record exchange differences which arose from 1 Apnil 2004 from the translation of the
finangal statements of foreign subsidiares

Merger reserve
This represents the difference between the fair value and the nominal value of shares 1ssued 1n connection with the acquisition of AVEVA AB 1n 2004

Own shares held

Own shares held reserve represents the cost of the shares in AVEVA Group plc purchased 1n the open market and held by the AVEVA Group Employee
Benefit Trust 2008 (EBT) to satisfy deferred shares under the Group’s deferred annual bonus share plan Details of purchases of shares by the EBT are
as follows

Total

Price per Numberof conswderation

Date of purchase share shares £000
15 July 2008 £13 48 36,448 495
28 May 2009 £729 89,016 653
125,464 1,148

During the year, 2,694 shares (2009 ~ ml) with an attnbutabie cost of £36,000 were1ssued to employees 1n sahsfying share options that were exercised

29 Related party transactions
Transactions between the Company and 1ts subsidianies, which are related parties, have been ebminated on consohdation and are not disclosed
n ths note

Remuneration of key management personnel

The remuneration of the Brectors, who are the key management personnel of the Group, 1s set out below 1n aggregate for each of the categaries
specified 1n IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures Inaddition to their salanes, the Group also prowvides non-cash benefits to Directors and contnibute to
a defined benefit pension plan on ther behalf The Brectors also parhopate 1n the Group's share ophion schemes and deferred annual bonus share
plan Further mnformahon about the remuneration of indwidual Directors 1s provided 1n the audited part of the Brectors’ remuneration report on
pages 44 and 45

2010 2009
£000 £000

Short-term employee benefits 1,104 1,077
Share-based payments 384 359
1,488 1,436

30 Acquisition of subsidiary

In the prior year on 24 March 2009, the Group acquired 100% of the 1s5ued share capital of 10es1gn Office Pty Limited for cash consideration of £1,678,000
(£1,664,000 net of cash and cash equivalents acquired) The fair value of net assets acquired was £1,678,000 which included developed technology of
£1,622,000 No goodwill arose from the acquisition The Company 15 1nvolved 1n software development and marketing of plant instrumentation software
products This transachon was accounted for by the purchase method of accounting
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in relation to the Company financial statements
The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual repert and the finanoal statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financal year Under that law the Directors have elected to prepare
the financial statements 1n accordance with Umted Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice {Umited Kingdom Accounting Standards and
apphecable law) The financial statements are required by law to qive a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or
loss of the Company for that penod In preparing those financial statements, the Directors are required to

® select suitable accounting pobicies and then apply them consistently,
* make judgements and estmates that are reasonable and prudent,

* statewhether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explawned in the
financiak statements, and

& prepare the finanoal statements on the going concern basts unless it1snappropnate to presume that the Company will continue in business

The Directors are respensible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the finanoal position of the
Company and enabte them to ensure that the finanoal statements comply with the Compames Act 2006 They are also responsibte for safeguarding
the assets of the Campany and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other wregulanies
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We have audited the parent Company financial statements of AVEVA Group plc for the year ended 31 March 2010 which comprise the Balance sheet
and the related notes 1 te 11 The financial reporting framework that has been apphied in their preparation 15 applicable law and Umted Kingdom
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

This report 1s made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, 1n accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Compames Act 2006 Our audit work
has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those matters we are required to state to them n an auditar’s report and
for no other purpoase To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the
Company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opimons we have formed

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ responsibiibes statement set out on page 80, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the parent
Company finanaal statements and for being satisfied that they gwe a true and fair view Our responsibity 1s to audit the parent Company financial
statements 1n accordance with apphicable law and Internahonal Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with
the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaimng evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the finanaal statements sufficient to qive reasonable assurance that the
financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an assessment of whether the accounting
pohies are appropriate to the parent Company’s circumstances and have been consistently apphed and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness
of sigmficant accounting estimates made by the Directors, and the overall presentation of the finanoal statements

Opinion on financial statements

In our opimion the parent Company financial statements

e gweatrue and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at 31 March 2010,

¢ have been praperly prepared 1n accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and

& have been prepared 1n accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opimon

e the part of the Directors’ remuneration report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Compames Act 2006, and

& the nformation gven 1n the Directors’ report for the financial year for which the finanoial statements are prepared 15 consistent with the
parent Company financal statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Compames Act 2006 requires us to report to you1f, in our opimen

¢ adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent Company. or returns adeguate for our audit have not been recewved from branches
not wvisited by us, or

 the parent Company finanoal statements and the part of the Directors’ remuneration report to be audited are not 1n agreement with the
accounting records and returns, or

e certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration speafied by law are not made, or
« we have not recewed all the information and explanations we reqwre for our audit

Other matter
We have reported separately on the Group financial statements of AVEVA Group plc for the year ended 31 March 2010

Eh~§\‘ k \'{Q-Q,LLP

Peter Bateson (Senior statu auditor)

for and on behatf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
Cambndge

26 May 2010
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Company balance sheet
31 March 2010

2010 2008
Notes £000 £000

Fixed assets

[nvestments 5 27,482 27,482

Current assets

Debtors 6 99,326 69,210

Cash at bank and 1n hand 512 136

99,838 69,346

Creditors amounts falkng due wathin gne year 7 (20,824)  (13.682)

Net current assets 79,014 55,664

Net assets 106,496 83,146

Capital and reserves

Called-up share capital 8 2,264 2,260
Share premium account ] 27,288 27176
Merger reserve 9 3,921 3,021
Profit and loss account 9 73,023 49,789
Shareholders’ funds 10 106,496 83,146

The financial statements on pages 82 to 86 were approved by the Board of Directors on 26 May 2010 and signed on 1ts behalf by

Richard Longdon
Chairman Chief Executive

The accompanying notes are anintegral part of this Company balance sheet
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1 Corporate information
AVEVA Group plc (the Company) 1s a hmited company incorporated 1n England and Wales whose shares are publicly traded The principal actwvity
of the Company 1s that of a holding company

2 Accounting policies
A summary of the pnincipal accounting policies, which have all been applied consistently throughout the current and the preceding year, 1s set out below

a) Basis of accounting
The separate finanoial statements of the Company are presented as required by the Compames Act 2006 They have been prepared under the histoncal
cost convention and 1n accordance with applicable United Kingdom accounting standards and law

As permntted by Financial Reporting Standard No 1 (Revised} ‘Cash flow statements’, the Company has not included a Cash flow statement as part of its
finanaal statements because the Consolidated financial statements of the Group (of which the Company s a member) include a Cash flow statement
and are publicly available

b} Taxation
Current tax including UK Corporation tax and forergn tax s pronded at amounts expected to be paid (or recovered) using the tax rates and taws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance sheet date

Deferred tax 1s recogmsed 1n respect of all iming differences that have originated but not reversed at the Balance sheet date where transactions
or events that result in an obligabon to pay more tax in the future or a right to pay less tax i the future have occurred at the Balance sheet date
Twming differences are differences between the Company’s taxable profits and its results as stated n the finanoal statements that anse from the
wnclusion of gans and losses n tax assessments 1n periods different from those in which they are recogmsed 1n the finanoal statements

A deferred tax asset1s regarded as recoverable and therefare recogmsed only when, on the basis of all available evidence, 1t can be regarded as more
hkely than not that there wilt be suitable taxable profits from which the future reversal of the underlying timing differences can be deducted

Deferred tax 15 not recogmsed when fixed assets are sold and it 1s more bikely than not that the taxable gaan will be rolled over, being charged
to tax only 1f and when the replacement assets are sold

Deferred tax 1s recogmised 1n respect of the retained earnings of overseas subsidharies and assotates only to the extent that, at the Balance sheet
date, dwidends have been accrued as recewvable or a binding agreement to dhstribute past earmngsin the future has been entered into by the
subsichary or associate

Deferred tax1s measured at the average tax rates that are expected to apply 1n the periods in which the irming differences are expected to reverse based
on tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance sheet date Deferred tax1s measured ona nan-chscounted basis

¢) Foregn currency

Transactions denomimated 1n foregn currencies are recorded at actual exchange rates as of the date of the transachion Monetary assets and habiibes
denominated 1n foreign currencies at the year end are reported at the rates of exchange prevailing at the year end Any gasn or loss ansing from a
change 1n exchange rates subsequent to the date of the transaction 1s ncluded as an exchange gain or loss 1n the profit and loss account

d) Investments
Fixed asset nvestments 1n subsidharies are shown at cost less prowision for impairment

Finanaal statements - Company AVEVA Greup plc
Annualreport 2010 8 3




Notes to the Company financial statements continued

3 Profit for the year

As permitted by Sechion 408 (3) of the Companies Act 2006, the Company has elected not to presentits own profit and loss account for the year

AVEVA Group plc reported a prafit for the financial year ended 31 March 2010 of £29,670,000 {2009 - £18,140,000)
Audit fees of £7,000 (2009 - £5,000) are borne by another Group company

The Company does not have any employees (2009 - ml) Directors” emoluments are disclosed 1n the Directors’ remuneration report on pages 40 to 45

4 Dividends
2010 2009
£000 £000
Declared and paid duning the year
Intenm 2009/10 dwidend paid of 3 0 pence (2008/09 - 2 86 pence) per ordwnary share 2,034 1,938
Final 2008/09 dwidend paxd of 6 5 pence (2007/08 — 5 0 pence) per ordinary share 4,402 3,380
6,436 5,318
Proposed for approval by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting
Final 2009/10 proposed dwidend of 13 9 pence (2008/09 - 6 5 pence) per ordinary share 9,442 4,408

The proposed final dvidend 1s subject to approval by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting on 30 July 2010 and has not beenncluded as a

habitity n these financial statements

5 Fixed asset investments

2010 2009
£000 £000
Cost and net book value
At 31 March 27,482 27,482
Details of the Company’s subsichary undertakings are set outin note 18 1n the Consolidated financial statements of the Group
6 Debtors: amounts falling due within one year
2010 2009
£000 £000
Amounts owed by Group undertakings 99,326 69,210
7 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
2010 2009
£000 £000
Amounts owed to Group undertaking 20,824 13,682

AVEVA Group plc Finznoal statements - Company
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8 Called-up share capital
2010 200%
£000 £000
Authonsed
120,000,000 (2009 — 90,000,000) ordinary shares of 3 33 pence each 4,000 3,000
Allotted, called-up and fully paid
67,928,208 {2009 — 67,818,868) ordinary shares of 3 33 pence each 2,264 2,260
2010 2010 2009 2009
Numb £000 Number £000
At 1 April 67,818,868 2,260 67,517,319 2,250
Exercise of share ophons 109,340 4 301,549 10
At 31 March 67,928,208 2,264 67,818,868 2,260
Detals of the shares 1ssued during the year are as follows
Year ended 31 March 2010
Nomnal Share
Humber value premum Market
of shares 2010 2010 price
Date of 1ssue 2010 £ £ £
10 July 2009 10,335 345 - 677
18 December 2009 85,352 2,845 112,042 991
4 March 2010 13,653 455 — 1073
109,340 3,645 112,042
Year ended 31 March 2009
Nommat Share
Number value presmum Market
of shares. 2009 2009 prce
Drate of 1s50e 2009 £ £ £
4 June 2008 5,250 175 8,215 12 85
5 June 2008 55,732 1,858 87,202 14 00
11 July 2008 800 27 1,252 1321
4 August 2008 11,304 377 29,613 15 68
4 August 2008 28,647 955 75,046 15 68
4 August 2008 64,071 2,136 167,845 15 68
4 August 2008 98,745 3,292 258,679 15 68
18 August 2008 27,000 900 - 13 48
12 Becember 2008 10,000 333 26,200 5 52
301,549 10,053 654,062

During the year the Company 1ssued 109,340 (2009 - 301,549) ordinary shares of 3 33 pence each with a nominal value of £3,645 (2009 ~ £10,053)
pursuant to the exerase of share options The total proceeds were £115,687 (2009 - £664,105), which included a premum of £112,042 (2009 - £654,052)

Finanoal statements - Company
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Notes to the Company financial statements continued

8 Called-up share capital continued
Share aptions have been granted to certain employees of the Group and remain outstanding as follows

Share Exernise

optign Number of pnece

Date ofgrant plan ophions Pence
28 June 2006 LTIP 12,072 333
2 July 2007 LTiP 55,506 333
7 July 2008 LTIP 50,033 333
15 July 2008 Deferred Share Scheme 13,754 000
27 May 2009 Deferred Share Scheme 89,016 000
7 July 2009 LTIP 137,839 333

378,220

Options under the LTIP are normally exeraisable in full or 1n part between the third and tenth anmiversaries of the date of grant, options under the
previous Executive Share Option Scheme are normally exerasable in full or in part between the third and seventh anmversaries of the grant Options
under the Deferred Share Scheme may be exeraised 1n the 42-day period beginmng on the announcement of the financial results of the Group 1n each

of the three calendar years after that 1n which the ophon was granted

9 Reserves
Profit
Merger Share and loss
reserve premum account
£000 £000 £000
At 1 April 2009 3,921 27,176 49,789
Sharessues - 112 —
Dindends pard - - (6,436)
Profit for the year - — 29,670
At 31 March 2010 3,921 27,288 73,023
10 Reconciliation of movements in shareholders’ funds
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2010 2009
£000 £000
Profit for the financial year 29,670 18,140
Dmndends {6.436) {5.318)
Shareissues 116 6564
Net addition to shareholders’ funds 23,350 13,486
Opening shareholders” funds 83,146 69,660
Closing shareholders’ funds 106,496 83,146

11 Related party transactions

There were no transactions with related parhesin either the current or the preceding finanoal year that require disclosure within these financial statements

AVEVA Group plc Finanaat statements - Company
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IFRS

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Summansed consolidated results
Revenue 148,334 164,041 127,561 94,906 65,930
Gross profit 117,956 126,429 97,768 67,637 44,416
Adjusted profit before tax* 50,685 66,360 48,823 28,090 13,847
Profit before tax 49,574 59,201 44,967 24,650 11,155
Income tax expense {16,134)  (17.047) (10.721) (6.844) (3.079)
Profit for the finanaal year 33,440 42,154 34,246 17,806 8,076
Basic earmings per share 49 36p 62 27p 50 80p 26 59p 12 14p
Adjusted basic earmings per share™ 50.92p 69 99p 55 11p 30 76p 15 27p
Total dividend per share 16 90p 9 36p 6 65p 4 18p 2 46p
Summansed consolhdated balance sheet
Non-current assets 42,067 42,219 36,378 35,731 38,245
Cash and cash equvalents and treasury deposits {net}) 149,724 126,164 82,849 41,287 23,503
Net current assets 141,663 111,265 73,025 37,757 20,830
Shareholders’ funds 169,222 143,131 105,746 65,312 50,860

.

Both adjusted profit before tax and adjusted basic earmngs per share are stated before amortisabon of intangibles, share based payments adjustment to goodwill restructuning costs and

past senice credit on the defined benefit pension scheme in the relevantyears Inaddinan the Group has chosen to adyust for the gain/loss on the fair value of forward foregn currency

contracts together with the tax effects of the items adjusted Comparatives have been restated accordingly

The earmngs and dnvidend per share amounts 1n prior penods have been restated to reflect the three for one share reorgamsation which was

approved at the Annual General Meeting on 14 July 2006

Other infermation

AVEVA Group plc
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Group directory
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AVEVA Inc
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USA

Tel +1 713 977 1225
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AVEVA Asia Paafic lvision

Level 59, Tower 2
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50088 Kuala Lumpur
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Tel +49 (0)6196 5052 01

Fax +49 (0)6196 5052 22

www.aveva.com
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About the AVEVA
Academic Initiative

Skills shortages continue to be a challenge in most engineering
companies and it will take some time for the recent increases in
the number of engineering students at umversities and
technical colleges to overcome the generation gap that currently
exists in the market.

En recogmtion of this, and in addibion to 1ts own in-house graduate
recruitment schemes, AVEVA will continue to work with educational

establishments and government bodies around the world to
support imbatives aimed at narrowing the sklls gap

AVEVA sees this as a vital investment that will bring long-term

benefits to the engineering world

Education institutes covered by the AVEVA Academic Initiative include:

e Braal Pontificiz Umversidade Catdhica do Rio de Janero PUC-Rio,
SENAI Branl, UFF - Urwversidad Federal Fluminense

¢ Bulgana Tneste Umversity

+ China Jangsu Unversity of Scence and Technology, Shanghay
Jaotong Umiversity

* (roatia FSBZagreb, Ryjeka Umversity
» Canada Southern Alberta Insttute of Technology (SAIT)

¢ Finland Savomia Ammattikerkeakoulua Kuntayhtyman, Turun
ammattikorkeakoulu

¢ Germany Fachhochschule Koln, TU Dresden, Hochschule
fur Angewandte Wissenschaften Hamburg, Techmsche
Fachhochschule Berlin

* Greece NTUA
* India AMET Umversity
* Ireland National Mantime College of Ireland

* Italy Genoa Unversity, Naples Unversity, Naval Academy of Livorno
{Navy), Trieste Umversity, Udine Umversity

¢ Korea Changwon College, Chungnam Unversity, DongEwn Institute
of Technology, Gyeongnam Provincial Geochang College, Gyeongsang
National Umversity, Jeonnam Provincial College, Jinan Industnal
High School, Inha Techmeal College, Inha Umversity, Koje College,
Korea Advanced Institute of Science and Technology (KAIST),
Kwangwoon University, Mokpo Industrial High School, Mokpo
Saence College, Seoul Nahonal Umversity, Ulsan Saence College,
Pusan National Unversity, Yeung)in College, Yonam Institute of
maqital Technology

Malaysia MICET (MARA Institute of Chemical Enqineening Technology)
FCET, Umversth Malaysia Pahang, Umversih Teknology Mara

Peru Unwersidad Tecnologica del Peru

Portugal Instituto Supenor Tecmco - Lisboa

Russia D Mendeleyev Unversity of Chermcal Technology of Russia,
Far East State Techmical University named by V V Kuibisheva,
Gublkin Russian State Umversity of Ol and Gas, Petrovski College,
Sawnt-Petersburg State Institute of Technology, State Manne
Techmcal Umversity of Saint-Petersburg

Sertna University of Belgrade, Insttute for Machine Mechamcs,
Beograd - Sertna

Spain Umversidad de Castilla La Mancha, Universidad de Zaragoza
Singapore Singapore Polytechnic, Ngee Ann Polytechme School
of Engineenng, Institute of Techmical Education

Sweden KTH Aeronautical and Vehicle Engineering in Sweden,
Pluskompetens, Vision Education

Tawwan National Cheng Kung University, National Kaohsiung
Marine Umversity

Turkey P Reis High School

Umted Kingdom Newcastle Umversity, Teesside Unwersity,
University College London, Umversities of Glasgow and Strathclyde
Ukraine Nahonal Techmcal Umiversity of Ukraine, National
Umversity of Smipbuilding named by Admiral Makarov

Umted States Houston Commumty College, Macomb Community
College, Naval Postgraduate School, San Jaanto College, University
of Houstan, West Virquma Umiversity
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